
 

Thanet District Council, PO Box 9, Cecil Street, Margate, Kent, CT9 1XZ 
Tel: +44 (0)1843 577000 Fax: +44 (0)1843 290906 DX 30555 (Margate) www.thanet.gov.uk 

Chief Executive: Sue McGonigal 

 
 

 
Date: 1 December 2014 
Ask For: James Clapson 
Direct Dial: (08143) 577200 
Email: james.clapson@thanet.gov.uk 

 
 
 

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

10 DECEMBER 2014 
 
A meeting of the Governance and Audit Committee will be held at 7.00 pm on Wednesday, 
10 December 2014 in the Austen Room, Council Offices, Cecil Street, Margate, Kent. 
 

Membership: 
 
Councillor Worrow (Chairman); Councillors: Lodge-Pritchard (Vice-Chairman), Binks, 
Campbell, Day, Gibson, D Saunders, W Scobie and S Tomlinson 

 
 

A G E N D A 
 

Item 
No 

 

 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 'To receive any declarations of interest.  Members are advised to consider the advice 
contained within the Declaration of Interest Form attached at the back of this Agenda.  If 
a Member declares an interest, they should complete that form and hand it to the Officer 
clerking the meeting and then take the prescribed course of action.'  
 

3. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  (Pages 1 - 4) 

 To approve the Minutes of the Governance and Audit Committee meeting held on 24 
September 2014, copy attached.  
 

4. ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER (Pages 5 - 12) 

5. VALUE STATEMENT (Pages 13 - 28) 

6. INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE REPORT (Pages 29 - 46) 

7. ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT ACTION PLAN   

 Report to follow.  
 

8. CORPORATE RISK REGISTER (Pages 47 - 82) 

9. GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK AND LOCAL CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE   

 Report to follow.  
 

 

Public Document Pack



Item 
No 

Subject 

 

10. TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2015-2016 (Pages 83 - 104) 

11. TO AGREE THE MID-YEAR TREASURY MANAGEMENT REPORT (Pages 105 - 120) 

12. DUE DILIGENCE PROTOCOL (Pages 121 - 124) 

 Declaration of Interests Form 
 



����������	��
	��
�	�������	
	

�������	��	���	�������	����	��	��	������ �!	�"#�	$�	%&""	��	��	������	����'	����(��	
����(��'	��(��	��!���'	�$!�$��'	)���&	

�
�

*!�����+	
�

���������	�
������		�������	���������������	���������	�����	���
����������������� �!�����	���!�"�������������#�"���������
�

��	������$�(�+	 #	�#�����������������
�

,-%&	 �������	*����������+.	-&,"*�	���		
�

,-/&	 �*�0�����	1��	�2�����		
�
$����������	��	����%���&	�������&��������#����	�'�
���������	��(�!�������
���������	�)�������
���������	� �*��������������*����������	�#(�"��������(�
�

,-3&	 
��0�������	�1	������		
�
"��	���	����������	��������&�����	���(�
�

,%"&	 ������	�1	*�������	��4�
�0�
	������		
�
���������	���������� �	�����������������	���		�� ��������� ����#����	�� ��	���� ����
���������&���������������������+,�
��*�-,./(�
�

,%#&	 ������	�1	4�	�5����
����6	������		
�
���������	� �������	�����	�� �	�����������������	������� �������������#����	�� ��	����
�������������&������0�	��	����	*�����������������.1�
��*�-,./(�
�

,%�&	 4�	��
�	1��
����	1��	4���	
�����	������0	 .	6���	��
�
	����4	
�"#�		
�
$��*�#����� �	����	����)	����"��	��������	���������������(�2���������������������&�����
�&������0��	����������������������������$������������3�����&�	�#���*(��
�
����(��	�((�����	
"����	���	�������&�������������������������0��	���������������������������&&���	��&�	�
���� ����� ���*� �&&�	��� ��	���� ����� �	�����(� "��� 	������� �&� ���� ������ �	�� ����� ���� ����
������ �&� ������������������ ��� ���������� 	�4��	������(� "������*� ��5��������� ������	��
������� �	�� �&� �� ���������� ����	�� ���� ���� ���� �&&���� ���� ��������� �&� ���� ������ 	���	�(�
)	����"��	������	������	���	��������������4����&�������������	���	�����������������
$�������(�
�
�$���	��!	����7	
#	�#���������������%������������������	�����������&������������6��&�������������������
�&&������*� �%�	� �� ��%��� ��	���� �&� ����(� 2�� ������ ���� ��&&������ �0��	���� ���������
��%�	��������������������� ����� ������0��+�1� *��	������� ��������� �������������&&������
����������� &�	��������(�2��%�	��������� ���������������������������������� �������%�	�
�������������(����������������������������������&�������������(�#	�#������%���	������������
��	���	����������*������#����	�������&&���	�(�
�
#	�#�������������� ������������ &�	�����������������	� 	�%��(�2���0�	�����������	��
�%�	� ���� �������� �&� ����� ����� ���� ����� ����%���	� �&�#����	�� ��� -,.+7./(�$�� �� 	�������

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 3

Page 1



-�
�

)	����"��	������	���	�������������������4����&����%�����&�	�����*�����������(�#	�#����
������ ����� ���	������%������� ������� ��		����������� �������� ������������� �������	��
�������������*����������	��&���������������	�������������	���	����������������	�8�%���
8���	�(�"���9��	�%���������	�����������������������%��&�	�	������	���������������
�&��������	�(�
�
$��������)	����"��	����� ���� ���� ������ �������	�8�%���8���	��� ���*� ������� ��� �&&���	��
����������	��������	���	�������	����������������%������(������	���	����������$�����&��������
��� 	�������� ��� �������	� �		�	�� ����� �	�� �0��	������� ��� ���� :���&�	�� ;0�������	�6�� #	�
#���� ����� ����� ����	�� ����	������%�� 	�%������ ����	�*� ���� ���� ������������ ���
	���	�������������0�����������&��������������(�
�
���������	�#(�"����������	�����������������	��������	�����	���������������#����	��
��������������0��	����������	���	�(�
�

,%,&	 �����0	����������	��*��		
�
"������������������	��������	���&�����$������)�%�	������!���������-,.+7./��#������
�����+<1�(�
�

,%�&	 ������0	��
�	*�������	��*��		
�
!����������� ����*�2�����&�;=�$�������	���	��������	�����������	���	�������������������
	�%�����������������������	������������&��������	�%��������	�����(�2������������������
�	�����&� ����� 	�4��	��������	������������*� �����������(�"���� ��������� ����������3�������
>�����#����������	���	����	���%�	���������&�	�&����%������������	������*����	�%������
	���������������������������� ����������*�����������(�2������� ����� ���	����������
����������������������	�����&��	������������%�����&���������������	���������������%���
��������%���������	�&��������������	�%�����(�
�
9��	��������&�����>?9�� �����	�������������9�&�	�������#����������������#	�����������
��%����� ����� ������������������ ���������� ��&�	����������	��� ����939�$�����������������
��&�	�����������&������*��������� ����	������&� ���� �����	���������$��(�!���� ��&�	�������
����� ������ ��� ���5���� ��� &	������ �&� ��&�	������� 	�4�����(� #	� ����� ������ �����
������������	�����	����������������(��
�
 �%��$���*��;=�2�������2�����&�$�����#�����������������������������������������
����"�����6��2����������!�&��*�	�%���������������������	���	���������������������������
:��� ����	����6� ��%��� &�	� ���� ��&��� �������� �*� ;=� 2�������� 	����	�� �	�� ��		����*�
����	�*(�2������������������������	������������������������	�������������������	�����
	���	����	���������������������(�;=�2��������������������%��������������.<��&�����
-@�	�������������������1��	�������	���������������������*����������&�!�������	(�
�
#����	�� ������ �����	� 9���	���� $����� �	�� �����&���� ���� 4�����*� �&� ���� �	���	������
"���� ��� ����� #	� ����� ����� ����� ���� ��		���� ������ ����	����� &�	� " �� ��� �����
�����	��� ��� ����	� ������ ��������(� "��*� ����� ������ &�	� ������ ��&�	������� 	�������� ���
����������� 	����%��� �*� ������������� ���	�����(�#	������ ����� ����� ����� ��&�	�������
��� ���� ��	�� �&� ���� ������ 	���	�� ����	� ����������� ���� 	����	� �� ����	���� 	�%��� �&�
����������7��������������������������	�������������&���	�����������&�����)�%�	������
A�$��������������(�
�
2�� ����� ��%����� ���� ���������� ����� ��� ������ �&� ���� �4�����*� ���� ��%�	���*� �����	�� ���
����������� ��		����*� ����	�*������ ���� ���� ��� ��������� �����	�� �*� ������	�����
�	������� ���� 	���	�� ��� �������������� ���#�	���-,.1(�#	������������ 9���	��� �	����	��&�
��	��	����8����	������������� ��������	����������	�� ��� 	������� ��� �����	��&��������
4����������	��&�	�9���	����$��������������������	��������(�#��������2���	���������������
����� ���	�� ����� ��&�	������� ����������	�� ��� ����#�����	�� >�	��� ��� "��	���*�� +,�
!�������	�-,./(�

Page 2



+�
�

�
���������	� ��������� �	�������� ���������	� �������	�����	�� ��������� ���� #����	��
��	��������'�
�
.(� "���	���	�����	����%����*�#����	���
�
-(� $�*������������ ������	����-,.+�./� ����	�����������������	���������&	��������������

��	���%���	�����������������������1(,��&�����	���	���	�����	�%��(�
�

,%8&	 �����0	����������	������	�"#,9#�		
�
B�����#�		����#�	������!�	%�����#�����	����	����������������&�	��������������������������
�����������������	�����������&�	�������	�����	��	����	���	�������������������������&�
���������������(�!����#����	���������������	��	����������������%����	��	���������������
�������	�%����������	��	�&�	������������&��������&���	��	�����������������	�����������*����
�������������������&���*(�
�
���������	� ��������� �	�������� ���������	� �������	�����	�� ��������� ���� #����	��
���	�%�������$������)�%�	������!���������&�	�-,.+7./���������������������������(�
�

,%-&	 ���*����	���)	�������		
�
���������	���������� �	�����������������	� ������ ��������� ����#����	�� 	����%��� ����
����������	���	�(�
�

,%%&	 ���)	���������	�����6	��
	*������		
�
���������	���������� �	�����������������	������� �������������#����	�� ���	�%��� ����
�������� ��� ���� 8���� #���������� �	������ ��������� ���� 	����������� ����� ����
!�	����*����������������.+�B�%����	�-,./���������&�	����	�%��(�
�

,%/&	 ������6	���������	�*
��	1��	:�����	#'	�"#�		
�
���������	� ��������� �	�������� ���������	� �������	�����	�� ��������� ���� #����	��
��	����������	�%������	���	�(�
�

,%3&	 �5����0	1��
���	��
	�����	*�����0		
�
#	���������	�����������	���	�������������������������������������	�%�����	����	�&���*�
�������������	������������������*��	���	����(�#����	���	�������	������������	���	��
����%������������������&�	��	����������	�����������������������	���������������������
�	�%�����*���������	����������	�����������	�������&&(�
�
9��	���������#	�����������������������������&&���������������������������������������%�������
&�	������������������	�������������������*�����������������������������%���������������
���� ��������� 	����� ��	������������������� ����������*� 	����	� ��� ����%������ ��	���(�
#����	�� ���������� ����� ���� )	����� ������������ �	��������� �	������� ������ ��� ���
	�%������������������	��	��������������	�����������&�������%�����������������������
����� ��� ��%������(� #�������� 2���	� ��	���� ��� ���� 	�%��� �&� ���� �	������� ��� �	���� ���
��������������&�������������������������	����������&�������������(�
�
"�����	������������� ���������	���	��� &�	��%����� ������������� 	�4��	��� ������ ��	����� ����
������������������(�!�����	�������	���	�����������������������(�#	���������������������
�����	�������&��������������&�������'�
�
.(�  ��������������
-(�  ���%�	*��&�����%�������

Page 3



/�
�

+(� �	���	��������*�������	������������������&�������	��������������&�	������&������	����
�*�����������(�

�
"��	�������������������*������#����	�� �������	�����������	�������� ���������	� ����
�%����(�"��������������������	�������������������	������	�*��	����������������%��������
�	�����������	����������������(���	���������	��	��2�����&�;=�$�������	���	������	�������
����� 9���	���� $����� ������ �������� ����� ����	� �	�� �	��	����� �� 	�%��� �&� �%����7�	����(�
#����	����	�������������	������(�
�
���������	� ��������� �	�������� ���������	� �������	�����	�� ��������� ���� #����	��
������������	�%������0��	����&������������	������	����������5��������������������	����
���	�&����������%�(�
�

,/"&	 1���0	��
��
	������	�1	�������	�"#,9#�		
�
����������� 9���	��� �	����	��&���	��	����8����	���� ���	������� ���� 	���	�(�2������� �����
������������	��������	�������%�����&�	�����*�4����&��������	���%��(�$��$�����������
���	��������������	�������*��������	�8�%�������������	�����(�"���;����=����$�����
��	���	����� ���� ����� 	�4������� ��� ��%�� ��%���� ��� ������������� ����� �������� �&� ����
������� ����(� #����	�� �	�� �����	���� ����� ���	�� �	�� �������� ���	�� ��� ����� ����
���������������%���	��*������#����	�(�"��	������������&�	��� 	���������	����� ���
���������������������������������������	����������&������������	����������������	�8�%���
	���	�(�
�
#����	��	�4�������&�	���&�	�������	���	�����������������&�����������&������������������
����� ��� ����� &�	� ���� ����� ��%��%���� ������%������ �&� ��%�� �������� ��	����� ���� ��	�� �&�
8�������� 2���� ���	�� ����(� ����� ����� ��%����� ���� ���������� ����� ���� �&&���	��
�	���	��� ���� -,.17.C� �������� �������� ���*� ���� 	���	�� ��� ���� �������� ��0� ����� ����
�	�%�������4�������&�	�������&�	���	��������"��������������������������	��	������(�
�
���������	� ��		�� �	�������� ���������	� �������	�����	�� ��������� ���� #����	��
��	���'�

.(� "�����	�%������!����������&�$��������&�	�-,.+7./��

-(� "�������)	����"��	����6�������	��

+(� "���������������������������	��&�	��	��������������)	����"��	�������������*���������&�
;0�����%������ �	����	��&���	��	����8����	���(�

�
�
�
#����������������'�D(-,����
�
�

Page 4



© 2014 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  27 October 2014 

The Annual Audit Letter 
for Thanet District Council 
 

Year ended 31 March 2014 

Andy Mack 

Director 

T 020 7728 3299  

E  andy.l.mack@uk.gt.com 

27 October 2014 

Terry Blackman 

Audit  Manager 

T 0207 728 3194 

E  terry.blackman@uk.gt.com 

A
g
e
n

d
a

 Ite
m

 4

P
a
g

e
 5



© 2014 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  27 October 2014 2 

Contents 

Section Page 

1. Key messages 3 

Appendices 

A  Key issues and recommendations 

B  Summary of reports and audit fees 

P
a
g

e
 6



© 2014 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  27 October 2014 3 

Key messages 

Our Annual Audit Letter summarises the key findings arising from the work that we have carried out at Thanet District Council ('the Council') for the year ended 31 
March 2014. 
 
The Letter is intended to communicate key messages to the Council and external stakeholders, including members of the public. Our annual work programme, which 
includes nationally prescribed and locally determined work, has been undertaken in accordance with the Audit Plan that we issued 31 March 2014 and was conducted in 
accordance with the Audit Commission's Code of Audit Practice, International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) and other guidance issued by the Audit 
Commission. 

Financial statements audit (including 

audit opinion) 

We reported our findings arising from the audit of the financial statements in our Audit Findings Report on 24 
September to the Audit Committee.  The key messages reported were: 
• We did not identify any adjustments affecting the Council's reported financial position, although a number 

of balances in individual supporting notes were amended, along with a number of adjustments to improve 
the presentation of the financial statements.  

• The finance team continued to prepare the accounts to a good overall standard supported by 
comprehensive working papers. 

 
We issued an unqualified opinion on the Council's 2013/14 financial statements 25 September 2014, meeting 
the deadline set by the Department for Communities and Local Government.  Our opinion confirms that the 
financial statements give a true and fair view of the Council's financial position and of the income and 
expenditure recorded by the Council. 

P
a
g

e
 7



© 2014 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  27 October 2014 4 

Key messages 

Value for Money (VfM) conclusion Our review of the Council's arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness found that that the 
Council has continued to maintain sound financial management arrangements. It has managed its budget 
well, delivered planned efficiencies for 2013/14 and increased its usable reserves by £1.8m which will provide 
resilience for the future. The updated Medium Term Financial Plan projects a balanced financial position 
through to 2017/18, albeit this will require year on year budget reductions in excess of £1m per annum for 
the next four years. 
 
During 2013/14 the behaviour of some Members, as documented in the April 2014 Corporate Peer 
Challenge, fell below acceptable standards. As a consequence we were unable to conclude that, during 
2013/14, the Council had adequate arrangements for promoting and demonstrating the principles and values 
of good governance.  
 
On the basis of our work, having regard to the guidance on the specified criteria published by the Audit 
Commission in October 2013, with the exception of the matter reported above, we were satisfied that in all 
significant respects Thanet District Council put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency 
and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ending 31 March 2014. 

Whole of Government Accounts 

 
We reviewed the consolidation pack which the Council prepared to support the production of Whole of 
Government Accounts.  We reported that the Council's pack was consistent with the audited financial 
statements. 

Certification of grant claims and returns Two returns required certification under the Audit Commission. We certified the Pooling of Housing Capital 
Receipts return on 25 September 2014. Our work on the Housing Benefit Subsidy return is nearing 
completion.  

P
a
g

e
 8



© 2014 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  27 October 2014 5 

Appendix A:  Key issues and recommendations 
This appendix summarised the significant recommendations identified during the 2013/14 audit. 

No. Issue and recommendation Priority Management response/  responsible office/ due date 

1. Whilst the Council has made a good start in 
responding to the Corporate Peer Challenge, it is 
vital that it continues to respond proactively to the 
issues raised in the April 2014 report, so that it can 
clearly evidence that the principles of good 
governance have been re-established across the 
Council. 

High The peer review recommendations are being taken forward urgently, working 
with the Improvement Board. 

In the area of member behaviour the Council Members intend to demonstrate 
respect for the views of others; professional debate and willingness to listen to 
contrary opinions; and respect for the advice of statutory officers. 
 

Responsible officer:  Leader of the Council and Chief Executive. 
Due date:  By March 2015 
 

P
a
g

e
 9



© 2014 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  27 October 2014 6 

Fees 

Per Audit plan 

£ 

Actual fees  

£ 

Audit Fee 87,945 88,845* 

Grant certification fee 35,280 TBC** 

Total fees 123,225 TBC** 

Appendix B:  Reports issued and fees 
We confirm below the fee charged for the audit and confirm there were no fees for the provision of non audit services. 

Fees for other services 

Service Fees £ 

None  Nil 

*There is additional fee of £900 in respect of work on material business rates balances. This additional 

work was necessary as auditors are no longer required to carry out work to certify Non Domestic Rate 

(NDR) returns. The additional fee is 50% of the average fee previously charged for NDR3 certifications 

for District Councils and is subject to agreement by the Audit Commission. 

** As our work on the Housing Benefit Subsidy return has not yet been completed, we are not yet in a 

position to confirm the final fee for grant certification. 

Reports issued 

Report Date issued 

Audit Plan March 2014 

Audit Findings Report September 2014 

Certification report [Work not yet complete] 

Annual Audit Letter October 2014 

P
a
g

e
 1

0



© 2014 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  27 October 2014 

© 2014 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.  

'Grant Thornton' means Grant Thornton UK LLP, a limited 
liability partnership.  

Grant Thornton is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd 
(Grant Thornton International). References to 'Grant Thornton' are 
to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms operate 
and refer to one or more member firms, as the context requires. 
Grant Thornton International and the member firms are not a 
worldwide partnership. Services are delivered independently by 
member firms, which are not responsible for the services or activities 
of one another. Grant Thornton International does not provide 
services to clients.  

grant-thornton.co.uk 

P
a
g

e
 1

1



P
a
g

e
 1

2

T
h
is

 p
a
g
e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



© 2014 Grant Thornton UK LLP | February 2014 

. Continuing to deliver value to 
Thanet District Council 

November 2014 

Darren Wells 

Director 

T 01293 554120 

E  Darren.J.Wells@uk.gt.com 

Andy Mack 

Director 

T 020 7728 3299  

E  andy.l.mack@uk.gt.com 

A
g
e
n

d
a

 Ite
m

 5

P
a
g

e
 1

3



© 2013 Grant Thornton UK LLP | October 2013 2 

 

You are a highly valued client of  the firm and I hope we have demonstrated this during the audit. We pride ourselves on 
delivering a high quality service and have set ourselves the goal of  being second to none in our client care. To help us 
achieve this, we propose to carry out an independent client service review with you in the coming year. More informally, I 

would value any feedback from you or your team on areas where you believe we could improve our service to you. 

As your incoming Engagement Lead, I thought it would be useful to summarise the services we have provided during the 
year, and to demonstrate how we feel we have added value to you through the other work we do with you. We have made 
investment in our relationship with you this year, and have included some thoughts as to how we could build on this in the 
future.  

We think our knowledge of  the Council, coupled with our wider experience of  the Local Government sector, puts us in a 
strong position to help you with the challenges you face. 

We look forward to the opportunity to demonstrate our desire and enthusiasm to work with you in these challenging times. 

 

 

 

 

Andy Mack  / Darren Wells 

Engagement Leads 

for Grant Thornton UK LLP 

“ 

” 

P
a
g

e
 1

4



© 2014 Grant Thornton UK LLP | February 2014 3 

Contents 

Contents 

How we brought you added value this year 4 

Supporting corporate governance 5 

Focus on financial resilience 6 

Welfare reform and alternative delivery models 7 

Our unique credentials 8 

National and local expertise 9 

Experience of Local Government issues 10 

Helping to address your challenges 11 

Your client service team 12 

Our fees 13 

The client names quoted within this proposal are disclosed on a confidential basis. All information in this 
document is released strictly for the purpose of this process and must not be disclosed to any other 
parties without express consent from Grant Thornton UK LLP. 

P
a
g

e
 1

5



© 2014 Grant Thornton UK LLP | February 2014 4 

How we brought you added value this year 

Governance and Audit Committee 

We: 

� provided independent external audit commentary and insight on your 
key issues through senior attendance at every Governance and Audit 
Committee and shared a LG publication to help members of local 
authority audit committees understand the financial statements and 
discharge their responsibilities as they review the accounts. 

� invested in regular dialogue with the Governance and Audit 
Committee to ensure there were no surprises and to maintain a robust 
and independent stance throughout our audit. 

� provided regular, timely and transparent reports from our work and 
briefing notes on key sector developments.  

We: 

� provided assurance on financial reporting and financial resilience 
by giving a timely audit opinion and value for money conclusion 

� shared our thinking on key issues, including issuing members and 
management with our annual reports on Governance and 
Financial Health (Tipping Point) and our reports on Pensions 
Governance, Alternative Delivery Models and Welfare Reform. 

� provided independent review  and assurance of  an issues raised to 
our attention by three local electors regarding uncollected debts 
following the cessation of Transeuropa ferry service.  

Council leadership 

1 

2 
3 

We: 

� ensured a smooth external audit process through regular 
dialogue and meetings to promptly discuss financial 
accounts opinion audit and other issues including WGA and 
grant certification work to ensure you submit accurate 
figures to central government.  

� shared technical knowledge, provided early warning on key 
risks and provided an opportunity to network with other 
Local Government bodies at our annual finance seminar 

� provided a 'sounding-board' for senior management on a 
range of governance issues during the period that the 
Council has had to operate without permanent 
appointments to the key roles of Head of Paid Service, 
Chief Finance Officer and Monitoring Officer 

� liaised regularly with internal audit to share knowledge and 
minimise duplication 

Council management 

P
a
g

e
 1

6



© 2014 Grant Thornton UK LLP | February 2014 5 

Supporting corporate governance 

Each year, we review good governance in Local Government 

as part of  our wider analysis of  UK governance practice. 

This complements our reviews on corporates in the FTSE 

350, the NHS and charities. We aim to help organisations 

improve their governance by learning from other sectors and 

their peers and to identify examples of  good practice and 

areas where there is scope for further development. 

Our national reviews of Local Government corporate governance include analysis of 
the financial statements and survey responses. We include insight from similar 
reviews we undertake at FTSE 350 listed companies, which allows us to promote the 
highest standards of good governance and public reporting. Some key highlights are 
set out opposite.  

We would be happy to engage with you during the year to benchmark your 
performance against the national group. In this way, you can benefit from good 
practice across our national Local Government client base. 

'National tools improve 

governance arrangements 

by giving a framework… 

but most of the work 

needs to be locally driven 

and locally responsive' 

 

Survey response 

One third of 

respondents said 

the annual 

governance 

statement failed to 

explain how the 

authority 

handled risks 

One third of survey 

respondents do not 

consider that 

council accounts are 

aimed at the public and 

the length and 

technical complexity 

makes them difficult to 

understand 

One third of respondents 

said their organisations 

do not actively engage 

with local communities 

about what 

 information they want 

on performance, finance 

and governance 

Download findings 

from our Improving 

Local Governance 

report from March 2014: 

http://www.grant-
thornton.co.uk/en/Public
ations/2014/Local-
Government-
Governance-Review-
2014/  

Councils need to 

instil clear risk 

leadership if they 

are to innovate 

successfully 

P
a
g

e
 1

7



© 2014 Grant Thornton UK LLP | February 2014 6 

Focus on financial resilience 

In the current challenging economic climate, we invest in 

providing enhanced analysis and reporting on your financial 

resilience. This includes a RAG rated assessment of  where 

you are performing well and any areas requiring increased 

attention. 

We reported the findings from our 2012/13 financial resilience review to the 
September 2013 audit advisory committee. Some key highlights from our work are 
set out opposite. Our national report on Local Government financial resilience was 
published in December 2013. It draws on the results of our assessment of financial 
resilience across all of our  Local Government bodies in England. Your plans to 
develop a radical new approach to setting the budget in 2015/16  were featured as a 
best practice case study within this report under strategic financial planning.  

We are also able to benchmark you against your peers to help support continued 
improvement. We can provide and discuss more detailed comparative data with you 
and consider what this means for your financial resilience, if that is of interest. 

Members need to 

contribute more 

positively to 

ensure strong 

financial 

governance. 

Good performance 

against your financial 

targets for the year. 

You face a significant 

challenge to deliver 

planned budget 

reductions in excess of 

£1m per annum for the 

next four years.  

Good financial 

control, including 

effective internal 

budget monitoring. 

These findings are as at September 2014, when our Audit Findings 

Report was presented to the Governance and Audit Committee. 

Download findings 

from our National 

Financial Resilience 

report from December 

2013: 

http://www.grant-
thornton.co.uk/en/Public
ations/2013/2016-
tipping-point-
Challenging-the-current-/
  

 

P
a
g

e
 1

8



© 2014 Grant Thornton UK LLP | February 2014 7 

Welfare Reform and Alternative Delivery Models in Local Government 

   
In 2013, we surveyed a sample of  39 clients in the local government sector 

and 44 in housing associations in England 

The report focuses on the governance and management arrangements being put in place nationally 
across the two sectors to deliver reform, the early signs of how successful the reforms have been and 
the upcoming issues and the risks on the reform agenda in the wider context of social impact. The key 
messages include: 

• There is evidence of a pro-active approach in addressing the current and future impact of welfare 
reform through effective communications with stakeholders 

• There is scope for closer working between local authorities, housing associations and other partners 
– including the NHS - to ensure that homelessness and disruption is minimised and that 
employment opportunities are maximised 

• The full impact of reform has yet to be felt; there is an element of calm before the storm 

Download findings from: 

our National Welfare 

Reform report from 

February 2014: 

http://www.grant-
thornton.co.uk/en/Publicati
ons/2014/Reaping-the-
benefit-First-impressions-
of-the-impact-of-welfare-
reform/  

Download findings from 

our Alternative Delivery 

Model report from  

January 2014: 

http://www.grant-
thornton.co.uk/en/Publica
tions/2014/Responding-to-
the-challenge-alternative-
delivery-models-in-local-
government/  

ative-
local-

In 2013, we surveyed a sample of  70 clients in the local government 

sector and identified nearly 40 different services they had externalised 

and provided under an alternative delivery model. 

This report  

• outlines the main alternative delivery models  

• aims to assist other authorities as they develop their options and implement innovation strategies  

• considers aspects of risk. 

 

P
a
g

e
 1

9



© 2014 Grant Thornton UK LLP | February 2014 8 

High Growth Index in Local Government     

In 2014, we issued a report on where growth happens in the local 

government sector in England. 

The report focuses on the high growth, dynamic growth and growth corridors. The key messages 
include: 

• High Growth – Our High Growth Index of places, based on economic and demographic measures, 
shows the pivotal role played by London in driving growth nationally and the role of cities for 
driving growth regionally. Outside London, Manchester is the strongest performer, with 
Birmingham, Milton Keynes, Bristol and Brighton and Hove all ranking in the top five. 

• Dynamic Growth – Highlighting  past areas of growth, however, may not necessarily be an 
indicator of future growth or sustainability. A dynamism index, ranked by assessing a basket of 
productivity drivers, indicates the quality of growth. The emerging picture shows that dynamism 
clusters around cities and their wider conurbations. Again, London leads, but is followed by 
Cambridge, then Reading, Manchester, Bristol, Oxford, Brighton and Hove, Milton Keynes, Leeds 
and Warrington.   

• Growth Corridors – Combining rankings for both growth and dynamism reveals a pattern of 
growth in England based around nine growth corridors. These are functional, large scale, economic 
areas which have been at the heart of growth over the last decade and are likely to maintain a pivotal 
role in shaping that growth in the future. Based around key cities, these corridors extend across 
district borders and create key strategic linkages with other high growth and dynamic areas. 

Download findings from: 

our Where Growth 

Happens report from 

Autumn 2014: 

http://www.grant-
thornton.co.uk/Global/Pub
lication_pdf/Where-growth-
happens-the-high-growth-
index-of-places.pdf
  

P
a
g

e
 2

0



© 2014 Grant Thornton UK LLP | February 2014 9 

Our unique credentials 

Overview 

You are an ambitious Council with a vision for regeneration and a 
sustainable community. We are proud to be associated with you. 
You are important to us and we are passionate about supporting 
you to achieve your strategic goals. 

As the largest supplier of external audit to local government in the country, we are 
uniquely placed to work with you and support you in achieving your goals. We 
understand the political and public sector environment you work in and the 
challenges and pressures you are facing. We have a genuine insight and 
understanding into your business and your needs, from our many decades of 
dedication working in the public sector and our longstanding commitment to local 
government.  

With Grant Thornton, you benefit from the full commitment of an experienced 
team that has worked together over many years and has a passion for helping you 
achieve your success. 

We believe in Local Government. All our Local Government specialist staff know 
and understand the unique issues faced by the Local Government bodies. We have 
the experienced resources available to meet your needs and support you in 
responding to the challenges you face. Our commitment to you is that we will work 
with you and help and support management and the Audit Advisory Committee in 
achieving your goals. We believe that with our extensive knowledge of the Council 
and our highly skilled and experienced local audit team, we are exceptionally well 
placed to support the Council over the next few critical years.  

At a national level, our extensive access to our wider audit practice,  
our networks with central government, local government and healthcare bodies and 

our focus on people as the driving force for quality and innovation set us apart. 
Grant Thornton benefits you by: 

� bringing its commitment to improving public sector financial and service 
management for the benefit of users 

� fielding local experts in the strategic and operational needs of the Council 

� sharing best practice, knowledge and up to date information from across local 
government, drawing on the knowledge gained from our unparalleled market 
share 

� delivering a high-quality audit focused on the specific issues facing London 
Borough councils. We audit more London Boroughs than any other audit firm 
and draw on the insights this provides us to tailor our work with you. 

At a local level, we offer you: 

� an audit team which understands the Council, its direction and objectives and the 
environment in which you operate, identifying areas where we can support you 

� an audit team which is not afraid to deliver difficult messages to you and provide 
robust challenge to management 

� a proven track record of delivering high quality audit work, working with you in 
partnership to deliver better services for local people. 

We are confident we can continue to meet your requirements for a 

comprehensive, efficient and effective external audit service. You will 

benefit from our relationship as you face the challenges of delivering a 

modern and customer focused service. We look forward to continuing our 

working relationship with you. 

Biggest  

UK CIPFA employer 

P
a
g

e
 2

1



© 2014 Grant Thornton UK LLP | February 2014 10 

National and local expertise  

National credentials 

� Through our Audit Commission framework contract, we have been external auditors 

to Local Government since 1982. Over this time, and based on the quality of our 

work, we have increased our  Local Government audit presence.  

� Following the outsourcing of the Audit Commission's in-house audit practice we are 

proud to be largest external provider of audit services to Local Government, serving 

40% of the market.  

� We are currently auditors to 138 Local Government authorities, 11 of which are 

London Boroughs.  

� We have audit staff on secondment to local authorities, helping our staff learn about 

local government from the inside out. We also train our  staff on the latest 

developments within Local Government. We also receive staff on secondment from 

clients. We would be happy to discuss secondment opportunities with you. 

� We also deliver a national programme of GT closedown workshops in partnership 

with CIPFA FAN; a joint approach which allows the opportunity for delegates to hear 

both the key accounting issues and the audit considerations for the accounts in one 

combined event.  

� We intend to deliver a series of Local Government Audit Committee conferences for 

Members, the first of which in the summer of 2014, to encourage better governance 

in Local Government.  

 

 

Local focus 

� Our London and South-East Public Sector Assurance team is made up of over 100 

dedicated local government and NHS external audit specialists with extensive skills 

and experience with local Government. The regional team undertakes external audit 

services for 11 London Boroughs, three County Councils, one Unitary Council and 23 

District Councils.  

� We have audited a number of other bodies over the last few years, and are currently 

auditing 21 NHS Trusts, 23 Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) and 5 

Foundation Trusts in the south east region. We therefore have extensive knowledge 

of partnership working across health and social care.  

� We work flexibly across our assurance and advisory teams. For example, we have a 

rolling programme of secondments into the advisory team, which gives our auditors 

the broader perspective that our clients appreciate. 

� We also have VAT, employment tax, real estate, infrastructure, governance, 

performance improvement and anti-fraud experts with significant experience of our 

current Local Government clients 

400+ 
Dedicated public 

sector staff 

138 
Local Government  

 audit clients 

All of this means that our Local Government clients can be assured of 

relevant expert knowledge and expertise to support them with current and 

forthcoming challenges. 

P
a
g

e
 2

2



© 2014 Grant Thornton UK LLP | February 2014 11 

Experience of  Local Government issues 

We have significant experience of  the local 

government sector, and are aware that this is a 

challenging period for Local Government.  

Challenges include the Welfare reforms, the introduction of joint social 
care, rising demand for services, demands for higher and more 
consistent quality of service, the reduction of central government 
grants, the localisation of funding and increasing financial pressures.  

Our experience, both locally and nationally, has enabled us to develop a 
number of audit and advisory services to support our clients in 
achieving their objectives. We set out opposite some of our areas of 
specialism: 

Regulatory 

requirements 

� Value-added assurance services; external audit; internal audit; governance 

reviews; financial reporting reviews; IFRS reporting; risk management 

including IT and systems assurance 

Governance � Advice on governance including: assessment of governance effectiveness 

and the roles, responsibilities and capabilities of individual directors, 

working with leaders and Members developing strategy 

Efficiency agenda � Operational services reorganisation; turnarounds; skills gap analysis; 

performance management; service and cost savings reviews; costing 

analysis and benchmarking; shared service project support; procurement 

support; treasury and finance department reviews 

Managing 

infrastructure 

� PFI work providing: bid evaluation; refinancing; feasibility studies; 

preparation of business cases; risk analysis and public sector comparator 

(PSC) development; development of payment mechanisms; financial 

modelling; and funding competitions  

Asset management � use of assets for regeneration, reviews of efficiency and cost in use; 

diagnostics of performance of inventory, evaluating and prioritising options 

and implementing rationalisation of assets.  

Major investments, 

mergers and 

acquisitions 

� Investment appraisals; business case support; investment due diligence; 

due diligence and advisory services  

Establishment of 

property trading 

arms and  

companies 

� assisting with procurement of development partners, structuring and 

establishing development vehicles such as Strategic Partnerships, Local 

Asset Backed Vehicles, and Joint Venture Companies 

Alternative Delivery 

Models 

� Outsourcing; quantitative data analysis and stakeholder interviews, bench-

marking results against our database of outsourced partnership activity 

Tax advice � Corporate and international tax; indirect tax; employer solutions 

P
a
g

e
 2

3



© 2014 Grant Thornton UK LLP | February 2014 12 

Helping to address your challenges 

Area of focus Your challenges Examples of how we have helped you and other Local Government bodies 

Optimise 

operations 

� Significant budget reductions - you face a significant challenge to 

deliver planned budget reductions in excess of £1m per annum for 

the next four years.  

� Shared services - you have a track record of successful shared 

service delivery through East Kent Services (EKS), collaborating with 

two other councils to deliver savings. There is scope to build on this 

by extending this approach to other services. 

� Effectiveness: You have an ambitious agenda for regeneration and 

transformational change to secure local growth and focus on service 

priorities. 

� Governance:  You are responding to issues identified in the recent 

LGA peer review regarding inappropriate Member behaviour through 

an independently chaired Improvement Board. 

� We review your arrangements for setting and monitoring your savings plans and 

assess whether they are realistic and feasible.  

� We review whether you have appropriate financial management arrangements and 

plans in place to tackle financial resilience in the longer term.  

� At other sites, we have facilitated workshops, leading to the generation of a 'long list' 

of long-term, sustainable savings and service redesign proposals which will feed in to 

future savings programmes.  

� We will assess your progress in addressing the issues identified by the peer review 

as part of our annual assessment of governance arrangements to support the value 

for money conclusion. 

Welfare 

Reform 

� Welfare Reform – changes to housing benefit and welfare reform 

continue to increase the rate of homelessness and demand for social 

housing. Changes include Welfare Benefit cap, under-occupancy 

adjustment (bedroom limit), Universal Credit and Direct Payments 

 

� Our 2014 report Reaping the Benefits draws on our experience and that of our 

clients to provide insight into the impact of welfare reform and will be the first in a 

series of updates that will contribute to understanding of these issues within the 

sector and provide a platform for sharing experience and good practice. 

Realise 

strategic 

ambition 

� Regeneration– your business plan includes a significant including a 

number of asset sales which will fund new capital expenditure.  

� You are aware of the complexities involved in this project and the 

Board seeks appropriate assurances that this will be effectively 

managed 

 

� We currently act as a commercial and financial advisor to a London Council 

undertaking a regeneration project which entails the phased demolition of 2,750 

council homes and the development of 4,200 mixed tenure homes over a 20 year 

period, plus the provision of a new health centre, community facilities and retail and 

office space. We developed a bespoke financial model to assess land assembly 

costs; appraise individual development sites and strategic infrastructure costs and 

timing; construct cash flows at a site and programme level; and appraise funding and 

phasing options.  

� We can introduce you to ‘the CEO Room’ – a structured, facilitated space that 

provides ‘a critical thinking environment for business leaders’.  

 

Your audit team will be happy to further discuss these and other 

challenges with you, and will involve relevant specialists where this is of 

value to you. 

P
a
g

e
 2

4



© 2014 Grant Thornton UK LLP | February 2014 13 

Your client service team 

We understand what you expect from us: an approachable, proactive, locally based and highly skilled team with access to a 

national network of  specialists and expertise as required.  

The existing team will continue to: 

� understand you and your priorities, and provide innovative and constructive advice 

� challenge you where necessary to support your continued improvement 

� be readily accessible and responsive to your needs but independent and challenging to deliver a rigorous audit 

� be connected into a Local Government network 

� communicate relevant information to you in a prompt, clear and concise manner 

Council team Grant Thornton core team 

� Responsible for setting the overall strategic direction of the 

Council 

 

Acting Chief Executive 

Madeleine Homer 

� Key contact for senior management and Audit Advisory 

Committee 

� Overall quality assurance of work performed by the team 

Engagement Lead 

Darren Wells 

Pool of public sector audit associates and other technical specialists (eg tax, VAT, IT audit) 

� Providing leadership on strategic financial decisions and 

Section 151 officer 

 

Interim Director of   

Corporate Services 

Paul Cook 

� Day-to-day management of key staff in the finance department 

� Overall leadership of the team producing the annual statement 

of accounts 

Corporate Finance Manager 

Matt Sanham 

� Day-to-day management of field staff working on site 

� First point of contact for general accounts queries 

� Responsible for overseeing Certification Instruction work 

 

Audit Executive 

Matthew Dean 

� Leads the committee in its oversight and assurance function 

� Committee receives reports of all audit work undertaken for the 

Council 

Chairman of Governance 

 and Audit Committee 

Councillor John Worrow 

� Corporate lead for accounts 

� Responsibility for production of the Council's financial 

statements 

Senior Accountant 

Linda Hogben 

� Audit planning 

� Resource management 

� Performance management reporting 

Manager 

Terry Blackman 

P
a
g

e
 2

5



© 2014 Grant Thornton UK LLP | February 2014 14 

Our fees 

Our fee proposal provides you with transparency and value 

for money. 

Our fees over the past two years and for the current year are set out in the chart to 
the right. These fees are set by the Audit Commission.  

We are committed to openness and transparency in our fee with you – now and in 
the future. . We know that you want an external audit that continues to offer a 
transparent fee structure which represents best value for money. 

To deliver against your needs our fee includes: 

• discounted rates – our position as the largest auditors to local government allows 
us to offer a discount on our usual rates 

• no hidden costs – the fee we propose is the fee we will charge (plus VAT) 

• investment in our relationship – the value in the core audit and the additional 
added value inputs we describe in this document are all included in the fee 

• certainty over fee levels year on year – we hold the fee for the duration of the 
contract, absorbing fee inflation through audit efficiencies 

• specialist, qualified staff - 100% of the time spent on the audit will be from 
qualified or part qualified staff, with over 60% from fully qualified staff, all 
specialists in working with local government 

• expenses are included – saving you the 5%-10% that may typically arise on a 
contract 

• no assumption of additional fee income – our external audit fee includes no 
assumption around you commissioning additional paid for services from us. 

0

20000

40000

60000

80000

100000

120000

140000

160000

Main audit Certification

2011/12

2012/13

2013/14

N.B. 2011/12 fees relate to the Council's previous auditor, the Audit 

Commission; 2013/14 certification fee yet to be finalised. 

P
a
g

e
 2

6



© 2014 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.  

'Grant Thornton' means Grant Thornton UK LLP, a limited 
liability partnership.  

Grant Thornton is a member firm of Grant Thornton International 
Ltd (Grant Thornton International). References to 'Grant Thornton' 
are to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms 
operate and refer to one or more member firms, as the context 
requires. Grant Thornton International and the member firms are 
not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered independently 
by member firms, which are not responsible for the services or 
activities of one another. Grant Thornton International does not 
provide services to clients.  

grant-thornton.co.uk 

P
a
g

e
 2

7



P
a
g

e
 2

8

T
h
is

 p
a
g
e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



 
 

 

 
INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT  
 
To:   Governance and Audit Committee: 10th December 2014 
 
By: Head of the Audit Partnership: Christine Parker 
 
Subject: INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT OF THE HEAD OF 

THE AUDIT PARTNERSHIP. 
 
Classification: Unrestricted 
 

 
Summary: This report gives Members a summary of the internal audit 

work completed by the East Kent Audit Partnership since 
the last Governance and Audit Committee meeting, 
together with details of the performance of the EKAP to 
the 30th September 2014. 

For Information 
 
  
 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 This report includes the summary of the work completed by the East Kent 

Audit Partnership since the last Governance and Audit Committee meeting, 
together with details of the performance of the EKAP to the 30th September 
2014. 

 
2.0 Audit Reporting 
  
2.1 For each audit review, management has agreed a report, and where 

appropriate, an Action Plan detailing proposed actions and implementation 
dates relating to each recommendation. Reports continue to be issued in full 
to the relevant member of Senior Management Team, as well as the manager 
for the service reviewed.  

 
2.2 Follow-up reviews are performed at an appropriate time, according to the 

priority of the recommendations, timescales for implementation of any agreed 
actions, and the risk to the Council. 

 
2.3 An Assurance Statement is given to each area reviewed. The assurance 

statements are linked to the potential level of risk, as currently portrayed in 
the Council’s risk assessment process. The assurance rating given may be 
Substantial, Reasonable, Limited or No assurance. 

 
2.4 Those services with either Limited or No Assurance are monitored, and 

brought back to Committee until a subsequent review shows sufficient 
improvement has been made to raise the level of Assurance to either 
Reasonable or Substantial. A list of those services currently with such levels 
of assurance is attached as Appendix 2 to the EKAP report. 

 
2.5 The purpose of the Council’s Governance and Audit Committee is to provide 

independent assurance of the adequacy of the risk management framework 

Agenda Item 6

Page 29



 
 

 

and the associated control environment, independent review of the Authority’s 
financial and non-financial performance to the extent that it affects the 
Authority’s exposure to risk and weakens the control environment, and to 
oversee the financial reporting process. 

 
2.6 To assist the Committee meet its terms of reference with regard to the 

internal control environment an update report is regularly produced on the 
work of internal audit. The purpose of this report is to detail the summary 
findings of completed audit reports and follow-up reviews since the report 
submitted to the last meeting of this Committee. 

 
3.0 Summary of Work 
 
3.1 There have been two internal audit assignments completed during the period, 

both of which concluded Substantial Assurance.  
 
3.2 In addition, four follow-up reviews have been completed during the period.  
 
3.3 For the six month period to 30th September 2014, 162.55 chargeable days 

were delivered against the planned target of 320.31 days which equates to 
50.74% plan completion. 

 
3.4 The financial performance of the EKAP is on target at the present time. 
 
4.0 Options 
 
4.1 That Members consider and note the internal audit update report. 
 

4.2 That the changes to the agreed 2014-15 internal audit plan, resulting from 
changes in perceived risk, detailed at point 5.0 of the attached report be 
approved. 

 
4.3 That Members consider (where appropriate) requesting an update from the 

relevant Director/s to the next meeting of the Committee in respect of any 
areas identified as still having either limited or no assurance after follow-up. 

 
4.4 That Members consider registering their concerns with Cabinet in respect of 

any areas of the Council’s corporate governance, control framework or risk 
management arrangements in respect of which they have on-going concerns 
after the completion of internal audit follow-up reviews and update 
presentations from the relevant Director. 

 
5.0 Corporate Implications 
 
5.1 Financial Implications 
  
5.1.1  There are no financial implications arising directly from this report.  The costs 

of the audit work are being met from the Financial Services 2014-15 budgets. 
 
5.2 Legal Implications 
 
5.2.1 The Council is required by statute (under the Accounts and Audit Regulations 

and section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972) to have an adequate and 
effective internal audit function. 

 

Page 30



 
 

 

5.3 Corporate Implications 
 
5.3.1 Under the Local Code of Corporate Governance accepted by Cabinet on 8th 

December 2013, the Council is committed to comply with requirements for the 
independent review of the financial and operational reporting processes, 
through the external audit and inspection processes, and satisfactory 
arrangements for internal audit. 

 
6.0 Recommendations 
 
6.1 That the report be received by Members. 
 
6.2 That any changes to the agreed 2013-14 internal audit plans, resulting from 

changes in perceived risk, detailed at point 5.0 of the attached report be 
approved. 

 

Contact Officers: 

Christine Parker, Head of the Audit Partnership, Ext. 7190 
Simon Webb, Deputy Head of Audit, Ext 7190 

Paul Cook,  Interim Director of Corporate & Regulatory Services 
& Deputy 151 Officer Ext. 7617 

 
Annex List: 
 

Annex 1 East Kent Audit Partnership Update Report – 10-12-2014 

 
Background Papers: 
 

Title Details of where to access copy 

Internal Audit Annual Plan 2014-15 
 

Previously presented to and approved at the 
20th March 2014 Governance and Audit 
Committee meeting 

Internal Audit working papers 
 

Held by the East Kent Audit Partnership  

 
 
 
  

Page 31



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank



ANNEX 1 
 

 
 

  
INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE REPORT FROM THE HEAD OF THE EAST KENT AUDIT 

PARTNERSHIP 
  
1.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
  
1.1 This report provides Members with an update of the work completed by the East Kent 

Audit Partnership since the last Governance and Audit Committee meeting, together 
with details of the performance of the EKAP to the 30th September 2014. 

 
2.0 SUMMARY OF REPORTS 
   

             Service / Topic Assurance level 

2.1 Receipt and Opening of Tenders   Substantial 

2.2 EKS – Housing Benefit Payments Substantial 

 

2.1    Receipt and Opening of Tenders – Substantial Assurance: 

 
2.1.1 Audit Scope 

 
To ensure that the Council’s procedures for the receipt and opening of tenders is in 
accordance with Contract Standing Orders and ensures the probity of the tendering 
procedure. 
 

2.1.2 Summary of Findings 
  
 All of the requisite internal controls have been established to ensure that Tender 

processes are undertaken in an open and transparent way. 
  
 The primary findings giving rise to the Substantial Assurance opinion in this area are 

as follows: 
 

• The procedures for the receipt and opening of tenders are in accordance with 
Contract Standing Orders. 

• Tenders are opened with minimum delay and only opened by employees with 
authority to do so. 

• Evidence exists which records who was responsible for the opening of tenders for 
each contract and a record is maintained of any tenders opened in the presence of 
elected Members. 

 

2.2      EKS Housing Benefit Payments – Substantial Assurance. 

  
2.2.1 Audit Scope 
  

Agenda Item 6

Annex 1

Page 33



ANNEX 1 
 

To ensure that the processes and procedures established by EK Services are 
sufficient to provide the level of service required by the partner authorities of 
Canterbury CC, Dover DC and Thanet DC and incorporate relevant internal controls 
regarding the payments of Housing Benefit.  
 

2.2.2 Summary of Findings 
 
 Housing Benefit payments are processed and administered by EK Services inline 

with the Social Security Contributions and Benefits Act 1992 and the Housing Benefit 
Regulations 2006. Housing Benefit payments across the UK totalled £23.8 billion 
during 2013/14, this accounts for almost 30% of the total welfare bill. It is therefore 
important that the controls in place are robust to ensure error detection and fraud 
detection controls are effective. 

 
 The primary findings giving rise to the Substantial Assurance opinion in this area are 

as follows: 
 

• Policies, processes and procedures are in place which supports the business 
objectives set out by EK Services; 

• Robust system based controls across all three Councils; and 

• Effective reconciliation routines in place. 
 
 The only scope for improvement identified was the need to align a few of the 

processes across the three sites to encourage a consistent approach across EK 
Services.  

 
3.0. FOLLOW UP OF AUDIT REPORT ACTION PLANS: 
  
3.1 As part of the period’s work, four follow up reviews have been completed of those 

areas previously reported upon to ensure that the recommendations made have been 
implemented, and the internal control weaknesses leading to those recommendations 
have been mitigated.  Those completed during the period under review are shown in 
the following table. 
  

Service/ Topic Original 
Assurance 

level 

Revised 
Assurance 

level 

Original 
Number 
of Recs 

No of Recs. 
Outstanding 

a) 
HMO and selective 
licensing 

Substantial Substantial 
H 
M 
L 

0 
2 
2 

H 
M 
L 

0 
0 
0 

b) Building Control Substantial Substantial 
H 
M 
L 

0 
2 
0 

H 
M 
L 

0 
2 
0 

c) EKS – Housing 
benefit Fraud 

Substantial Substantial 
H 
M 
L 

0 
2 
0 

H 
M 
L 

0 
0 
0 

d) EKS – Sundry 
Debtors 

Substantial Substantial 
H 
M 
L 

0 
3 
0 

H 
M 
L 

0 
0 
0 

 
3.2 Details of any individual High priority recommendations outstanding after follow-up 

are included at Appendix 1 and on the grounds that these recommendations have not 
been implemented by the dates originally agreed with management, they are now 

Page 34



ANNEX 1 
 

being escalated for the attention of the s.151 officer and Members’ of the 
Governance and Audit Committee. 

 
The purpose of escalating outstanding high-risk matters is to try to gain support for 
any additional resources (if required) to resolve the risk, or to ensure that risk 
acceptance or tolerance is approved at an appropriate level.   

 
3.3 As highlighted in the above table, those areas previously reported as having either 

Limited or No assurance have been reviewed and, in respect of those remaining at 
below Reasonable assurance, Members are advised as follows: 
 

 a)  
  
3.4  After the follow-up review has been completed by the East Kent Audit Partnership 

any recommendations which remain outstanding are tracked through the Council’s 
Policy & Business Planning team, via quarterly reminders, with an expectation that 
progress reports will be provided quarterly for all high priority matters. If the 
recommendations remain outstanding the tracking and reminders will continue for 
three years, which is the usual period between programmed internal audits. The 
current numbers involved and progress towards achieving currently outstanding 
recommendations is as follows: 

 

Service/ Topic Assurance 
level 

No of Recs. 
Outstanding 

a) HRA Business Plan – 2009/10 Substantial 
H 
M 
L 

1 
0 
0 

b) Your Leisure – 2012/13 
Substantial 

Limited 
Limited 

H 
M 
L 

1 
0 
0 

c) 
Business Continuity and Emergency Planning – 
2012/13 

Reasonable 
H 
M 
L 

0 
0 
1 

d) 
Officer Code of Conduct and Prevention of 

Fraud & Corruption – 2013/14 
Substantial 

H 
M 
L 

1 
1 
0 

e) Museums – 2012-13 
Reasonable

/Limited 

H 
M 
L 

1 
1 
0 

f) 
Partnerships and Shared Service Monitoring – 

2012-13 
Reasonable 

H 
M 
L 

0 
1 
0 

 
4.0 WORK-IN-PROGRESS: 
 

4.1 During the period under review, work has also been undertaken on the following 
topics, which will be reported to this Committee at future meetings: Leasehold 
Services, Equality and Diversity, Licensing, Tenant Health & Safety, Sports 
Development and Footprints in the Sand, Payroll, and Tackling Tenancy Fraud. 

 
5.0 CHANGES TO THE AGREED AUDIT PLAN: 

Page 35



ANNEX 1 
 

 
5.1 The 2013-14 internal audit plan was agreed by Members at the meeting of this 

Committee on 20th March 2014. 
 
5.2 The Head of the Audit Partnership meets on a monthly basis with the Section 151 

Officer or their nominated representative to discuss any amendments to the plan. 
Members of the Committee will be advised of any significant changes through these 
regular update reports. Minor amendments have been made to the plan during the 
course of the year as some high profile projects or high-risk areas have been 
requested to be prioritised at the expense of putting back or deferring to a future year 
some lower risk planned reviews. The detailed position regarding when resources 
have been applied and or changed are shown as Appendix 3. 

 
6.0 FRAUD AND CORRUPTION: 
  

There are no known instances of fraud or corruption to bring to Members attention at 
the present time. 

 
7.0 UNPLANNED WORK: 
 

There was no new unplanned work arising during the period quarter to bring to 
Members attention at the present time.  

 
8.0 INTERNAL AUDIT PERFORMANCE  
  
8.1 For the six month period to 30th September 2014, 162.55 chargeable days were 

delivered against the planned target of 320.31 days which equates to 50.74% plan 
completion. 

  
8.2 The financial performance of the EKAP is on target at the present time. 
  
8.3 As part of its commitment to continuous improvement and following discussions with 

the s.151 Officer Client Group, the EKAP has established a range of performance 
indicators which it records and measures. The performance against each of these 
indicators for 2013-14 is attached as Appendix 5.  

  
8.4 The EKAP audit maintains an electronic client satisfaction questionnaire which is 

used across the partnership.  The satisfaction questionnaires are sent out at the 
conclusion of each audit to receive feedback on the quality of the service.  Current 
feedback arising from the customer satisfaction surveys is featured in the Balanced 
Scorecard attached as Appendix 4. 

 
 Attachments 

  
 Appendix 1  Summary of High priority recommendations outstanding after follow-up. 
 Appendix 2  Summary of services with Limited / No Assurances 
 Appendix 3 Progress to 30th June 2014 against the agreed 2014-15 Audit Plan. 
 Appendix 4  EKAP Balanced Scorecard of Performance Indicators to 30th June 2014. 
 Appendix 5  Assurance statements  

Page 36



 
 

SUMMARY OF HIGH PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS OUTSTANDING AFTER FOLLOW-UP – APPENDIX 1 

Original Recommendation 
Agreed Management Action , 

Responsibility and Target Date 
Manager’s Comment on Progress 

Towards Implementation. 

None to Report this Quarter 

P
a

g
e
 3

7



 
 

SERVICES GIVEN LIMITED / NO ASSURANCE LEVELS STILL TO BE REVIEWED – APPENDIX 2 

Service 
Reported to 
Committee 

Level of Assurance Management Action Follow-up Action Due 

Absence Management June 2013 Limited  
On-going management action 
in progress to remedy the 
weaknesses identified. 

As part of a planned audit in  

2014-15 

EK Services – Change Control June 2014 Limited 
On-going management action 
in progress to remedy the 
weaknesses identified. 

2014/15 

Waste Vehicle Fleet 
Management.  

September 2014 Reasonable/Limited 
On-going management action 
in progress to remedy the 
weaknesses identified. 

Winter 2014 

FOI, Data Protection and 
Information Management   

September 2014 
Reasonable/Limited/ 

Limited 

On-going management action 
in progress to remedy the 
weaknesses identified. 

Winter 2014 

 

P
a

g
e
 3

8



 
 

PROGRESS TO DATE AGAINST THE AGREED 2014-15 AUDIT PLAN – APPENDIX 3 
 
THANET DISTRICT COUNCIL: 
 

Area 
Original 
Planned 

Days 

 
Revised 

Budgeted 
Days  

 

Actual  
days to  

 30-09-2014 

Status and Assurance 
Level 

FINANCIAL SYSTEMS: 

Car Parking and Enforcement 10 10 0.17 Work-in-Progress 

Creditors and CIS 8 8 0.17 Work-in-Progress 

Income 10 10 0.24 Work-in-Progress 

Insurance and Inventories of 
Portable Assets 

10 10 0.17 Work-in-Progress 

RESIDUAL HOUSING SERVICES: 

Right to Buy 8 8 0 Quarter 4 

HRA Business Plan 10 10 5.69 Substantial/Reasonable 

GOVERNANCE RELATED: 

Fraud Prevention 10 10 0 Quarter 4 

Anti-Money Laundering 6  6 5.83 Finalised – Substantial 

Complaints Monitoring 10 10 0.17 Work-in-Progress 

Scheme of Officer Delegations 7 7 0 
Postpone to 2015-16 to 

accommodate unplanned 
work 

Corporate Advice/SMT 2 2 1.75 
Work-in-progress 

throughout 2014-15 

s.151 Officer Meetings and Support 9 9 5.11 
Work-in-progress 

throughout 2014-15 

Governance & Audit Committee 
Meetings and Report Preparation 

12 12 7.92 
Work-in-progress 

throughout 2014-15 

2015-16 Audit Plan and Preparation 
Meetings 

9 9 0.41 Work-in-progress 

CONTRACT RELATED: 

Receipt and Opening of Tenders 6 6 5.89 Finalised - Substantial 

SERVICE LEVEL: 

Community Safety 10 10 0 Quarter 3 

CCTV 10 10 0.34 Work-in-Progress 

Dog Warden, Street Scene and 
Litter Enforcement 

10 10 0 Quarter 4 

Equality and Diversity 10 10 4.56 Work-in-Progress 

Page 39



 
 

Area 
Original 
Planned 

Days 

 
Revised 

Budgeted 
Days  

 

Actual  
days to  

 30-09-2014 

Status and Assurance 
Level 

Airport and Port Health 10 0 0 
Delete and replace with 

overtime review 

Pest Control 10 10 6.01 Finalised – Substantial  

Contaminated Land, Pollution, Air 
and Water Quality 

8 8 8.18 Finalised – Reasonable 

Dalby Square and Housing 
Intervention Grants 

10 10 0 Quarter 4 

Land Charges 8 8 8.36 Finalised – Substantial 

Licensing 10 10 0.24 Work-in-progress 

Printing and Post 5 5 7.77 Finalised - Substantial 

Your Leisure 10 10 0 Quarter 4 

Sports Development and Footprints 
in the Sand 

8 8 1.67 Work-in-progress 

Waste Vehicle Fleet Management 12 12 11.44 
Finalised – 

Reasonable/Limited 

Garden Waste Income 5 5 0 Quarter 4 

OTHER : 

Liaison With External Auditors 2 2 0.38 
Work-in-progress 

throughout 2014-15 

Follow-up Reviews 15 15 7.07 
Work-in-progress 

throughout 2014-15 

UNPLANNED WORK: 

Overtime Review 0 10 35.34 Work-in-progress 

FINALISATION OF 2013-14 AUDITS: 

Days under delivered in 2013-14 0 20.31 0 Completed 

Procurement 

5 5 

11.29 Finalised - Substantial 

Planning 10.19 
Finalised – 

Substantial/Reasonable 

Tackling Tenancy Fraud 3.09 Work-in-progress 

Budgetary Control 0.58 Finalised - Substantial 

Payroll 2.6 Work-in-progress 

Employee Benefits-in-Kind 0.94 Finalised – Reasonable 

FOI, Data Protection and 
Information Management. 

8.9 
Finalised - 

Reasonable/Limited/ 
Reasonable 

EK HUMAN RESOURCES: 

Absence Management 5 5 0.08 Work-in-progress 

Page 40



 
 

Area 
Original 
Planned 

Days 

 
Revised 

Budgeted 
Days  

 

Actual  
days to  

 30-09-2014 

Status and Assurance 
Level 

Payroll 5 5 0 Quarter 3 

Employee Allowances and 
Expenses 

5 5 0 Quarter 3 

TOTAL - THANET DISTRICT 
COUNCIL RESIDUAL DAYS  

300 320.31 162.55 
50.74% Complete                    
as at 30-09-2014 

UNPLANNED ADDITIONAL WORK 

Interreg Grant – Maritime (Yacht 
Valley) 

4 4 3.18 
Work-in-progress 

throughout 2014-15 

Interreg Grant – LOPINOD 4 4 2.77 
Work-in-progress 

throughout 2014-15 

Interreg Grant – PAC2 4 4 0.07 
Work-in-progress 

throughout 2014-15 

Empty Homes Cluster Grant 0 0.5 0.54 Finalised  

 
EAST KENT HOUSING LIMITED: 
 

Review 
Original 
Planned 

Days 

Revised 
Planned 

Days 

Actual 
days to   

30-06-2014 

Status and Assurance 
Level 

Planned Work: 

Audit Ctte/EA Liaison/Follow-up 8 8.5 2.96 
Work-in-Progress throughout 

2014-15 

Finance & ICT Systems 10 0 0 Postpone until 2015-16 

Tenant Health & Safety 17 30 27.93 Finalised 

Void Property Management. 15 18 0 Quarter 4 

Sheltered Housing 30 0 0.2 Postpone until 2015-16 

Finalisation of 2013-14 Audits: 

Leasehold Services 0 21 21.5 Work-in-progress  

Rent Collection and Debt 

Management 
0 2.5 2.36 Finalised - Reasonable 

Days under delivered in 2013-14 0 0 -0.32 Completed 

Total  80 80 54.63 68.29% at 30-09-2014 

     

Additional Days purchased with 

saving from 2013-14 
0 8.1 0 

Allocated to Leasehold 
Services Audit 

 

Page 41



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
EK SERVICES: 
 

Review 
Original 
Planned 

Days 

Revised 
Planned 

Days 

Actual 
days to   

30-06-2014 

Status and Assurance 
Level 

Planned Work: 

Housing Benefits Admin & 
Assessment 

15 15 6.11 Work-in-progress 

Housing Benefits Payments 15 15 4.59 Finalised - Substantial 

Council Tax  30 30 0.27 Work in progress 

Customer Services 15 15 0.27 Work in progress 

ICT File Controls / Data Protection / 
Back ups 

12 14 0.34 Work in progress  

ICT Internet & Email 12 18 17.64 Finalised - Reasonable 

ICT Physical & Environment 12 14 0.20 Work in progress 

Corporate/Committee/follow-up 9 9 5.31 
Work-in-progress throughout 

2014-15 

DDC / TDC HB reviews 40 40 9.44 Ongoing 

Finalisation of 2013-14 audits: 

Housing Benefit Verification 0 5.15 4.59 
Completed 

 

2013/14 reviews to be completed 0 16 14.62 
Completed 

 

Total  160 191.15 63.38 
33% Complete                    

as at 30-09-2014 

Page 42



 

APPENDIX 4   
BALANCED SCORECARD – QUARTER 2 

 

INTERNAL PROCESSES PERSPECTIVE: 
 
 
 
 
Chargeable as % of available days  
 
 
Chargeable days as % of planned days 

CCC 
DDC 
SDC 
TDC 
EKS 
EKH 

 
Overall 

 
Follow up/ Progress Reviews; 
 

• Issued 

• Not yet due 

• Now due for Follow Up 
 
 
    
Compliance with the PIAS for Internal 
Audit Standards 

2014-15 
Actual 

 
Quarter 2 

 
84% 

 
 
 

46% 
55% 
56% 
51% 
33% 
68% 

 
51% 

 
 
 

26 
25 
30 
 
 
 

Partial 

Target 
 
 
 
 

80% 
 
 
 

50% 
50% 
50% 
50% 
50% 
50% 

 
50% 

 
 
 
- 
- 
- 
 
 
 

Full 
 
 

FINANCIAL PERSPECTIVE: 
 
 
Reported Annually 
 

• Cost per Audit Day  
 

• Direct Costs (Under EKAP 
management) 

 

• Indirect Costs (Recharges from Host) 
 

• ‘Unplanned Income’ 
 

• Total EKAP cost  

2014-15 
Actual 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Target 
 
 
 
 

£312.86 
 

£392,980 
 
 

£19,990 
 

Zero 
 

£412,970 

P
a

g
e
 4

3



 

APPENDIX 4   
BALANCED SCORECARD – QUARTER 2 

 

 
CUSTOMER PERSPECTIVE: 
 
 
 
 
Number of Satisfaction Questionnaires 
Issued; 
 
Number of completed questionnaires 
received back; 
 
 
Percentage of Customers who felt that; 
 

• Interviews were conducted in a 
professional manner 

• The audit report was ‘Good’ or 
better  

• That the audit was worthwhile. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2014-15 
Actual 

 
Quarter 2 

 
 

44 
 

12 
=27% 

 
 
 
 

100% 
 

100% 
 

100% 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Target 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

100% 
 

100% 
 

100% 
 

 
INNOVATION & LEARNING 
PERSPECTIVE: 
 
Quarter 2 
 
 
Percentage of staff qualified to relevant 
technician level 
 
Percentage of staff holding a relevant 
higher level qualification 
 
Percentage of staff studying for a relevant 
professional qualification 
 
Number of days technical training per 
FTE 
 
Percentage of staff meeting formal CPD 
requirements 
 
 

       
 

 
2014-15 
Actual 

 
 
 
 

88% 
 
 

43% 
 
 

25% 
 
 

2.68 
 
 

43% 
 
 
 

 
Target 

 
 
 
 
 

75% 
 
 

32% 
 
 

13% 
 
 

3.5 
 
 

32% 
 
 
 

P
a

g
e
 4

4



 

 

Appendix 5 

  

AUDIT ASSURANCE 
 

Definition of Audit Assurance Statements 
 
 

 Substantial Assurance 
 
From the testing completed during this review a sound system of control is currently being 
managed and achieved.  All of the necessary, key controls of the system are in place.  Any 
errors found were minor and not indicative of system faults. These may however result in a 
negligible level of risk to the achievement of the system objectives. 
 
 
Reasonable Assurance 
 
From the testing completed during this review most of the necessary controls of the system 
in place are managed and achieved.  There is evidence of non-compliance with some of the 
key controls resulting in a marginal level of risk to the achievement of the system objectives. 
Scope for improvement has been identified, strengthening existing controls or 
recommending new controls. 
 
 
Limited Assurance 
 
From the testing completed during this review some of the necessary controls of the system 
are in place, managed and achieved.  There is evidence of significant errors or non-
compliance with many key controls not operating as intended resulting in a risk to the 
achievement of the system objectives. Scope for improvement has been identified, 
improving existing controls or recommending new controls.  
 
No Assurance 
 
From the testing completed during this review a substantial number of the necessary key 
controls of the system have been identified as absent or weak.  There is evidence of 
substantial errors or non-compliance with many key controls leaving the system open to 
fundamental error or abuse.   The requirement for urgent improvement has been identified, 
to improve existing controls or new controls should be introduced to reduce the critical risk. 
 

Page 45



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



 

   
QUARTERLY PROGRESS REPORT ON THE CORPORATE RISK REGISTER 
 
To: Governance and Audit Committee – 10 December 2014 
 
Main Portfolio Area: Corporate Resources 
 
By: Technical Finance Manager  
 
Classification: Unrestricted 
 
Ward: Not applicable 
 

 
Summary: To provide Governance and Audit Committee with Quarter 2 

progress report on the Corporate Risk Register. 
 
For Information 
 

 
1.0 Introduction and Background 
 
1.1 This report provides Governance and Audit Committee with an update on the Corporate 

Risk Register (CRR).  
 

1.2  Members were given a copy of the CRR at their meeting on 24 September 2014 and were 
advised to keep a copy of the CRR as part of their Governance and Audit Committee 
Guidance Packs, so that they can refer to it in future. 

 
2.0 The Current Situation 
 
2.1 Corporate Risk Register 
 
2.1.1 Attached at annex 1 is Quarter 2 progress report on the CRR.  The items covered in the 

report are: 
 

2.1.1.1  Section 1 – Risk Ratings 
 

Officers who are risk owners have provided members with an update on 
the latest position with their risk. 

  
2.1.1.2   Section 2 – Time-bound Control Measures (TCA) 
 

Officers who are TCA control measure owners have provided members 
with an update on the latest position with their control measures. 
 
Control measures which are business as usual or day-day work (BAU) will 
be reported on at year end. 

 
2.1.1.3   Section 3 - Changes to the CRR  
 

Changes to the CRR which have been approved by Councillor Liz Green, 

the Cabinet Member designated as the Council’s Risk Management 
Champion. 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 8

Page 47



2.1.1.4  Section 4 – Officer List 
 

Provides name and designation of risk and control measure owners. 
 

3.0 Options 
 
3.1 That Members note the content of annex 1, Quarter 2 progress report on the CRR and 

identify any issues on which they require more clarification. 
 
4.0 Corporate Implications 
 
4.1 Financial and VAT 

 

4.1.1 Whilst the CRR includes a comprehensive review of corporate financial risks, there 
are no financial implications for the recommendation required by this report. 

 

4.2 Legal 
 

4.2.1 Whilst the CRR includes consideration of legal matters in as far as they relate to risks 
to the council, there are no legal implications for the recommendation required by this 
report. 

 

4.3 Corporate 
 

4.3.1 The CRR sets out how the Council will seek to control the risks it faces. The 
approach suggested is in accordance with the requirements of the Council’s 
constitution and agreed Risk Management Framework. 

 
4.4 Equity and Equalities 
 

4.4.1 There are no equity or equalities issues arising from this report.  The risk register 
identifies a number of activities designed to control risks and these will each need to 
be assessed for equality impact in their own right. 

 
5.0 Recommendation(s) 
 
5.1 That Members note the content of annex 1 and identify any issues on which they 

require more clarification. 
 
6.0 Decision Making Process 

 
6.1 This recommendation does not involve the making of a key decision and may be taken by 

the Governance and Audit Committee. 
 
 

Future Meeting if applicable: 
G&A – Quarter 3 Progress Report 

Date: 
17 March 2014 

 

Contact Officer: Nicola Walker, Technical Finance Manager  DDI 01843 577236 

Reporting to: Paul Cook, Director of Corporate Resources, DDI 01843 577617 

 
Annex List 
 

Annex 1 Quarter 2 progress report on the Corporate Risk Register 

 
  

Page 48



 
Background Papers - NA 

 

Title Details of where to access copy 

  

 

Corporate Consultation Undertaken 
 

Finance Matthew Sanham, Corporate Finance Manager 

Monitoring Officer / Legal Steven Boyle, Interim Legal Services Manager & Monitoring 
Officer 

 

Page 49



Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank



����������	
���	�
�������������	�����

�����������������

�����������	
��
������ 
 ��

��	
�

A
g
e
n
d

a
 Ite

m
 8

A
n
n
e
x
 1

P
a

g
e
 5

1



Section 1 Risk Ratings

(Provides details of changes to risk ratings with comment)

Section 2 Time-bound Control Measures

(Provides details of progress made with implementation of time-bound control measures.)

Section 3 Changes to the Corporate Risk Register

(Lists any changes made which have been approved by the Risk Management Champion.)

Section 4 Officer List with Designations

�����������	
��
������ � ��

��	
�

P
a

g
e
 5

2



Section 1 Risk Ratings

���� �����	
�	� ����

�����������

�	������	�

��������	���

���	�

����������

�	������	� ������

��������������
�	���	�����

� !"

��������#�������������
�	���

�����	�����	���������	���

 ����!	��	���"���$� !"%�

	�
���	����&������!��'�

��
	����"��	�����(���	��

��)�����������$(��%

����'�"��� (	�� "��� ���	���(	�� "�*� ���	���(	�� "�*� +���������������������	������	��

������*���,��������	����	���

�����	��� !"�)��	�	�-

�����*��� !"�����.,������/���

����
�����	����������������

�,��������	����	���

�����	��� !"�)��	�	�-

����'�"��� (	�� "��� ���	���(	�� "�*� ���	���(	�� "�*� +���������������������	������	��

���� �����	
�	� ����

�����������

�	������	�

��������	���

���	�

����������

�	������	� ������

���*�����!������������������


�	��	�	��������������������

/������
��/����

��*�����!������������������


�	��	�	��������������������

/������
��/����

����'�"��� (	�� "��� ���	���(	�� "�*� ���	���(	�� "�*�

+����������������0������-���������

�	�������	����)	����,����"�*'�#�1����"�*'�#�2�

���� �����	
�	� ����

�����������

�	������	�

��������	���

���	�

����������

�	������	� ������

���2�����"�������	
��,�	�����

���	)���,�������	��	��
�	�

��2�����"�������	
��,�	�����

���	)���,�������	��	��
�	�
����'�"��� (	�� "��� (	�� "��� ���	���(	�� "�*�

+�"�������	
����
�������	������/��	�
�����������

������	����	������	����������������-
����,�


�������	
���

��������������������	������	��

�����	����.�!	��	����	,,	����	��������������� �����	���	�-������	�����������	����
	���

��*��	����.�!������������������
�	��	�	��������������������/������
��/����

��2��	����.�!�	�������,�
�������	
�����	�

�����������	
��
������ � ��

��	
�

P
a

g
e
 5

3



���2��*��"�������	
��,�	�����

���	)���/��������,�������-������

���-�������

��2��*��"�������	
��,�	�����

���	)���/��������,�������-������

���-�������

����'�"��� (	�� "��� (	�� "��� ���	���(	�� "�*�

+�"�������	
����
�������	������/��	�
�����������

������	����	������	����������������-
����,�


�������	
���

��������������������	������	��

���� �����	
�	� ����

�����������

�	������	�

��������	���

���	�

����������

�	������	� ������

���1������	����,�	3��-��������

(������4�0�,��-�,�	�	��

��1������	����,�	3��-��������

,�	�������������	��

��
�	����

(������4�0�,��-����	�	���,���

����

0���'����� (	�� "��� ���	���(	�� "�*� ���	���(	�� "�*�

+������������������	���������	�	,	������/����,�

���������	�
��������������������������,��-'�

	����	��(40���
��,�����������)	�������'�	�������

����������/����,��	������	������������������

����	���� �	��	���������	������/����,���-�

���������)	����	.�����'�������������
����	����


����������/����� �	��
��������	�������)�����,�

�	��������������,������-
����,������/�	��

��������'���	����)��	�����������	���

�)	�������,,����/���������	���	��������

��)��	�-��,����	���������	����/���������������

	��/�	����������	��������������(40�

����	����'��	�����,������������-�������	����

�,,���	)��(40�����������������������)�����,�����

����	���	��

���1��*��!�	�����������	�)��5!��

��������
�����������������

��1��*��!�	�����������	�)��

)�����,������-�$5!�%���������


�����������������

"���'�

6���
(	�� "��� ���	���(	�� "�*� ���	��.7�� "�2�

+������	���,�,	��	�����
��	�-��,���

�	����


��)	�	�����	�����������	��8������,�9:;6����

���������������������������	������	���/��

��������������-�	��
�	���"��������	���/��

"����������
���������	������	���,����
�����

���
��)	�	�����������,	����,������-�	���#�

���
�����,������	�	�����
������������������

�	�	�����
��������	��	���)���
���

���1��2��#��,,	�	�����,�����

���	���,����

��1��2��#��,,	�	�����,�����

���	���,����
����'�"��� (	�� "��� ���	���(	�� "�*� ���	���(	�� "�*� +���������������������	������	��

��1��	����.�!�	������,��

��
�	���������	�/���/��	�������		�����	��
����	���

�����������	
��
������ � ��

��	
�

P
a

g
e
 5

4



���1��1���	,,	����	���	�


�	��	�	���	�

��1��1��#�/	�	�-����
�	��	�	���

�,,���	)��-�������������	)��-�

�,��������������������	�����/��

���������	�
�����

(����'�

�����	�
(	�� "��� ���	���(	�� "�*� ���	���(	�� "�*�

+�����/	��<�� ����-���-������
��������2�

�������*��1'�������	��	����������,���,�������

,������������
����*��='���	�������/�	��

	���������	������)	���
��	��� ���������

>)	�����<"�����

>����	����)���
����

(���	��

�����	���	��

 ���	���	��	����������
�	����������
���������

�8	��	��������
������"�	��	�	���/������
��)	�����

��������,�����,������,,'�����	�����'�����
������

����	���	�����������	����
�/�	��� ���	���	��

	��������������������,�,������	������
����������

�8	��	�����
������"���
�	��	�	����������������

����� �����5	�	��*�2��

���1��;��!�	������,�#� ��-�����<�

	,�����������

��1��;��!�	������,�#� �

�-�����<�	,�����������
����'�"��� ���	���(	�� "�*� ���	��.7�� "�2� ���	��.7�� "�2�

+�?��	�������	�	�-�"����������-�/�	��

�
�������

��������������������	������	��

���1��=��#���@�����	,�����	��

���������
����	���

��1��=��#���@�����

	,�����	�����������


����	���

�����	��'�

0�
�	�
���	���(	�� "�*� ���	���(	�� "�*� ���	��.7�� "�2�

+� �	���������/���
��������������������.�����

�	�������/�����	����������

���1��:��>������-�
��	��

,�	����

��1��:��>������-�
��	��

,�	����

(��/��'�

�	��
(	�� "��� ���	���(	�� "�*� ���	��.7�� "�2�

+�>������-�"���	���������-�,	��,���
��
�������

�	���/���
������	�*��;��!���	����>������-�

"����������	����
�����������
������	���

��

����,����6����������-�
��	�����,,��

0�)��������		����������	)��)	�� ������,,�

�����������	��-����	����	��#�������

>������-�"��	�'�#�	����7	�	������

0�����	���	��"�����	���>������-����	)��	��

�-�������������������������������	����	��

-�������	���	)��	�	������ �������	�A����)����,�

���	�	�������/��	�
��)����������������

,���������������	���,�������������		���,������

���,,����	����������	�	����� �	���	���/����,�����

��)	��	����8��-����

�����������	
��
������  ��

��	
�

P
a

g
e
 5

5



���1��B��?��	�������	�	�-�


��	��,�	����

��1��B��?��	�������	�	�-�


��	��,�	����

C	�'�

(���
���	���(	�� "�*� ���	���(	�� "�*� ���	��.7�� "�2�

+� ����������?��	�������	�	�-�"��������������

	�����0
�	���

"���������
���������
�������#�	����

��������������
������	���-��

"����*�0��)	�����������
����	���������-���	��

����������
�����������
���������	�����,���������

������
����������������� �����	���
����	�������

/����)	�����	����������������-����

�,,	�����	)��)���	�/����?��	�������	�	�-����

>������-�"��	�����������		��

����	��	����/-�����6������	�	���� �����#�


���	��������	��-����7	���,,	����,���?��	����

���	�	�-����������������		����#�������	��

����	)	��"������	���������)��	��,����

>������	��'����������������������0�� �

>8���	���

 �����	��
�����,�����>����6���>������-�

"��	��4�?��	�������	�	�-�&���
���	���	��

,��	�	������/-�����6������	�	���� �����

���/����	
�	)��)�������2�>����6���������

������	�	��'�>6(����>60�

���1��D����	���
������	��	�����

��1��D���

����	�	������


��)�������������	���������

�	�����/-����,,��,� ������	���


������'������	���������

�������-��������/-����,,��,�

 ������	���
������

�������'�

����-
���	���(	�� "�*� ���	��.7�� "�2� ���	��.7�� "�2�

+���������	���,������������
��	�-�����/���

��/������	��������0�,�����	��/���������

������������
�����������������-�	�
���������

,���-��
����	�����

C���	����������)	����,�0�,������	��������	���

	��������	���"������	������	���/����
���	�����

�� �	����-�����

0��,,��	������)��/����
������������������,�

�?0�������������������-��	�����������-�

����	������/�	�����������
������?0�
�
�������

,������������,,���@�	�	���������

�����������	
��
������ � ��

��	
�

P
a

g
e
 5

6



���� �����	
�	� ����

�����������

�	������	�

��������	���

���	�

����������

�	������	� ������

���;��������	�������)���-

��;��������	�������)���-�

	�
���������������	�A���/	�	�-�

������	�)��	����/3���	)��

 ���
�'�

(���
(	�� "��� ���	���(	�� "�*� ���	���(	�� "�*�

+�"�����		������������	�����������/����

#����	�� ��		��,�����	�����������	��	���-��

"��
�����,����#�
��)�����?��������
�	��	�	���

��	�����
�����,�����
���������,����		���#�����

����	��'������-�"���
���������	����	����� �

�����/	�������	�	��������	���	����

���;��*������������8
�����	��<�

������������/������/-�����

����	�

��;��*�����������

�8
�����	��<�������������

/������/-���������	�

����'�"��� (	�� "��� (	�� "��� ���	���(	�� "�*� +���������������������	������	��

���;��2��7���������������

��@�	����	�����)�������	������,�

���������

��;��2��7���������������

��@�	����	�����)�������	�����

�,����������

?�-��'�

0��)�
���	���(	�� "�*� ���	���(	�� "�*� ���	���(	�� "�*�

+� �����������-���3���
��3��������
������/�	��

���������/-���������	�������������������-�

,	��	���	�
�	���	����C�	��������������/�	��

������������������
���	/������-��������/��

,��������	��������������,��-�
��3�������������	��

	���������
��
���-�

���� �����	
�	� ����

�����������

�	������	�

��������	���

���	�

����������

�	������	� ������

���=�����"��/������������/-�

���������)������
��	�	������


����	���

��=�����"��/������������/-�

���������)������
��	�	������


����	����
��)�����������	��

,�������	�)	��	�����
	���	�

(����'�

�����	�
(	�� "��� ���	���(	�� "�*� ���	��.7�� "�2�

+� ���� !"���� ���,�����	��������$!����

�	�������	�	���	���	�E�*��>60���8	�	�	��

�

����	�	��E�2��"�������	
������������$>����

>����6���"�������	
%����1��F�	��)������������

�

����	�	���������������	�����
��
���-�

���)	���%�	��	����������	�	����������,,������,�

&�)���������	�	�����	��/-������	����

���	�	���,	��	���,������� ����	��	�������������

����/��	���������-�������	�)�������,.����		��

,	��	���,���	��

��=��	����.�"��/����������	�����
��	�	���������������	��
��������������������� �����	���	�-

��;��	����.��	�������/����������	����������������������������8
�����	��

�����������	
��
������ � ��

��	
�

P
a

g
e
 5

7



���=��*��#�,,���	)�������	���	
��

/������ ������6��

��=��*��#�,,���	)��

�����	���	
��/������ ������

6��

(����'�

�����	�
(	�� "��� ���	��.7�� "�2� ���	��.7�� "�2�

+�?��������7�������,�6������ ���������6���

7�������

?���������>��,�6������ ���������6�����	�,�

>8����	)���

 ������6����������/�����,����� �����

��������	��?����'����#)���� ������

6�������	)��)���	�������������G)�������

C	����&���������������	������������	���

6��A���	��������,�>����	����)���
����

���=��2��"�/�	���	����������

,����������������	��
������

��=��2��"�/�	���	����������

,����������������	��
������

?���'�

&��
���	���(	�� "�*� ���	���(	�� "�*� ���	��.7�� "�2�

+��	������	������	������������ �����	�����	��

������������-��������	�
�/�	���	����������

��������)�������������������	��
�������

���=��1���	,,	����	���,�����/-�

���/����	��������		�����	���,�

��������	�

��=��1���	,,	����	���,�����/-�

���/����	�����-	����������

���		�����	���,���������	�

(����'�

�����	�
(	�� "��� ���	���(	�� "�*� ���	��.7�� "�2�

+� ���#�
��)�����?������������/���

����/�	����������)���
	�������	��"�����	���

��)����	������	���	,	���	�����"������)	������

��)	����,�����������,�����#�
��)�����?������	���

�����
������,����������*��;�/-��������
������

"��,���������)	���C���	��"���-�

���� �����	
�	� ����

�����������

�	������	�

��������	���

���	�

����������

�	������	� ������

���:�����0��,,���
��	�-�	�����

��:�����7�����,������	�������,,�

	������	����
��������������

�	����	������������)	��������

	���@�����-���)��������

�	�����$��
��	�-%

(����'�

�����	�
���	���(	�� "�*� ���	���(	�� "�*� ���	��.7�� "�2�

+�>,,���	)�����)	���
��	�����
��,�������

�

��	����4���)���
����
�����������/���

	���������

C������	�
�����	��������������,��������,�

���)	���$(�0%�����	���	������������������

���
�������������������C	���(�0����
�����������

��������'���	����������� ����,��������������	��

	������

(�0��	������	�������

��	������,,	��

��@�	������������,��������)	������	)��-����	)	�-�

���	������� ���,�����	��������

��:��	����.�!�	���������������,,��,,���	)��-<�,�	��-<��

��
�	����-

�����������	
��
������ � ��

��	
�

P
a

g
e
 5

8



���:��*��0��,,���
�/	�	�-�	�����

��:��*��!�	�������������	���

���������	������,,��	�	���	���

�

��
�	����-��������

�����	����	��	����)	���

���	)��-�$��
�/	�	�-%

(����'�

�����	�
���	���(	�� "�*� ���	��.7�� "�2� ���	��.7�� "�2�

+���C���,�����0������-�	��/�	����)���
����	���

����(��?��	����"������

 ���
��,��������

��	����4���)���
����


��������	���	���	,-����		�������<���	�����
��

�����������
��,�������	�
��)�����
����,���

	�	)	������� �	��
��������	����@�	
������������

	���	,-���
��	���	�����)�������
��,�������

���	)��-'��������	,-�����,���
��)	�	���,�

�

��
�	�����������������������
�/	�	�-�	������

���� �����	
�	� ����

�����������

�	������	�

��������	���

���	�

����������

�	������	� ������

���B�����0��)	���,�	��������

�������

��B�����0��)	���,�	��������

�������

(����'�

�����	�
���	���(	�� "�*� ���	��.7�� "�2� ���	��.7�� "�2�

+�������������������	���������	���	,	���	��

�,��

��
�	�����������	��
��	��

����������������������	���	)	�����	�����	��

����������	)����������,������	)��	�����)	���'�

��	�������������,,	�	��������������

���������������	�����	��	��/�	���	)���������

��)����	�����������"��	������ �������	���

���������-������/������������)������)	���������'�

�����������	���	���6�������������	���	�������

�8
�����,�������������<���/	������)	���

������������

��,���������������8	�������������,,���	)��������

���������	������������������������	�/	�	�	����

 ��������������������	����,����)	���,�	�����

��B��	����.�0��)	��������������,�	����

�����������	
��
������ � ��

��	
�

P
a

g
e
 5

9



���� �����	
�	� ����

�����������

�	������	�

��������	���

���	�

����������

�	������	� ������

���D�������3���
��3����,�	�����

$�������������'���������

(���	��#���)��	�%

��D�������3���
��3����,�	�����

$�������������'���������

(���	��#���)��	�%

(����'�

�����	�
���	���(	�� "�*� ���	���(	�� "�*� ���	��.7�� "�2�

+����������3���
��3�����	������

����������(������,� �������)��/����������

�	����������./�����0����(��	�����7���'���	���

��/3�����������������	��	��'�������������������

����
��������,�����	��	��������������������


����� ����	��������������	���������������

�	�	,	����-��	�����������
����������	������	��

������

(���	��#���)��	��$(#%�0������� ����	���	��

������������(#��������(���	����

���	������


����������	���6�����)������������������������

����������	)��
�	��	�	���� ���(�����4�

�����	�	�������-�$(��%�	����	�����

���	������


����������(���)��'���,�������	�������	���,�

������,�,��	�E��������	��	�����������	��

,���������������	����
�	��	�-��

0�����	)��7	���	���#	�	����8
�����	�������3����

�����	�������	�������)�����	���,������8	��	��

�������$��	�������	��
�	��*��=%'�������	��

��@�	�������	� �����

��D��	����.�!�	�������������	�	�
��)������,����������$��������	�%

�����������	
��
������ 
	 ��

��	
�

P
a

g
e
 6

0



���D��*����3��� �������
��-���

���	)�������������<����

	)�������	� ����

��D��*����3��� �����

��
��-������	)��������������

����������	��	)�������	�

 ����

(����'�

�����	�
���	���(	�� "�*� ���	���(	�� "�*� ���	��.7�� "�2�

+� �������������������	�����	)����������	��

����	������#�����#)�������0������-�

"����?��/��'��,��	���)��-�"����4����	�����,�����

#)���� �����?�����$
��)	����-� �����

��������	��?����%�	��,�����	�����������	��

�����	)������'����	)������'�	��� ������6�-�

�	���,���#)���� �����	�����������	�����������

�������,���)���������������'������������

�������	��
�	)�����������	)�������	����8	��	��

���
�	������
������	���)����������
�	���

����������������������

6�-��	����	��������������	�
�������������

����������
��
��	���	8���������)���
���E�

 �����"�����-'�	����6�����������6���	������	��

�����@�	���������������������/�	��	���,���	��

����	��	���3���	���	�������������	�����������


������E�������	��
�	)�����������	�������	�

������?��	����"����

���D��2���������	� ����A��

�������
�-�������	������	�


��	�

��D��2���������	� ����A��

�������
�-��������

���	������	�
��	��,�������

,�����

(����'�

�����	�
���	���(	�� "�*� ���	���(	�� "�*� ���	��.7�� "�2�

+� ���(���	��#���)��	��0������	����)	����

	�
�������	��� !'�����(������4�C���/�	��?�����

���#)���� ������

� !�����/��������������������� ����E� ������

 �����"��	�����)������.�������� �����0�,��-�

�	��

(������4�C���/�	��?������	������	�
��)���������

��������/-�,��	�	��������	�����������	��

#)���� �����?�������������
�����	������	���

���	�������	�����	)�������	��� ������

��������	��"��3���������������	��/������


����
�	����,���������E���	���	������
�����	�	�����


��/������	�������������	����-����	)��


�
����	����	����	����� ������C���	�����

��������/��	�������	����	,,�������	���

��@�	���������������	)���/�����������<�����	������

	�
��)�����������������-�

�����������	
��
������ 

 ��

��	
�

P
a

g
e
 6

1



���D��1��������	�/���

��)���
���<������,������	����

��)���
���

��D��1��������	�/���

��)���
���<������,������	����

��)���
���

!	��'����	 (	�� "��� (	�� "��� ���	���(	�� "�*�

+��������-'��	���������
������������
����

"��	��!���������$7�����"��'������	�-�

#,������������7�)-�����%������	�����)���	���	����

 ���7�����"�������#7��������/�	�����	)��-�


���������������������
�	������	�����	���	����

�������)��	������������������
������� ����	����	���

�������������	��-����/����������,�����	��

���
�	��

�����������	
��
������ 
� ��

��	
�

P
a

g
e
 6

2



Section 2 Time-bound Control Measures

������������������� �����	
�	�

�	�����,,������/-���	���������

������� ����

0�����

���� ��������

>���<�

�������>��

���� H���� 0���� ������

+��������������
�	���	�����

� !"

+������*���,�������

�	����	��������	��� !"�

)��	�	�-

+��������������
�	���	�����

� !"

+������*���,�������

�	����	��������	��� !"�

)��	�	�-

+������*���,�������

�	����	��������	��� !"�

)��	�	�-

+���*�����!������������������


�	��	�	��������������������

/������
��/����

+���1��1���	,,	����	���	�


�	��	�	���	�

+���=��2��"�/�	��

�	����������,��������

��������	��
������

������H ���
�����

+�!����
�	��	�	�������	�?������

0������-��;<�D��

��

����	�	���	���	��

*��>60���8	�	�	���

����	�	���

2��"�������	
������������$>����

>����6���"�������	
%�

1��F�	��)�������������

����	�	���

������������	�����
��
���-%

���*DD���)	���

����	���	����4�

����������
������

����	���,,	����������

�	��	����	��
�����

�	��������������������

��)	����,�����	���	����

�������������
���������

������������,,	���������

����	���	��	����	��


�����

?�-��'�0��)� F��.�1 ���.�1 ���.�; �����H #�"�������

+�������������)��/���	���	,	���,����

����7&��������	����	�����	���������

#�
��)�����?������	����)������

���*;;���)���
�����-�

�,���,		��
�	��	�	��

��)���
�����-��,���,		��


�	��	�	������I,���������

����������/��J'�	��	���

���	,���������8��

���
������
��

����'�"��� F�.�1 ���.�; ���.�;

�

��)��

���*=D�>����������

/��������)	�������
�

	���	,	������
������"���

"�	��	�	��

>����������/��������)	���

����
�	���	,	������
������

"���"�	��	�	���

0����'�

�������
F��.�1 ���.�1 !�/.�; ;����H

+��C����������?������	��������-�

�������	�����)��/������������

�	�������?��������)	�������
'�

������	��	���/�������?������/�	��

����������/	���	���)��/����

�!�����������	�����������������

/������������!�/����-����������

�-���������������	�������,��������	�


�	������,	�����
����������� !"�/�	��

������������	��	�!�/����-�

�����������	
��
������ 
� ��

��	
�

P
a

g
e
 6

3



������������������� �����	
�	�

�	�����,,������/-���	���������

������� ����

0�����

���� ��������

>���<�

�������>��

���� H���� 0���� ������

���*2B����
����������

����������������-�4�


���$����4�/�	��	��%

���
����������

����������������-����


���$�������/�	��	��%�

�	����	���������������.


���-����/���

����	�����

+���*�����!������������������


�	��	�	��������������������

/������
��/����

������-'�

>��	�
F�.�1 0�
.�1 ��).�1 ������H ���
�����

+� �������������������-�����/���

���
������������
����/-���/	���	�

��)��/���*��1

+����
������"��
���-�������0������-�

���
�����'���
��������������-����/��

��)	�����/-��)��)	�����������	-�


����	�����/��'�
�	��������/	���

���
�	��	���)��/���

���*12���)	����,�����

��
�������������,���


����4��@�	
���������

	�����
��������)	��

����-�������)	�����,�����

��
�������������,�������

������	�	������,�����	�J��


��������@�	
���������

	�����
��������)	��'����

�������������
	����/	���

������/�	�����	,�

��
��������	����@�	����

�	��	������8��,	)��-����'�

��������,	��	���
��)	�	��

���/�������

+���*�����!������������������


�	��	�	��������������������

/������
��/����

C�	��'�&�)	 F��.�1 ���.�; �
�.�; 1����H �

��)��

+�� �	��������������������	��1�H�

���
����'�������@�	�������,���

��
������������	,,������	����,�


����4��@�	
����,�������

,���������
�����,��������)	���

��)	���	�
���������
���
������

��

 �	��������	���/�����
������/-��
�	��

*��;����
	��������������-�/���

���������������

�������������)	���

������

���*11���)	���

��
�������������,���


����4��@�	
���������

	����-��	�'�������4�

�����	�

����-�������)	�����,�����

��
�������������,�������

������	�	������,�����	�J��


��������@�	
���������

	��������-��	�'����������

�����	�����)	���'����

�������������
	����/	���

������/�	�����	,�

��
��������	����@�	����

�	��	������8��,	)��-����'�

��������,	��	���
��)	�	��

���/�������

+���*�����!������������������


�	��	�	��������������������

/������
��/����

C�	��'�&�)	 F��.�1 ���.�; �
�.�; :����H #�"�������

+�� �����)	����,�)��	������
��������

��@�	�������,������-��	�����������

�������/������
�����'�������	����	���

������������������	�����������-�

��
��������
�������������������

�
����	������@�	��������,�����

,������������)	�����)	���
������-�

/�	�����������.����������������-�

����:�H����
�����

��

 �	��������	���/�����
������/-��
�	��

*��;�����
	��������������-�/���

���������������

�������������)	���

������

���*==�>���������	��

�������������)	�����,���

���@�������	������

/�������������	�

>���������	�������������

��)	��������������������

��	��������@�	������

	�����	������	���/������


��)	�	��

+���*�����!������������������


�	��	�	��������������������

/������
��/����

����'�"��� F�.�1 ���.�; ���.�; ;����H #�"�������

+�����������������0������-����

��/	����2���)��/���*��1����*����

/����/������,�����
	����������;<�=�

�������

�����������	
��
������ 
� ��

��	
�

P
a

g
e
 6

4



������������������� �����	
�	�

�	�����,,������/-���	���������

������� ����

0�����

���� ��������

>���<�

�������>��

���� H���� 0���� ������

���*=:�>�����(���

���������������

�������-����
���	��	�


����

>�����(���������

����������������-����


���	��	�
����

+���*�����!������������������


�	��	�	��������������������

/������
��/����

C����'�

 �-�
F��.�1 ���.�; ���.�; ;���H #�"�������

+�#�
���������,��)�����	������

)��	����
	������,������������)��/���

�	���	���������(��������������	��

�	���>6(���
����,�������������


��
���-�	�
��)�����

���*B*�"������	���,�


��
���-���	������

����������,�������	��

"������	���,�
��
���-�

��	����������������,���

����	��

+���*�����!������������������


�	��	�	��������������������

/������
��/����

C����'�

 �-�
F��.�1 ���.�; ���.�; ����H #�"�������

+�C���	���	���>6(���
������	���,�


��
���-���	����������������

+���2�����"�������	
��,�	�����

���	)���,�������	��	��
�	�

+���2��*��"�������	
��,�	�����

���	)���/��������,�������-������

���-�������

���*1D����	��4�

	�
��������
�������	
�

������	������
����

���	����
�������	
�

������	������
�����

$���������,�����

�-��,�

���)	���������	)��)�������

����	���	������,������

�������%'���	����
�	��

/-��� ����
���������

��������

+���2�����"�������	
��,�	�����

���	)���,�������	��	��
�	�

�����	��'�

0�
�	�
F��.�1 0�
.�1 !�/.�; �����H #�"�������

+��	��������,����
����������������	�

����
��������,���)	�	���	������
�����

���*1������-�������)	���

�

�-	������
�������	
�

���
���������8	��	��


�������	
�

����-�������)	����

�-	��

����
�������	
����
�����

����8	��	��
�������	
��

$���������,�����

�-��,�

���)	���������	)��)�������

����	���	������,������

�������%�

�����	��'�

0�
�	�
�
�.�1 ���.�; ���.�; �����H #�"�������

+��	��������,����
����������������	�

����
��������,���)	�	���	������
�����

�����������	
��
������ 
 ��

��	
�

P
a

g
e
 6

5



������������������� �����	
�	�

�	�����,,������/-���	���������

������� ����

0�����

���� ��������

>���<�

�������>��

���� H���� 0���� ������

���*:2�>���������


�������	
����
�����	��

	�
�������

>���������
�������	
�

���
�����	��	�
��������

���������������


�������	
��/3���	)�������

	,������/-��������

�)	�����/����/�,�������-�

�����������/-� ��E������


��
���������/3���	)���

����������-�����������

�	���������
����������,���

�	���������E���������

��)�����������������

$	����	�������������

,�����
���	��
�����������


��,������%�����������-�

����������

+���2�����"�������	
��,�	�����

���	)���,�������	��	��
�	�
����'�"��� F��.�1 ���.�; ���.�; ����H ����0������

+�0�	�������	�����/������.�������	����

	������,�����������,��-
����,�


�������	
�$����	G����-����,	�����%�

���*1�����������

�	�	��������������

�8��������

�	����������

������������K�9:;'����

����������	�	�����

����������8������

��

�	��������������

��������)������8������

9:;'����

+���1��*��!�	�����������	�)��

5!����������
����������

�������

0����'�

�������
�
�.�1 ���.�; ���.�; ����H #�"�������

+�"	�����,������/�	��������������

��)	���
������'��	���/��,��������	����


�����,���	�'����������������

�	��������

�����������������	��,��������

�������

���*B;�"��)	������,,�

������/������		����

,����

"��)	������,,�������/���

���		����,����

+���1��2��#��,,	�	�����,�����

���	���,����

0����'�

�������
F�.�; !�/.�; !�/.�; ����H ����0������

���������	���

�������	������

��

���������	���	��	��

�����������	
��
������ 
� ��

��	
�

P
a

g
e
 6

6



������������������� �����	
�	�

�	�����,,������/-���	���������

������� ����

0�����

���� ��������

>���<�

�������>��

���� H���� 0���� ������

���*;����)���
���������

��������	���,�

���/���
�	��	�	������

�����	�������	�

��)���
���������

��������	���,����/���


�	��	�	������

�����	�������	���������

����	���	�����	���

������������

+���1��1���	,,	����	���	�


�	��	�	���	�

(����'�

�����	�
F��.�1 ���.�1 ���.�1 =����H #�"�������

+������/	��<�� ����-��-������
�����

���2��������*��1'�������	��	�

���������,���,�������,������������

��

>)	�����<"�����

>����	����)���
����

(���	��

�����	���	��

��

 �������)�����/�����������	���

�������,����)	���,�����������	������	�

���)	���
��	���

��

 ���	���	��	����������
�	��������

��
����������8	��	��������
������

"�	��	�	���/������
��)	�������������

,�����,������,,'�����	�����'�����
������

����	���	�����������	����
�/�	���

 ���	���	��	��������������������,�

,������	������
�������8	��	��

���
������"���
�	��	�	����������

����������� �����5	�	��*�2���

��

 �	���	���/�������	�������	���

����������*:���)��/�����������8��

"��,�������?���������	������,,������

���	����,��� <���,,�/�	�,	������	���	�

����-������/���

���*;:���)���
���

�����
�	��	�	���	��


������

��)���
��������


�	��	�	���	��
���������

���������������	����-�

/�������������
������


��'����)	���
�������

�������	���/3���	)���

+���1��1���	,,	����	���	�


�	��	�	���	�
(����'����	� ���.�1 0�
.�; 0�
.�; ����H C	������

�	�������	������������	���	���/��/�	���

	����
�����,��������
������
���


�������

�����������	
��
������ 
� ��

��	
�

P
a

g
e
 6

7



������������������� �����	
�	�

�	�����,,������/-���	���������

������� ����

0�����

���� ��������

>���<�

�������>��

���� H���� 0���� ������

+���1��;��!�	������,�#� �

�-�����<�	,�����������
+���=��2��"�/�	��

�	����������,��������

��������	��
������

���*=B�>�����	.������

��,���������		��������

���������������/-�

A�8
����

>�����	.��������,������

���		������������������

�����/-�A�8
����A���������

��@�	���������������

/��	����,���,������

���������������

+���1��;��!�	������,�#� �

�-�����<�	,�����������

�����	��'�

0�
�	�
F�.�; ���.�; ���.�; ����H ����0������

���������	���

���������

��

���������	���	��	��

���*2D����
�����

����������������������

��)�����A��������,�

��������������

����
����-�

���
�����������

����������������

��)�����A��������,�

��������������

����
����-�

+���1��=��#���@�����

	,�����	�����������


����	���

�����	��'�

0�
�	�
�
�.�1 ���.�; ���.�; ����H ����0������

+� ��		�����
���������	,�����	��

�	����	����������������/-�

�������������������>��������

 �����!�������	
������/��
��)	����/-�

&���?����$
��3��������%

���*1B����	)������		��

�������	,�����	��

���������
����	���

���	)������		���������

	,�����	�����������


����	���'�	����	��@���	�-�

����

��
�	�������

+���1��=��#���@�����

	,�����	�����������


����	���

�����	��'�

0�
�	�
���.�1 ���.�; ���.�; ����H ����0������

���������	���

���������

��

���������	���	��	��

���*BD���.	��������

��������
	����-��

$�������	�������������


�
���,	�	�%�

��.	��������

��������
	����-��

$�������	�������������


�
���,	�	�%�

+���1��=��#���@�����

	,�����	�����������


����	���

�����	��'�

0�
�	�
�
�.�1 ���.�; ���.�; ����H ����0������

+��������
��	������,����.�����

�	�������/�����	����������

+���1��:��>������-�
��	��

,�	����
+���1��B��?��	�������	�	�-�


��	��,�	����
+���=��2��"�/�	��

�	����������,��������

��������	��
������

+���:�����0��,,���
��	�-�	�����

�#�1��B����	��	��
.��.

�����?��	�������	�	�-�

"���

0�

���������	
���

�/3���	)��E����	�������

���;D:��1

+� �	������������������	���/��

	�
�����������
�����,���������,�����

�������-����
��	����������������

��������/����	������	���������������

��3��	�-��,�*��;�

���*=1�>,,���	)��07��	�


������	���>60�,���#� �

���)	����

>,,���	)��07��	�
������	���

>60�,���#� ����)	����
����'�"��� �
�.�1 ���.�; ���.�; �����H #�"�������

+�7&���������������	��	�������

��)	���#� �����������E�
���������

�������������)��/���*��1�

���.�; ����H #�"�������

���22����	��	��
.��.

�����?��	�������	�	�-�


���

+���1��B��?��	�������	�	�-�


��	��,�	����
C	�'�(��� �
�.�1 ���.�; ���.�; :;���H #�"�������

+� ���?��	�������	�	�-�
���	��/�	��

�
�����������,����������������������

����	�������/����)	�����	��������

��������-����

���*;D���)���
����

	�
���������������	��

���������
���

��)���
����	�
��������

�������	�����������


���

&�����-'�

�����	�
�
�.�1 ���.�;

�����������	
��
������ 
� ��

��	
�

P
a

g
e
 6

8



������������������� �����	
�	�

�	�����,,������/-���	���������

������� ����

0�����

���� ��������

>���<�

�������>��

���� H���� 0���� ������

���*1;�������

���
�	�����	����.

����	���������,������

��������

���������
�	�����	����.

����	���������,������

��������

+���1��D����	���
������	��

	�����

&�����-'�

�����	�
F�.�1 0�
.�1 ���.�1 ����H ����0������

+����	�	����,	����	��,��������

0�,������	��7�����������������	��

������������������	�������������

���
�����	��

���*1=����
�����6���

0�,������	����	����J��

���,.����������

�������

���
�����6���

0�,������	����	����J��

���,.�����������������

+���1��D����	���
������	��

	�����

�������'�

����-
��-.�1 ���.�1 F�.�1 ������H ���
�����

���������	���

���������

��

���������	���	��	��

���*BB���.����/�	���

���
�������"�����	����

��.����/�	������
�������"�

����	����

+���1��D����	���
������	��

	�����

�������'�

����-
0�
.�1 F�.�; F�.�; *����H #�"�������

+���������	��,������)	����,���	���


������	������	������,������	��

	����������	���
��
������
����,����� �

������	��������-�	����-�����

��

���������������
�������	�������)���
�

A0�,������	������
	��A�	���-�

��
�������������	���
���������"�

����������������	������������	����

�	�����������#�����-��	���/��)	������

����
��	���
���	/�-�����������

����	��
���-�����

���2����
������"�

	,�����	���� ��

�
������"�	,�����	����

 ��

+���1��D����	���
������	��

	�����

�������'�

����-
0�
.�1 F�.�; F�.�; 1����H #�"�������

+���	������������������	���

�������	�
�������/���,����

����������	���/�������,�����	��

��)	����

���2�*��
����� ���

���,,��	���,���������

��@�	�	���?0�������

�
����� ������,,��	���,���

��������@�	�	���?0�������

+���1��D����	���
������	��

	�����

�������'�

����-
F�.�1 ���.�; ���.�; ������H ���
�����

+�������	���>����6���(�������)	�	����

�������,,��?0��	���,�����	������

�������������

��

����
����������������������
�������

������-��

��

;�������,,�/�	�����	����������	��

�?0��

�	���	������������/������

/��	�������	�	�-�	�����	���

+���;��������	�������)���-

+���=��1���	,,	����	���,�����/-�

���/����	��������		�����	��

�,���������	�

���*B1�"��)	������	��

���		������������/����

"��)	������	�����		�����

�������/����

 ���
�'�

(���
0�
.�1 ���.�= ���.�= ����H ����0������

+� ��		�����������,�����	������

�����	��.���-�*��;�

�����������	
��
������ 
� ��

��	
�

P
a

g
e
 6

9



������������������� �����	
�	�

�	�����,,������/-���	���������

������� ����

0�����

���� ��������

>���<�

�������>��

���� H���� 0���� ������

���*D����)	����������

�,������	���	�����

�8���������������

��)	�����������,�

�����	���	������8������

�����������������������

����	��������	���������


���,���	�
��)�����

+���;��*�����������

�8
�����	��<�������������

/������/-���������	�

C	����'�

F���	�
0�
.�1 ���.�; ���.�; *;���H #�"�������

+�C�/���)	���	��������-�����
�	�	G��

��	���������	������
�/	�	�	������

	�
��)��������������)	�������������

�)�	��/����������

���*1:����	����

�

����	�	���,���

�����	�����)	���������

����������
���������

�,����)	�����)	����

���	�����

����	�	���,���

�����	�����)	���������

����������
����������,�

���)	�����)	����

+���=�����"��/������������/-�

���������)������
��	�	������


����	���

����'�"��� F�.�1 ���.�; ���.�; ����H C	������

+����	�	�����������������
������

��	����������,����	�)	����)	�����

�������������������������	���

���)	�������/��	����
����������

	���	,-���)	���	��	���	����-�

��)	�����������������������	��

���*:;�>���/�	���

,���������,���/�	��	��

�����	���	
�/������

��������	�����������

�"��

>���/�	���,���������,���

/�	��	�������	���	
�

/��������������	�����

�������"��

+���=�����"��/������������/-�

���������)������
��	�	������


����	���

(����'�

�����	�
F��.�1 0�
.�1 0�
.�1 ������H ���
�����

+���������-�����	�����)������-��

�����
������	����������"�'�	��	��


��
����������)����	��������?���

���*:=�>8
������
�	���

��������	��������������

���)	����

>8
������
�	������

�����	��������������

���)	����

+���=�����"��/������������/-�

���������)������
��	�	������


����	���

����'�"��� F�.�1 ���.�; ���.�; *����H #�"�������
+�����,������������,���� !"���������

	�?������0������-��;.�D�

���*D;�������
�	��

���	�������
���	�	
��	��

	�������������	��


�������

������
�	�����	�������


���	�	
��	��	�����

��������	��
�������

+���=��2��"�/�	��

�	����������,��������

��������	��
������

C	����'�

F���	�
���.�2 ���.�; ���.�; D����H #�"�������

+�����8���	)�'����������������	��

���
�	������	��������)������,���

����	�������	���,�#�	)	�����>���������

���	�����	����	��-�����!�������

������	���	���/�����������	�����

������
�������������	���	���-�*��;�

���*1*�����-�������)	���

�,�����������������	���

��������

����������	������

����	�

�	������=��1������-�����

��)	����,��������������

���	�����������

����������	������

����	�

+���=��1���	,,	����	���,�����/-�

���/����	��������		�����	��

�,���������	�

?�-��'�0��)� F��.�1 ���.�; ���.�; *����H #�"�������

+� �	��	��/�	����)	�����������������

#�
��)�����?��������������	�������

�����������,��������7&��

���*B��#�����������

������������	���

$,�����	������	��

���	�	�%

#��������������������

���	���$,�����	������	��

���	�	�%

+���=��1���	,,	����	���,�����/-�

���/����	��������		�����	��

�,���������	�

?���'�&�� F��.�1 ���.�; ���.�; ����H C	������

+��	�������	������������� ���

���������A>�����������������	���,�

��������	���	������)	���C���	��

"���-�A�� �	��C"�������,�����	������

-���'����	�����������	��������	������

�
���������������������	�������

�����������	
��
������ �	 ��

��	
�

P
a

g
e
 7

0



������������������� �����	
�	�

�	�����,,������/-���	���������

������� ����

0�����

���� ��������

>���<�

�������>��

���� H���� 0���� ������

���*B=�"��)	������		��

,����������/������

���	�����	
����

����	����������

"��)	������		��,�������

���/���������	�����	
�

�������	����������

+���=��1���	,,	����	���,�����/-�

���/����	��������		�����	��

�,���������	�

?���'�&�� F��.�1 ���.�; ���.�; ����H ����0������

+� ����������,���	�����	��	��/�	��

��)	��������
�����,�����"������)	���

���	��
���

���*D����)	����
�	���

,���	�
��)	��

���
����-��,�

���	�����	
<)	��.

���	�����	
�
����

��)	����
�	���,���

��@�	�	�����	����

��	
<)	��.���	�����	
�


��������/�������	��������

������������)��/�������

���	�����	
����		�

+���=��1���	,,	����	���,�����/-�

���/����	��������		�����	��

�,���������	�

?���'�&�� F��.�1 ���.�; ���.�; ����H ����0������

+�� �	���	���/�����	������/-�����

���/���#����	��
���������� ���

����	�����0��)	������������	�����	���

����� ������,,����� �������������

����	��	���8���������		��


��)	��������
�����,�����	����	��


��������'��������	�����������

���	�	�����������-�����	�����

���	�	����	�����

��

 �����	���������	�������������


���������������
���,�L�������-L�

���		�����
�����,�����
���.�����	��

���		��
����������(���)��'�	���

�	�������������������������/��

�,�����/�����������������	����� ���

���	�����,����������	����������

���������/-�)�����������	�'����,���

�������/-�)����������	��,	��������	���

	�����-�����

��

0��������	�������	��������)��-�����-�

�'������	����-�
��)���������	�����

���	)�����������)������		��
�	������

��������	���������������/�����	�����

��

������������'�����	���/�	���������

��
	���	���	������	������	�����

��)���
�������	)��-�
����,�������

	����	����
���.�����	��
��	��'�

��/3��������� ����	������,��	��

�)�	��/���,����������	�	�������		����

���	�	����	�����

�

�����������	
��
������ �
 ��

��	
�

P
a

g
e
 7

1



������������������� �����	
�	�

�	�����,,������/-���	���������

������� ����

0�����

���� ��������

>���<�

�������>��

���� H���� 0���� ������

���*D1���)	�������

�,,	��������/���


�������

��)	��������,,	�����

���/���
�����������

���	��������	)���

���		�<�����������	�	��

,������,,�������/���

+���=��1���	,,	����	���,�����/-�

���/����	��������		�����	��

�,���������	�

(����'�

�����	�
F��.�1 ���.�; ���.�; �����H #�"�������

+��C�����������������������

���/��<�,,	����
�������'���	�������

#�
��)�����?�����	��

�������-����	���	����

��

����	�����)�������
������	�������

7�����<��	�,�>8����	)�����&��)������

?��������-������������������
������


������������������������������	��

���/��<�,,	����"������������/���
���

,����������/����
����	���/-�����7&����

��

 ���#�
��)�����?�������)����

���	�����	���	,-�����������	������
�

,��������#�
��)�����?�������������

�	���������	���	���,,	���'���������

����������/��<�,,	����
����������#��

7���	��$���	���,�#�
��)�����?�����4�

,��������	�,�>8�����,�������	���	���

����	�%�	��������������	����

���/��<�,,	����
�������������������

!�����	���)��/���*��1���

��

��������	��0��)	������������	���/��

��	�����		������	�����

��������	����������	���	��	�

������,���������������	�-�������

/�����	���

���*=2���)���
�
������

/�	���
��3�������


���������

�����������
�/	�	�-�

$"������)	��%�

��)���
�
������/�	���


��3�������
���������

�����������
�/	�	�-�

$"������)	��%�

+���:�����0��,,���
��	�-�	�����
&�����-'�

�����	�
�
�.�1 ���.�; ���.�; ����H #�"�������

+� ����	��������,�����������	��	�

�	�����	���	�������7&���	�����������

��

������������-�����,,������	�������

��������	���	������	���������
�/	�	�-�

,���
��3���������������

�����������	
��
������ �� ��

��	
�

P
a

g
e
 7

2



������������������� �����	
�	�

�	�����,,������/-���	���������

������� ����

0�����

���� ��������

>���<�

�������>��

���� H���� 0���� ������

+���:�����0��,,���
��	�-�	�����

+���B�����0��)	���,�	��������

�������

+���:�����0��,,���
��	�-�	�����

+���B�����0��)	���,�	��������

�������

���*B:������	���������

��	������,,	������������

�	��������	�������	/����,�

���,,����@�	���-����


���	/�

�����	�����������	���

���,,	�������������	�������

�	�������	/����,����,,����

@�	���-����
���	/��

+���:�����0��,,���
��	�-�	�����
&�����-'�

�����	�
F�.�1 ��).�1 ��).�1 ������H ���
�����

+�6�-���	���
��	�	���������)�����

�	����

��
�	����-���	��������������

$������,���	�������	���	��

�

�	�����%���

���*D*���)	���
�-�

���������	��/	�	�-�

��)	���
�-��������

��	��/	�	�-�
+���:�����0��,,���
��	�-�	�����

&�����-'�

�����	�
F�.�; ���.�; ���.�; ;���H #�"�������

���������	���

���������

��

���������	���	��	��
���*D2���)	������,,�

����������	������	�����,�

��,�����������	��


�	��	�	���

��)	������,,�����������	�

�����	�����,���,�������

����	��
�	��	�	���

+���:�����0��,,���
��	�-�	�����
&�����-'�

�����	�
��).�1 ���.�; ���.�; ����H ����0������

���������	���

���������

��

���������	���	��	��

���*;*���)���
���

�����	��,��������������

��

���������)���
�

���	�����,,�

��)���
��������	��,���

�������������

�������

��)���
����	�����,,�

+���:��*��0��,,���
�/	�	�-�

	�����

&�����-'�

�����	�
���.�; ��-.�; ��-.�; ����H ����0������

���������	���

���������

��

���������	���	��	��

���*;2���)���
���

���		��
�����������

���
��������	�	��

���	��

��)���
������		��


��������������
�����

���	�	�����	��

+���:��*��0��,,���
�/	�	�-�

	�����

&�����-'�

�����	�
�
�.�1 F�.�; F�.�; ����H #�"�������

+� �	������������������	���,����
����

�,����	�������		��
���������/�	��

��)���
���/-�������������	��0��)	����

�����������)���
�����,���	��


���������	��	�
�����������

��	�	
��������	)��-������	�����

/����,	�����

���*:D�#���	,-������	)��

���)	���������������	��

�,��������
��	�-�

	�	�������������/��

/��,	�	��

#���	,-������	)�����)	����

�����������	���,������

��
��	�-�	�	�������������

/��/��,	�	���$��,�����,�

����8�����	�	�����%����

����������	�	��������
�	�

#"�����

(����'����	� 0�
.�1 ���.�; ���.�; ����H

���*::�#���	,-�

���		�����	����-����

�	��������)���
���
���

����		�	�����	���	���

#���	,-����		�����	����-�

����	��������)���
���


�������		�	�����	���	���

&�����-'�

�����	�
�
�.�1 ���.�;

C	������

+� �	��
	�����,������	���	����������

��/���?��	�������-�	�����,�������

���	)	�	�����	��������������������

�����"��	�-�4�?��	����"��	��

�������	�����)	�� ������������

����������������	���������	������

������������	���/����)	�����	�����

����M����

���.�; ;���H #�"�������

+����-�	���,�����-�������,���

���		�����	)����)����)�������
�����*�

������	��������-����	,����

����������-�����	���������	�	����

�������������������������	���	�A��

���		�����	�����,,	�������)	��������

 �	���	���	,����,����������	�����

�	�	�������	��$	,��)	�����%�

�����������	
��
������ �� ��

��	
�

P
a

g
e
 7

3



������������������� �����	
�	�

�	�����,,������/-���	���������

������� ����

0�����

���� ��������

>���<�

�������>��

���� H���� 0���� ������

���*;B���)���
���

�
�	���

��	����,�������

	�������	���,���

�����	����������	��

�������

��)���
����
�	��

�

��	����,�������

	�������	���,���

�����	����������	��

�������

+���:��*��0��,,���
�/	�	�-�

	�����

&�����-'�

�����	�
F�.�; ���.�; ���.�; ����H ����0������

���������	���

���������

��

���������	���	��	��

���*DB����������I��	����

��
J����-�	������

���
������
�	��	�	�������

���	���	����$"����

��)	��%�

���������I��	������
J�

���-�	���������
������


�	��	�	����������	���	����

$"������)	��%�

+���:��*��0��,,���
�/	�	�-�

	�����

&�����-'�

�����	�
���.�1 ���.�1 ��).�; ����H #�"�������

���������	���

���������

��

���������	���	��	��

���*:1�>���/�	�����


��3�����	������	����

>���/�	�����
��3�����	���

���	����

+���D�������3���
��3����,�	�����

$�������������'���������

(���	��#���)��	�%

(����'����	� F��.�1 ���.�1 ���.�1 1����H C	������

+�#��	��������������������	���	���/��

�	���������������?��������������

����>������������3���
��3�����	���

���	������������	��	���,�������


��3������)���9��;�

+���D��2���������	� ����A��

�������
�-�������	������	�


��	�

+���D��1��������	�/���

��)���
���<������,������	����

��)���
���

���*;����)���
������


���	���������-������

���
�����������

��)���
	������
����

�������-�

��)���
������
���	��

�������-���������
�������

������)���
	������
����

�������-�

+���D��1��������	�/���

��)���
���<������,������	����

��)���
���

�����	��.

0�	��'���/	
F��.�1 ���.�1 ���.�1 2;���H #�"�������

+�!	�������,������/�������/-��	�������

��	�������/�����������,���,�������

��������/������/�,����,	������,��	��

�)�	��/���

���*D=� 	���-����
�	��

�,������������
��

 	���-����
�	���,������

������
��

��������'�

#���	�
���.�* ���.�; ���.�; 2����H #�"�������

+� ����	����/���,�������
��
����	��

���
�	���,��������7�����"�������

/�����)	�������	���	��������)����

���������,�!�/����-�*��:�� ���������

��/����,�����������������7�����"���

�������������������/�,��������

����	���	���/���/���������
������7�����

"���� �������	��	���������-�����	��

��������0�����*'�"��,�������
�	���

��������	�������	��
�������������

����������;���F����-�*��;'�

��/3��������

��)����,�����"��,������

�
�	�����������	����������/-�

��/	���������������/���*��1�

�����������	
��
������ �� ��

��	
�

P
a

g
e
 7

4



������������������� �����	
�	�

�	�����,,������/-���	���������

������� ����

0�����

���� ��������

>���<�

�������>��

���� H���� 0���� ������

���*;1���)���
���

����
�����������-�4�

	,���������������	)��-�


���,��� ����

��)���
�������
����

�������-����	,������������

���	)��-�
���,��� ��������

��

��������7�����"���

+���D��1��������	�/���

��)���
���<������,������	����

��)���
���

��������'�

#���	�
���.�* ���.�; ���.�; *����H #�"�������

+� �����)	�����	����/���,�������7�����

"��������	�
����������� ���
����

0������-����#,���������������	)��-�

"���� �	���������-����
���,�����

��

���	���)	�����,�������7�����"���

����	���/��
����������������	�������

7�����"���

�����������	
��
������ � ��

��	
�

P
a

g
e
 7

5



Section 3 Changes to the Corporate Risk Register

����������	�
������

���� ���� ��������

���1��B��?��	�������	�	�-�
��	��,�	���� (����'����	�

(����C	�'����
���������������

�,,	����,�����	����
��������,�


��)	��������

�����������������������������������������
���
������

������������������� �����	
�	� �	�����,,������/-���	���������������� ���� ��������

���*;����)���
������
���	���������-������

���
�������������)���
	������
����

�������-�

��)���
������
���	���������-������

���
�������������)���
	������
����

�������-�

+���D��1��������	�/�����)���
���<������,�

�����	������)���
���
C�	��'�&�)	

��/	������	��.0�	��'��	)	��

>,����������������.����	�	��.�

�����0���

���*;1���)���
�������
�����������-�4�

	,���������������	)��-�
���,��� ����

��)���
�������
�����������-����	,������������

���	)��-�
���,��� ����������

��������7�����

"���

+���D��1��������	�/�����)���
���<������,�

�����	������)���
���

 �����'�

0	��

#���	����������'�0������	��

"��	���������,�����	����������,�

���
�����������������
+������*���,��������	����	��������	��

� !"�)��	�	�-
+���*�����!������������������
�	��	�	���

�����������������/������
��/����

+���1��1���	,,	����	���	�
�	��	�	���	�

+���=��2��"�/�	���	����������,��������

��������	��
������

���*D����)	����
�	���,���	�
��)	��

���
����-��,����	�����	
<)	��.

���	�����	
�
����

��)	����
�	���,�����@�	�	�����	������	
<)	��.

���	�����	
�
��������/�������	��������������

������)��/����������	�����	
����		�

+���=��1���	,,	����	���,�����/-����/����	�

�������		�����	���,���������	�
?�-��'�0��)�

&���?���'���������	��0��)	����

�������.����	�	��.�0��)��?�-��

�#�1��B����	��	��
.��.�����?��	����

���	�	�-�"���

0�

���������	
����/3���	)��E����	�������

���;D:��1

��1��	����.�!�	������,��

��
�	���������	�/���/��	�������		�����	��
����	���

�����	
�	�

��1��B��?��	�������	�	�-�
��	��,�	����

�����0����'����
������!	����

�������,�����	����
��������,�


��)	������������$0���/�����,���

������	����������������<�

�����	
�	�%

���*=D�>����������/��������������	��,���

*��;.�=�	,�����������
������
���

>����������/��������������	��,���*��;.�=�

��

���������	���	,	���	���,�
�	��	�	���,�������

������
������
���

(����'����	�

���22����	��	��
.��.�����?��	����

���	�	�-�
���
(����'����	�

+���1��B��?��	�������	�	�-�
��	��

,�	����

(����C	�'����
���������������

�,,	����,�����	����
��������,�


��)	��������

�����������	
��
������ �� ��

��	
�

P
a

g
e
 7

6



���������������������
���

��
��
���������������
���
�������

�������������� �����	
�	�� �	�� ���� ��������

�?����=D�!��	�	������,,���	)��
��,�������

���������
��������

!��	�	������,,���	)��
��,����������������


���������$	����	�������	���,�

����8����<���	)	�-������,�������-����	�%

+���B�����0��)	���,�	��������������� (����'����	�

�	�����C�����'� ���	����!	����

�������,�����	����
��������,�


��)	��������

�?����*B�0
�����������������������,�

��������
��	�-��
�����

0
�����������������������,���������
��	�-�

�
�����������
��)	�������-����	���,�

���	����	)���������

+���:��*��0��,,���
�/	�	�-�	����� (����'����	�

�	�����C�����'� ���	����!	����

�������,�����	����
��������,�


��)	��������

�?����**���)���
����
������
���	�����

����������,�����8�����������

��)���
����
������
���	���������������,�

����8�����������

+���D��2���������	� ����A���������
�-�

������	������	�
��	�
(����'����	�

�	�����C�����'� ���	����!	����

�������,�����	����
��������,�


��)	��������

�?����B=���	��	�
��3�������������


�������������������
�	���

��	��	�
��3�������������
����������

���������
�	���

+���D�������3���
��3����,�	�����$�����

��������'���������(���	��#���)��	�%
(����'����	�

�	�����C�����'� ���	����!	����

�������,�����	����
��������,�


��)	��������

�?�����B�����������
���	���,�/��	����


��,��������������
�/�	�

����������
���	���,�/��	����
��,����������

����
�/�	�

+���;��*������������8
�����	��<��������

�����/������/-���������	�
(����'����	�

�	�����C�����'� ���	����!	����

�������,�����	����
��������,�


��)	��������

�?����;*�>�����
����������,���)	������

����	���,�/��	�������	�	�-�
��

>�����
����������,���)	����������	���,�

/��	�������	�	�-�
�����	���	��������������

���)	���
�������

+���1��B��?��	�������	�	�-�
��	��

,�	����
(����'����	�

(����C	�'����
���������������

�,,	����,�����	����
��������,�


��)	��������

�?����2=�"��)	���
��,������<
��������

�������������	�
�������	
�

��������
��,�������/���������	����������

�������������	���������������������


�������<�
��,��������,�������	�


�������	
�������������-���'������	�������

������-��	�������	�����	��
�����/������ ���

��������
�������

+���2��*��"�������	
��,�	��������	)���/�������

�,�������-���������-�������
(����'����	�

"��������'��	��������,����
������

����������,�����	����
��������,�


��)	��������

�?����1��>��������
������
����/3���	)���

����������-�
�/�	�	����,��������������
�/�	��

>��������
������
����/3���	)�������������-�


�/�	�	����,��������������
�/�	��

+���;��*������������8
�����	��<��������

�����/������/-���������	�
(����'����	�

(���� ���
�'�"��4�"�/�	�	�-�

�������,�����	����
��������,�


��)	��������

�?����D:�"��)	�����,��������		����/��	����

���	�	�-�
"��)	�����,��������		����/��	�������	�	�-�

+���1��B��?��	�������	�	�-�
��	��

,�	����
(����'����	�

(����C	�'����
���������������

�,,	����,�����	����
��������,�


��)	��������

�����������	
��
������ �� ��

��	
�

P
a

g
e
 7

7



���������������������
������ �
!��"����

���������	
���
�������� >8	��	�������	
�	�� �	�� ���� ������	���<�����	
�	�

+������*���,��������	����	��������	��

� !"�)��	�	�-
+���*�����!������������������
�	��	�	���

�����������������/������
��/����

+���1��1���	,,	����	���	�
�	��	�	���	�

+���=��2��"�/�	���	����������,��������

��������	��
������

	�
�������������
���
�#�����������������

�������������� �����	
�	�� �	�� ���� �����

��*;����)���
�����������������	���,�

���/���
�	��	�	�����������	�������	�����

����	���	�����	���������������

��)���
�����������������	���,����/���


�	��	�	�����������	�������	���������	���	��

���	���������������

+���1��1���	,,	����	���	�
�	��	�	���	�
(����'�

�����	�

����	���������������-�����	���

��)������-�������
������	���������

�"�����	��	��
��
����������)����	��

 ������?���

���*;:���)���
��������
�	��	�	���	��


������

��)���
��������
�	��	�	���	��
��������������

����������	����-�/�������������
������


��'����)	���
��������������	���/3���	)���

+���1��1���	,,	����	���	�
�	��	�	���	� (����'����	�
����	������������	���	���/��/�	���	�

���
�����,��������
������
���
�������

���*1:����	�����

����	�	���,��������	��

���)	�������������������
����������,����)	���

��)	����

���	�����

����	�	���,��������	�����)	���

����������������
����������,����)	�����)	����

+���=�����"��/������������/-��������

��)������
��	�	������
����	���
����'�"���

����	�������������	�	�����������

������
��������	����������,�

���	�)	����)	��������������

����������������	������)	�������

/��	����
����������	���	,-���)	���

	��	���	����-���)	������������

�����������	��

���*B��#�����������������������	���

$,�����	������	�����	�	�%

#�����������������������	���$,�����	��

����	�����	�	�%

+���=��1���	,,	����	���,�����/-����/����	�

�������		�����	���,���������	�
?���'�&��

����	������������� ������������

I>�����������������	���,�����

����	���	������)	���C���	��"���-�

J�� �	��C"�������,�����	������-���'�

���	�����������	��������	�������
�

��������������������	�������

>����������/��������������	��,���*��;.�=�

��

���������	���	,	���	���,�
�	��	�	���,�������

������
������
���

0����'�����

	������*=D�>����������/������

��������	��,���*��;.�=�	,��������

���
������
���

���������
���>����������/������

��)	�������
�	���	,	������
������

"���"�	��	�	���

���*=D�>����������/��������������	��,���

*��;.�=���

���������	���	,	���	���,�


�	��	�	���,�������������
������
���

�����������	
��
������ �� ��

��	
�

P
a

g
e
 7

8



�������������� �����	
�	�� �	�� ���� �����

+���:�����0��,,���
��	�-�	�����

+���B�����0��)	���,�	���������������

���*:1�>���/�	�����
��3�����	������	���� >���/�	�����
��3�����	������	����
+���D�������3���
��3����,�	�����$�����

��������'���������(���	��#���)��	�%
(����'����	�

����	�������������?�����������

�����3���
��3�����	������	����������

�����,�������
��3������)���9��;�

$�������������
���
����������

�������������� �����	
�	�� �	�� ���� �����

�?����2D���)���
�����������������	���,�

���/���
�	��	�	�����������	�������	�

��)���
�����������������	���,����/���


�	��	�	�����������	�������	���������	���	��

���	���������������

+���1��1���	,,	����	���	�
�	��	�	���	�
(����'�

�����	�

0�
�������� �����*;����)���
���

��������������	���,����/���


�	��	�	�����������	�������	�����

����	���	�����	���������������

�?����2B�>������������3���
��3�����	���

���	������������	��	���,�������
��3������)���

9��;�

>������������3���
��3�����	������	����������

��	��	���,�������
��3������)���9��;�

+���D�������3���
��3����,�	�����$�����

��������'���������(���	��#���)��	�%
C�����'��	����

0�
��������� �����*:1�>���/�	�����


��3�����	������	����

>�����������������	����,���������	���	����

��)	���C���	��"���-

>�����������������	���,���������	���	����

��)	���C���	��"���-���������������������

	�����

+���=��1���	,,	����	���,�����/-����/����	�

�������		�����	���,���������	�
?���'�&��

0�
��������� �����*B��#��������

���������������	���$,�����	��

����	�����	�	�%

����	������������/�������?��	����

���-������,����������	)	�	�����	���

���������������������"��	�-�4�

?��	����"��	���������������,��

 ���������������	���������	������

������������	���/����)	�����	�����

����M����

���*:D�#���	,-������	)�����)	����������

�����	���,��������
��	�-�	�	�������������/��

/��,	�	��

#���	,-������	)�����)	���������������	���,�

�������
��	�-�	�	�������������/��/��,	�	���$��

,�����,�����8�����	�	�����%��������������

	�	��������
�	�#"�����

(����'����	�

�����������	
��
������ �� ��

��	
�

P
a

g
e
 7

9



Section 4 Officer List with Designation

���� ���	���	� �����

�����'�7��	�� >����	����)���
����������

?���'�&�� ��������	��0��)	�����,,	���

?�-��'�0��)� 7�����0��)	����������

?���'���/��� ���	�	����
����	���������

�������'�����- �����	�-�0�,��-����7�	�����������

�����	��'�0�
�	� ������������������>��������������

�����	��.0�	��'���/	 �	)	��>,��������������

����'������ "��	�-��,,	���

����'�"��� �	��������,����
���������������<(�����,�!	��	���0��)	���

������-'�>��	� (�����,�>����	����)���
���������������������

!	��'����	 (�����,�?�	���>)	�����

&�����-'������	� (��?��	����"�����

(����'����	� "��	�-����?��	����"��	�������� 7�,������������	�-�����*��1

(����'������	� ���	����	�,�>8����	)�<�	��������,������	�-�0��)	���

(��/��'��	��  ���	����0��)	����������

��&�	���'�0�� ��	�,�>8����	)� �	����������������	���������(����

��������'�#���	� 0������	��"��	��������

"���'�6��� 0������	��"����������������

0����'�������� ���
������!	����������

0���'����� �	��������,��
����	����0��)	���

0
������'������ >)	��������"������	��������

 �//���'�0��
�� ?��	�������-��

 �����'�0	�� "��	��������

 ���
�'�(��� "�����"�/�	�	�-�������

 	��-'������- !��	�	�	���������

C�	��'�&�)	 (�����,��
����	����0��)	���

C�����'��	����  ���	����!	����������

C����'� �-� (�����,�(���	�

C	�'�(��� ���
����������������,,	���

�����������	
��
������ �	 ��

��	
�

P
a

g
e
 8

0



C	����'�F���	� �����	���	���������

C�������'�0	�� �������	��������������	������	�����

�����������	
��
������ �
 ��

��	
�

P
a

g
e
 8

1



P
a

g
e
 8

2

T
h

is
 p

a
g
e

 is
 in

te
n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



 

 

 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT, MINIMUM REVENUE 
PROVISION POLICY STATEMENT AND ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY FOR 
2015/16 
 

To:   Governance & Audit Committee – 10th December 2014 
 
Main Portfolio Area: Finance 
 
By:   Section 151 Officer 
 
Classification:  Unrestricted 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary: This report is to provide the Governance & Audit Committee 

with the proposed Treasury Management Strategy Statement, 
Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement and Annual 
Investment Strategy for 2015/16 for approval. 

 
For Decision 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

1  INTRODUCTION 

1.1 Background 

The Council is required to operate a balanced budget, which broadly means 
that cash raised during the year will meet cash expenditure.  Part of the 
treasury management operation is to ensure that this cash flow is adequately 
planned, with cash being available when it is needed.  Surplus monies are 
invested in low risk counterparties or instruments commensurate with the 
Council’s low risk appetite, providing adequate liquidity initially before 
considering investment return. 

 
The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding of the 
Council’s capital plans.  These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing need 
of the Council, essentially the longer term cash flow planning to ensure that the 
Council can meet its capital spending obligations.  This management of longer term 
cash may involve arranging long or short term loans, or using longer term cash flow 
surpluses.   On occasion any debt previously drawn may be restructured to meet 
Council risk or cost objectives.  

 
 CIPFA defines treasury management as: 

 
“The management of the local authority’s investments and cash flows, its banking, 
money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks 
associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent 
with those risks.” 

Agenda Item 10

Page 83



 

 

2

 

1.2 Reporting requirements 

The Council is required to receive and approve, as a minimum, three main 
reports each year, which incorporate a variety of policies, estimates and 
actuals.   

 
Prudential and treasury indicators and treasury strategy (this report) - The 
first, and most important report covers: 

• the capital plans (including prudential indicators); 

• a minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy (how residual capital expenditure is 
charged to revenue over time); 

• the treasury management strategy (how the investments and borrowings are to 
be organised) including treasury indicators; and  

• an investment strategy (the parameters on how investments are to be 
managed). 

 
A mid year treasury management report – This will update members with the 
progress of the capital position, amending prudential indicators as necessary, 
and whether the treasury strategy is meeting the strategy or whether any 
policies require revision. 

 
An annual treasury report – This provides details of a selection of actual 
prudential and treasury indicators and actual treasury operations compared to 
the estimates within the strategy. 

 
Scrutiny 
The above reports are required to be adequately scrutinised before being 
recommended to the Council.  This role is undertaken by the Governance and 
Audit Committee. 

1.3    Treasury Management Strategy for 2015/16 

The strategy for 2015/16 covers two main areas: 
 

Capital issues 

• the capital plans and the prudential indicators; 

• the minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy. 

 

Treasury management issues 

• the current treasury position; 

• treasury indicators which limit the treasury risk and activities of the Council; 

• prospects for interest rates; 

• the borrowing strategy; 

• policy on borrowing in advance of need; 

• debt rescheduling; 

• the investment strategy; 

• creditworthiness policy; and 

• policy on use of external service providers. 

 

Page 84



 

 

3

These elements cover the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003, the 
CIPFA Prudential Code, CLG MRP Guidance, the CIPFA Treasury Management 
Code and  CLG Investment Guidance. 

1.4 Training 

The CIPFA Code requires the responsible officer to ensure that members with 
responsibility for treasury management receive adequate training in treasury 
management.  This especially applies to members responsibe for scrutiny.  Training 
was last undertaken by members on 25 June 2014 and further training will be 
arranged as required.   

 

The training needs of treasury management officers are periodically reviewed.  

1.5 External service providers 

 
The Council uses Capita Asset Services, Treasury Solutions as its external treasury 
management advisors. 

 
The Council recognises that responsibility for treasury management decisions 
remains with the organisation at all times and will ensure that undue reliance is not 
placed upon our external service providers.  

 
It also recognises that there is value in employing external providers of treasury 
management services in order to acquire access to specialist skills and resources. 
The Council will ensure that the terms of their appointment and the methods by 
which their value will be assessed are properly agreed and documented, and 
subjected to regular review.  
 
The Council uses the ICD Portal to invest or redeem trades in its Money Market 
Funds (MMFs). The portal provides advanced reporting tools so that the authority 
can assess its exposure to certain banks or countries. 

 
Some investments via the ICD portal are made via JP Morgan who act as a 
clearing house for six of the nine MMFs the Council currently uses. The clearing 
house allows the authority to make several investments in different MMFs but only 
requires one payment  to the clearing house, therefore saving the authority costs in 
CHAPS fees. 

2 THE CAPITAL PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2015/16 – 2017/18 

The Council’s capital expenditure plans are the key driver of treasury 
management activity.  The output of the capital expenditure plans is reflected in 
prudential indicators, which are designed to assist members’ overview and 
confirm capital expenditure plans. 

2.1 Capital expenditure 

This prudential indicator is a summary of the Council’s capital expenditure 
plans, both those agreed previously, and those forming part of this budget 
cycle.  Members are asked to approve the capital expenditure forecasts: 

  

Page 85



 

 

4

 

Capital expenditure 
£m 

2013/14 
Actual 

2014/15 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

2016/17 
Estimate 

2017/18 
Estimate 

Non-HRA 6.689 18.416 4.229 3.703 3.397 

HRA 3.958 14.044 10.944 10.072 3.392 

Total 10.647 32.460 15.173 13.775 6.789 

The table below summarises the above capital expenditure plans and how 
these plans are being financed by capital or revenue resources.  Any shortfall 
of resources results in a funding borrowing need.  

 

Capital expenditure 
£m 

2013/14 
Actual 

2014/15 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

2016/17 
Estimate 

2017/18 
Estimate 

Non-HRA 6.689 18.416 4.229 3.703 3.397 

HRA 3.958 14.044 10.944 10.072 3.392 

Total 10.647 32.460 15.173 13.775 6.789 

Financed by:      

Capital receipts 1.756 1.633 1.067 0.718 0.475 

Capital grants 4.703 10.444 2.930 2.165 1.652 

Capital reserves 1.324 10.912 5.259 3.303 3.085 

Revenue 0.593 3.057 1.251 2.884 0.567 

Net financing need 
for the year 

2.271 6.414 4.666 4.705 1.010 

Other long term liabilities: The above financing need excludes other long term 
liabilities, such as PFI and leasing arrangements which already include 
borrowing instruments.   

2.2 The Council’s borrowing need (the Capital Financing Requirement) 

The second prudential indicator is the Council’s Capital Financing 
Requirement (CFR).  The CFR is simply the total historic outstanding capital 
expenditure which has not yet been paid for from either revenue or capital 
resources.  It is essentially a measure of the Council’s underlying borrowing 
need.  Any capital expenditure above, which has not immediately been paid 
for, will increase the CFR.   

The CFR does not increase indefinitely, as the minimum revenue provision 
(MRP) is a statutory annual revenue charge which broadly reduces the 
borrowing need in line with each assets life. 

The CFR includes any other long term liabilities (e.g. PFI schemes, finance 
leases).  Whilst these increase the CFR, and therefore the Council’s 
borrowing requirement, these types of scheme include a borrowing facility 
and so the Council is not required to separately borrow for these schemes.  
The Council had £3.900m of long term liabilities (excluding pensions) as at 31 
March 2014. 

The Council is asked to approve the CFR projections below: 

  

Page 86



 

 

5

 

£m 2013/14 
Actual 

2014/15 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

2016/17 
Estimate 

2017/18 
Estimate 

Capital Financing Requirement 

CFR – non housing 20.898 26.460 26.470 26.315 26.224 

CFR – housing 20.874 20.874 23.607 27.282 27.282 

Total CFR 41.772 47.334 50.077 53.597 53.506 

Movement in CFR (0.003) 5.562 2.743 3.520 (0.091) 

      

Movement in CFR represented by 

Net financing need 
for the year (above) 

2.271 6.414 4.666 4.705 1.010 

Less HRA – loan 
repayments and 
downward 
revaluations* 

(1.656) 0.000 (0.828) 0.000 0.000 

Less MRP/VRP and 
other financing 
movements 

(0.618) (0.852) (1.095) (1.185) (1.101) 

Movement in CFR (0.003) 5.562 2.743 3.520 (0.091) 

 *The CFR treatment of downward revaluations to HRA non-current assets is 
under review by the Department of Communities and Local Government 
(requiring both Ministerial and Treasury approval) and accordingly is subject 
to change. 

2.3  Minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy statement 

The Council is required to pay off an element of the accumulated General 
Fund capital spend each year (the CFR) through a revenue charge (the 
minimum revenue provision - MRP), although it is also allowed to undertake 
additional voluntary payments if required (voluntary revenue provision - VRP).   

CLG regulations have been issued which require the full Council to approve 
an MRP Statement in advance of each year.  A variety of options are 
provided to councils, so long as there is a prudent provision.  The Council is 
recommended to approve the following MRP Statement: 

For capital expenditure incurred before 1 April 2008 or which in the future will 
be Supported Capital Expenditure, the MRP policy will be: 

• Existing practice - MRP will follow the existing practice outlined in 
former CLG regulations (option 1). 

This option provides for an approximate 4% reduction in the borrowing need 
(CFR) each year. 

From 1 April 2008 for all unsupported borrowing (including PFI and finance 
leases) the MRP policy will be: 

• Asset life method – MRP will be based on the estimated life of the 
assets, in accordance with the regulations (this option must be applied 
for any expenditure capitalised under a Capitalisation Direction) (option 
3); 

This option provides for a reduction in the borrowing need over approximately 
the asset’s life.  

Page 87



 

 

6

There is no requirement on the HRA to make a minimum revenue provision 
but there is a requirement for a charge for depreciation to be made (although 
there are transitional arrangements in place). 

Repayments included in annual PFI or finance leases are applied as MRP.  

2.4 Core funds and expected investment balances  

The application of resources (capital receipts, reserves etc.) to either finance 
capital expenditure or other budget decisions to support the revenue budget 
will have an ongoing impact on investments unless resources are 
supplemented each year from new sources (asset sales etc.).  Detailed below 
are estimates of the year end balances for each resource and anticipated day 
to day cash flow balances. 

 Year End Resources 
£m 

2013/14 
Actual 

2014/15 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

2016/17 
Estimate 

2017/18 
Estimate 

Fund balances / 
reserves 

2.177 2.177 2.177 2.177 2.177 

Capital receipts 1.756 1.633 1.067 0.718 0.475 

Earmarked reserves 16.757 8.207 8.146 8.646 8.846 

Total core funds 20.690 12.017 11.390 11.541 11.498 

Working capital* 38.235 33.115 33.043 33.605 32.752 

Under/over borrowing 10.620 13.115 13.043 13.605 12.752 

Expected investments 27.615 20.000 20.000 20.000 20.000 

 
*Working capital balances shown are estimated year end; these may be 
higher mid-year. 

2.5 Affordability prudential indicators 

The previous sections cover the overall capital and control of borrowing 
prudential indicators, but within this framework prudential indicators are 
required to assess the affordability of the capital investment plans.   These 
provide an indication of the impact of the capital investment plans on the 
Council’s overall finances.  The Council is asked to approve the following 
indicators: 

2.6 Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream 

This indicator identifies the trend in the cost of capital (borrowing and other 
long term obligation costs net of investment income) against the net revenue 
stream. 

 

% 2013/14 
Actual 

2014/15 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

2016/17 
Estimate 

2017/18 
Estimate 

Non-HRA 3.1% 6.0% 8.0% 8.5% 8.1% 

HRA 7.1% 5.9% 6.5% 6.9% 6.2% 

 
The estimates of financing costs include current commitments and the 
proposals in this budget report. 
 
 
 

 

Page 88



 

 

7

2.7 Incremental impact of capital investment decisions on council tax 

This indicator identifies the revenue costs associated with proposed changes to 
the three year capital programme recommended in this budget report compared 
to the Council’s existing approved commitments and current plans.  The 
assumptions are based on the budget, but will invariably include some estimates, 
such as the level of Government support, which are not published over a three 
year period. 

 
Incremental impact of capital investment decisions on the band D council 
tax 

 

£ 2013/14 
Actual 

2014/15 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

2016/17 
Estimate 

2017/18 
Estimate 

Council tax - 
band D * 

(4.41) (11.43) (17.93) (16.20) 20.98 

  

*The 2017/18 estimate is higher than the other years because, being the final year 
estimate, there is no comparison shown in the Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement for last year. In other words, the incremental 2017/18 estimate reflects 
the full cost of the 2017/18 capital programme. The main element of the 2017/18 
estimate is the Minimum Revenue Provision charge. 

2.8 Estimates of the incremental impact of capital investment decisions on 
housing rent levels  

Similar to the council tax calculation, this indicator identifies the trend in the cost of 
proposed changes in the housing capital programme recommended in this budget 
report compared to the Council’s existing commitments and current plans, 
expressed as a discrete impact on weekly rent levels.   

 
 

Incremental impact of capital investment decisions on housing rent 
levels 

 

£ 2013/14 
Actual 

2014/15 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

2016/17 
Estimate 

2017/18 
Estimate 

Weekly housing 
rent levels * 

(0.14) 0.08 1.17 1.43 1.91 
 

 

This indicator shows the revenue impact on any newly proposed changes, 
although any discrete impact will be constrained by rent controls.   
 
*The 2017/18 estimate is higher than the other years because, being the final year 
estimate, there is no comparison shown in the Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement for last year. In other words, the incremental 2017/18 estimate reflects 
the full cost of the 2017/18 capital programme.  

 

 

 

 

Page 89



 

 

8

2.9 HRA ratios  

 

£ 2013/14 
Actual 

2014/15 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

2016/17 
Estimate 

2017/18 
Estimate 

HRA debt  £m 20.869 20.869 23.602 27.277 27.276 

HRA rents £m 12.390 12.994 12.959 13.217 13.480 

Ratio of debt to 
rents % 

168.4% 160.6% 182.1% 206.4% 202.3% 

 
 

£ 2013/14 
Actual 

2014/15 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

2016/17 
Estimate 

2017/18 
Estimate 

HRA debt £m 20.869 20.869 23.602 27.277 27.276 

Number of HRA 
dwellings 

3,034 3,035 3,093 3,127 3,139 

Debt per 
dwelling £ 

6,878 6,876 7,631 8,723 8,690 

 
3 BORROWING 

 
The capital expenditure plans set out in Section 2 provide details of the service 
activity of the Council.  The treasury management function ensures that the 
Council’s cash is organised in accordance with the the relevant professional 
codes, so that sufficient cash is available to meet this service activity.  This will 
involve both the organisation of the cash flow and, where capital plans require, the 
organisation of approporiate borrowing facilities.  The strategy covers the relevant 
treasury / prudential indicators, the current and projected debt positions and the 
annual investment strategy. 

3.1  Current portfolio position 

The Council’s treasury portfolio position at 1 April 2013, with forward projections 
are  summarised below. The table shows the actual external debt (the treasury 
management operations), against the underlying capital borrowing need (the 
Capital Financing Requirement - CFR), highlighting any over or under borrowing.  

 

£m 2013/14 
Actual 

2014/15 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

2016/17 
Estimate 

2017/18 
Estimate 

External Debt 

Debt at 1 April  26.122 27.252 30.659 33.814 37.112 

Expected change in Debt 1.130 3.407 3.155 3.298 1.102 

Other long-term liabilities 
(OLTL)  
at 1 April 

0.642 3.900 3.560 3.220 2.880 

Expected change in OLTL 3.258* (0.340) (0.340) (0.340) (0.340) 

Actual gross debt at 31 
March  

31.152 34.219 37.034 39.992 40.754 

The Capital Financing 
Requirement 

41.772 47.334 50.077 53.597 53.506 

Under / (over) borrowing 10.620 13.115 13.043 13.605 12.752 

Page 90



 

 

9

 

*Leisure centre deferred credit. 

Within the prudential indicators there are a number of key indicators to ensure 
that the Council operates its activities within well defined limits.  One of these 
is that the Council needs to ensure that its gross debt does not, except in the 
short term, exceed the total of the CFR in the preceding year plus the estimates of 
any additional CFR for 2015/16 and the following two financial years.  This allows 
some flexibility for limited early borrowing for future years, but ensures that 
borrowing is not undertaken for revenue purposes.       

The Section 151 Officer reports that the Council complied with this prudential 
indicator in the current year and does not envisage difficulties for the future.  
This view takes into account current commitments, existing plans, and the 
proposals in this budget report.  

3.2  Treasury Indicators: limits to borrowing activity 

The operational boundary.  This is the limit beyond which external debt is 
not normally expected to exceed.  In most cases, this would be a similar 
figure to the CFR, but may be lower or higher depending on the levels of 
actual debt. 

Operational boundary 
£m 

2014/15 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

2016/17 
Estimate 

2017/18 
Estimate 

Debt 43.000 42.000 42.000 42.000 

Other long term liabilities 11.000 12.000 12.000 12.000 

Total 54.000 54.000 54.000 54.000 

 

The authorised limit for external debt. A further key prudential indicator 
represents a control on the maximum level of borrowing.  This represents a 
limit beyond which external debt is prohibited, and this limit needs to be set or 
revised by the full Council.  It reflects the level of external debt which, while 
not desired, could be afforded in the short term, but is not sustainable in the 
longer term.   

1. This is the statutory limit determined under section 3 (1) of the Local 
Government Act 2003. The Government retains an option to control either 
the total of all councils’ plans, or those of a specific council, although this 
power has not yet been exercised. 

2. The Council is asked to approve the following authorised limit: 

Authorised limit £m 2014/15 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

2016/17 
Estimate 

2017/18 
Estimate 

Debt 48.000 47.000 47.000 47.000 

Other long term liabilities 14.000 15.000 15.000 15.000 

Total 62.000 62.000 62.000 62.000 

 
 

Separately, the Council is also limited to a maximum HRA CFR through the 
HRA self-financing regime.  This limit is currently: 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 91



 

 

10

HRA Debt Limit £m 2014/15 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

2016/17 
Estimate 

2017/18 
Estimate 

HRA debt cap  27.792 27.792 27.792 27.792 

HRA CFR 20.874 23.607 27.282 27.282 

HRA headroom 6.918 4.185 0.510 0.510 

3.3 Capita’s economic and interest rate forecast (issued by Capita on 28 
October 2014)   

The Council has appointed Capita Asset Services as its treasury advisor and 
part of their service is to assist the Council to formulate a view on interest 
rates.  The following table gives the Capita central view. 

 

Annual 
Average % 

Bank Rate 
% 

PWLB Borrowing Rates % 
(including certainty rate adjustment) 

  5 year 25 year 50 year 

Dec 2014 0.50 2.50 3.90 3.90 

Mar 2015 0.50 2.70 4.00 4.00 

Jun 2015 0.75 2.70 4.10 4.10 

Sep 2015 0.75 2.80 4.30 4.30 

Dec 2015 1.00 2.90 4.40 4.40 

Mar 2016 1.00 3.00 4.50 4.50 

Jun 2016 1.25 3.10 4.60 4.60 

Sep 2016 1.25 3.20 4.70 4.70 

Dec 2016 1.50 3.30 4.70 4.70 

Mar 2017 1.50 3.40 4.80 4.80 

Jun 2017 1.75 3.50 4.80 4.80 

Sep 2017 2.00 3.50 4.90 4.90 

Dec 2017 2.25 3.50 4.90 4.90 

Mar 2018 2.50 3.50 5.00 5.00 

 

Until 2013, the economic recovery in the UK since 2008 had been the worst and 
slowest recovery in recent history. However, growth has rebounded during 2013 
and especially during 2014, to surpass all expectations, propelled by recovery in 
consumer spending and the housing market.  Forward surveys are also currently 
very positive in indicating that growth prospects are strong for 2015, particularly in 
the services and construction sectors. However, growth in the manufacturing 
sector and in exports has weakened during 2014 due to poor growth in the 
Eurozone. There does need to be a significant rebalancing of the economy away 
from consumer spending to manufacturing, business investment and exporting in 
order for this initial stage in the recovery to become more firmly established. One 
drag on the economy is that wage inflation has been lower than CPI inflation so 
eroding disposable income and living standards, although income tax cuts have 
ameliorated this to some extent. This therefore means that labour productivity 
must improve significantly for this situation to be corrected by warranting 
increases in pay rates. In addition, the encouraging rate at which unemployment 
has been falling must eventually feed through into pressure for wage increases, 
though current views on the amount of hidden slack in the labour market probably 
means that this is unlikely to happen in the near future.The US, the main world 
economy, faces similar debt problems to the UK, but thanks to reasonable growth, 
cuts in government expenditure and tax rises, the annual government deficit has 
been halved from its peak without appearing to do too much damage to growth.    

Page 92



 

 

11

The current economic outlook and structure of market interest rates and 
government debt yields have several key treasury management implications: 

 

• As for the Eurozone, concerns in respect of a major crisis subsided 
considerably in 2013.  However, the downturn in growth and inflation during 
the second half of 2014, and worries over the Ukraine situation, Middle East 
and Ebola, have led to a resurgence of those concerns as risks increase that 
it could be heading into deflation and a triple dip recession since 2008.  
Sovereign debt difficulties have not gone away and major concerns could 
return in respect of individual countries that do not dynamically address 
fundamental issues of low growth, international uncompetitiveness and the 
need for overdue reforms of the economy (as Ireland has done).  It is, 
therefore, possible over the next few years that levels of government debt to 
GDP ratios could continue to rise to levels that could result in a loss of 
investor confidence in the financial viability of such countries.  Counterparty 
risks therefore remain elevated.  This continues to suggest the use of higher 
quality counterparties for shorter time periods; 

• Investment returns are likely to remain relatively low during 2015/16 and 
beyond; 

• Borrowing interest rates have been volatile during 2014 as alternating bouts 
of good and bad news  have promoted optimism, and then pessimism, in 
financial markets.  During July to October 2014, a building accumulation of 
negative news has led to an overall trend of falling rates.  The policy of 
avoiding new borrowing by running down spare cash balances has served 
well over the last few years.  However, this needs to be carefully reviewed to 
avoid incurring higher borrowing costs in later times, when authorities will not 
be able to avoid new borrowing to finance new capital expenditure and/or to 
refinance maturing debt; 

• There will remain a cost of carry to any new borrowing which causes an 
increase in investments as this will incur a revenue loss between borrowing 
costs and investment returns. 

3.4  Borrowing strategy  

The Council is currently maintaining an under-borrowed position.  This means that 
the capital borrowing need (the Capital Financing Requirement), has not been 
fully funded with loan debt as cash supporting the Council’s reserves, balances 
and cash flow has been used as a temporary measure.  This strategy is prudent 
as investment returns are low and counterparty risk is relatively high. 

Against this background and the risks within the economic forecast, caution will be 
adopted with the 2015/16 treasury operations.  The Section 151 Officer will 
monitor  interest rates in financial markets and adopt a pragmatic approach to 
changing circumstances: 

 
• if it was felt that there was a significant risk of a sharp FALL in long and short 

term rates (e.g. due to a marked increase of risks around relapse into 
recession or of risks of deflation), then long term borrowings will be 
postponed, and potential rescheduling from fixed rate funding into short term 
borrowing will be considered. 

 

Page 93



 

 

12

• if it was felt that there was a significant risk of a much sharper RISE in long 
and short term rates than that currently forecast, perhaps arising from a 
greater than expected increase in the anticipated rate to US tapering of asset 
purchases, or in world economic activity or a sudden increase in inflation risks, 
then the portfolio position will be re-appraised with the likely action that fixed 
rate funding will be drawn whilst interest rates are still lower than they will be in 
the next few years. 

Any decisions will be reported to the appropriate decision making body at the 
next available opportunity. 

 

Treasury management limits on activity 

There are three debt related treasury activity limits.  The purpose of these are 
to restrain the activity of the treasury function within certain limits, thereby 
managing risk and reducing the impact of any adverse movement in interest 
rates.  However, if these are set to be too restrictive they will impair the 
opportunities to reduce costs / improve performance.  The indicators are: 

• Upper limits on variable interest rate exposure. This identifies a maximum 
limit for variable interest rates based upon the debt position net of 
investments; 

• Upper limits on fixed interest rate exposure.  This is similar to the 
previous indicator and covers a maximum limit on fixed interest rates; 

• Maturity structure of borrowing. These gross limits are set to reduce the 
Council’s exposure to large fixed rate sums falling due for refinancing, 
and are required for upper and lower limits.   

The Council is asked to approve the following treasury indicators and limits: 

£m 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 

Interest rate exposures 

 Upper Upper Upper 

Limits on fixed interest 
rates: 

• Debt only 
• Investments only 

 
 

62.000 
45.000 

 
 

62.000 
45.000 

 
 

62.000 
45.000 

Limits on variable interest 
rates 

• Debt only 
• Investments only 

 
 

62.000 
45.000 

 
 

62.000 
45.000 

 
 

62.000 
45.000 

Maturity structure of fixed interest rate borrowing 2015/16 

 Lower Upper 

Under 12 months 0% 50% 

12 months to under 2 years 0% 50% 

2 years to under 5 years 0% 50% 

5 years to under 10 years 0% 55% 

10 years to under 20 years  0% 50% 

20 years to under 30 years  0% 50% 

30 years to under 40 years  0% 50% 

40 years to under 50 years  0% 50% 

50 years and above 0% 50% 

 

 

Page 94



 

 

13

3.5  Policy on borrowing in advance of need  

The Council will not borrow more than or in advance of its needs purely in order to 
profit from the investment of the extra sums borrowed. Any decision to borrow in 
advance will be within forward approved Capital Financing Requirement 
estimates, and will be considered carefully to ensure that value for money can be 
demonstrated and that the Council can ensure the security of such funds.  
 
The Council has some flexibility to borrow funds this year for use in future years. 
The Section 151 Officer may do this under delegated power where, for instance, a 
sharp rise in interest rates is expected, and so borrowing early at fixed rates will 
be economically beneficial or meet budgetary constraints. Whilst the Section 151 
Officer will adopt a cautious approach to any such borrowing, where there is a 
clear business case for doing so borrowing may be undertaken to fund the 
approved capital programme or to fund future debt maturities. 
 
Borrowing in advance will be made within the constraints that: 

• The authority would not look to borrow more than 18 months in advance 
of need. 

Risks associated with any borrowing in advance activity will be subject to prior 
appraisal and subsequent reporting through the mid-year or annual reporting 
mechanism.  

3.6  Debt rescheduling 

As short term borrowing rates will be considerably cheaper than longer term fixed 
interest rates, there may be potential opportunities to generate savings by 
switching from long term debt to short term debt.  However, these savings will 
need to be considered in the light of the current treasury position and the size of 
the cost of debt repayment (premiums incurred).  

 
The reasons for any rescheduling to take place will include:  

• the generation of cash savings and / or discounted cash flow savings; 

• helping to fulfil the treasury strategy; 

• enhance the balance of the portfolio (amend the maturity profile and/or the 
balance of volatility). 

 
Consideration will also be given to identify if there is any residual potential for 
making savings by running down investment balances to repay debt prematurely 
as short term rates on investments are likely to be lower than rates paid on current 
debt.   

 
All rescheduling will be reported to Cabinet at the earliest meeting following its 
action. 

 
3.7 Municipal Bond Agency 

It is likely that the Municipal Bond Agency, currently in the process of being 
set up,  will be offering loans to local authorities in the near future.  It is also 
hoped that the borrowing rates will be lower than those offered by the Public 
Works Loan Board (PWLB).  This Authority intends to make use of this new 
source of borrowing as and when appropriate. 

 

Page 95



 

 

14

 

4 ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY  

4.1 Investment policy 

The Council’s investment policy has regard to the CLG’s Guidance on Local 
Government Investments (“the Guidance”) and the  revised CIPFA Treasury 
Management in Public Services Code of Practice and Cross Sectoral Guidance 
Notes (“the CIPFA TM Code”).  The Council’s investment priorities will be security 
first, liquidity second, then return. 
 
In accordance with the above guidance from the CLG and CIPFA, and in order to 
minimise the risk to investments, the Council applies minimum acceptable credit 
criteria in order to generate a list of highly creditworthy counterparties which also 
enables diversification and thus avoidance of concentration risk. 

 
Continuing regulatory changes in the banking sector are designed to see greater 
stability, lower risk and the removal of expectations of Government financial 
support should an institution fail.  This withdrawal of implied sovereign support is 
anticipated to have an effect on ratings applied to institutions.  This will result in 
the key ratings used to monitor counterparties being the Short Term and Long 
Term ratings only.  Viability, Financial Strength and Support Ratings previously 
applied will effectively become redundant.  This change does not reflect 
deterioration in the credit environment but rather a change of method in response 
to regulatory changes.   

 
As with previous practice, ratings will not be the sole determinant of the quality of 
an institution and that it is important to continually assess and monitor the financial 
sector on both a micro and macro basis and in relation to the economic and 
political environments in which institutions operate. The assessment will also take 
account of information that reflects the opinion of the markets. To this end the 
Council will engage with its advisors to maintain a monitor on market pricing such 
as “credit default swaps” and overlay that information on top of the credit ratings.  

 
Other information sources used will include the financial press, share price and 
other such information pertaining to the banking sector in order to establish the 
most robust scrutiny process on the suitability of potential investment 
counterparties. 
 

Investment instruments identified for use in the financial year are listed in section 5 
under the ‘specified’ and ‘non-specified’ investments categories. Counterparty 
limits will be as set through the Council’s treasury management practices. 
 

4.2 Creditworthiness policy  

The primary principle governing the Council’s investment criteria is the 
security of its investments, although the yield or return on the investment is 
also a key consideration.  After this main principle, the Council will ensure 
that: 

• It maintains a policy covering both the categories of investment types 
it will invest in, criteria for choosing investment counterparties with 
adequate security, and monitoring their security.  This is set out in the 
specified and non-specified investment sections below; and 

Page 96



 

 

15

• It has sufficient liquidity in its investments.  For this purpose it will set 
out procedures for determining the maximum periods for which funds 
may prudently be committed.  These procedures also apply to the 
Council’s prudential indicators covering the maximum principal sums 
invested.   

The Section 151 Officer will maintain a counterparty list in compliance with 
the following criteria and will revise the criteria and submit them to Council for 
approval as necessary.  These criteria are separate to that which determines 
which types of investment instrument are either specified or non-specified as 
it provides an overall pool of counterparties considered high quality which the 
Council may use, rather than defining what types of investment instruments 
are to be used.   

The minimum rating criteria uses the lowest common denominator method of 
selecting counterparties and applying limits.  This means that the application 
of the Council’s minimum criteria will apply to the lowest available rating for 
any institution.  For instance, if an institution is rated by two agencies, one 
meets the Council’s criteria, the other does not, the institution will fall outside 
the lending criteria.  Credit rating information is supplied by Capita Asset 
Services our treasury consultants, on all active counterparties that comply 
with the criteria below.  Any counterparty failing to meet the criteria would be 
omitted from the counterparty (dealing) list.  Any rating changes, rating 
watches (notification of a likely change), rating outlooks (notification of a 
possible longer term change) are provided to officers almost immediately after 
they occur and this information is considered before dealing.  For instance, a 
negative rating watch applying to a counterparty at the minimum Council 
criteria may be suspended from use, with all others being reviewed in light of 
market conditions.  

The criteria for providing a pool of high quality investment counterparties 
(both specified and non-specified investments) is: 

• Banks 1 - good credit quality – the Council will only use banks which: 

i. are UK banks; and/or 

ii. are non-UK and domiciled in a country which has a minimum 
sovereign long term rating of AAA 

and have, as a minimum, the following Fitch, Moody’s and Standard 
and Poors credit ratings (where rated): 

i. Short term – F1  (or equivalent) 

ii. Long term – A  (or equivalent) 

• Banks 2 – Part nationalised UK banks – Lloyds Banking Group and 
Royal Bank of Scotland Group. These banks can be included if they 
continue to be part nationalised or they meet the above criteria. 

• Banks 3 – The Council’s own banker for transactional purposes if the 
bank falls below the above criteria, although in this case balances will 
be minimised in both monetary size and time. 

• Bank subsidiary and treasury operations - The Council will use these 
where the parent bank has the necessary ratings outlined above.  

• Building societies: The Council will use all societies which meet the 
ratings/criteria for banks outlined above. 

• Money market funds (including enhanced money market funds) – AAA 

Page 97



 

 

16

• UK Government (including gilts and the DMADF) 

• Local authorities, parish councils, community councils, companies 
controlled by the Council (either alone or with other Local Authorities) 
etc 

• Supranational institutions 

A limit of £5m will be applied to the use of investments with a maturity of over 
364 days but not more than 370 days. 

 

Country and sector considerations - Due care will be taken to consider the 
country, group and sector exposure of the Council’s investments.  In part, the 
country selection will be chosen by the credit rating of the sovereign state in 
Banks 1 above.  In addition: 

• no more than £5m will be placed with any non-UK country at any time; 

• limits in place above will apply to a group of companies; 

• sector limits will be monitored regularly for appropriateness. 

 

Use of additional information other than credit ratings. Additional 
requirements under the Code require the Council to supplement credit rating 
information.  Whilst the above criteria relies primarily on the application of 
credit ratings to provide a pool of appropriate counterparties for officers to 
use, additional operational market information will be applied before making 
any specific investment decision from the agreed pool of counterparties.  This 
additional market information (for example Credit Default Swaps, negative 
rating watches/outlooks) will be applied to compare the relative security of 
differing investment counterparties. 

 

Time and monetary limits applying to investments. The time and 
monetary limits for institutions on the Council’s counterparty list are as follows 
(these will cover both specified and non-specified investments): 

  

Page 98



 

 

17

 

  Fitch Long 
Term Rating 

(or equivalent) 

Money  

Limit 

Time  

Limit 

Higher quality AA- £6m per 
institution 

370 days 

Medium quality  A £5m per 
institution 

370 days 

Part nationalised N/A £7m per 
institution 

370 days 

Debt Management Account 
Deposit Facility 

AAA unlimited 6 months 

Money market Funds (including 
enhanced money market funds) 

AAA £6m per fund 370 days 

Local authorities, parish 
councils, community councils, 
companies controlled by the 
Council (either alone or with 
other Local Authorities), 
Supranational institutions etc 

N/A £4m per 
institution 

370 days 

 

The proposed criteria for specified and non-specified investments are shown 
in section 5 for approval.  

4.3 Country limits 

 The Council has determined that it will only use approved counterparties from the 
UK (irrespective of the UK sovereign credit rating) or other countries with a 
minimum sovereign credit rating of AAA from Fitch (or equivalent).  This list will be 
added to, or deducted from, by officers should ratings change in accordance with 
this policy. 

Country restrictions on banks/investments (no more than £5m to be placed with 
any non-UK country which must have a minimum sovereign long term rating of 
AAA) do not apply to money market funds (including enhanced money market 
funds). The Council only invests in sterling denominated money market funds 
(including enhanced money market funds). 

4.4 Investment strategy 

 In-house funds. Investments will be made with reference to the core balance and 
cash flow requirements and the outlook for short-term interest rates (i.e. rates for 
investments up to 12 months).    

 
 Capita’s Investment returns expectations (issued by Capita on 28 October 
2014).  Bank Rate is forecast to remain unchanged at  0.5% before starting to rise 
from quarter 2 of 2015. Bank Rate forecasts for financial year ends (March) are:  
 

2015/16  1.00% 

2016/17  1.50% 

Page 99



 

 

18

2017/18  2.50%    

 

There are downside risks to these forecasts (i.e. start of increases in Bank Rate 
occurs later) if economic growth weakens.  However, should the pace of growth 
quicken, there could be an upside risk. 

 
The suggested budgeted investment earnings rates for returns on investments 
placed for periods up to 100 days during each financial year for the next eight 
years are as follows:  

 

2015/16  0.90% 

2016/17  1.50% 

2017/18  2.00% 

2018/19  2.50% 

2019/20  3.00% 

2020/21  3.00% 

2021/22  3.25% 

2022/23  3.25% 

Later years 3.50% 

 

Investment treasury indicator and limit - total principal funds invested for 
greater than 364 days. These limits are set with regard to the Council’s liquidity 
requirements and to reduce the need for early sale of an investment, and are 
based on the availability of funds after each year-end. 

  
The Council is asked to approve the treasury indicator and limit: - 

 

Maximum principal sums invested > 364 days 

£m 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 

Principal sums invested > 
364 days (but not more than 
370 days) 

£5m £5m £5m 

 
For its cash flow generated balances, the Council will seek to utilise its instant 
access and notice accounts, money market funds and deposits (overnight to 370 
days) in order to benefit from the compounding of interest.   

4.5 Investment risk benchmarking  

These benchmarks are simple guides to maximum risk, so they may be breached 
from time to time, depending on movements in interest rates and counterparty 
criteria.  The purpose of the benchmark is that officers will monitor the current and 
trend position and amend the operational strategy to manage risk as conditions 
change.  Any breach of the benchmarks will be reported, with supporting reasons 
in the mid-year or Annual Report. 
 
Security - The Council’s maximum security risk benchmark for the current 
portfolio, when compared to these historic default tables, is: 

• 0.05% historic risk of default when compared to the whole portfolio. 

Liquidity – in respect of this area the Council seeks to maintain: 

Page 100



 

 

19

• Bank overdraft - £0.5m 

• Liquid short term deposits of at least £10m available with a week’s notice. 

• Weighted average life benchmark is expected to be 0.5 years, with a 
maximum of 1.0 year. 

Yield - local measures of yield benchmarks are: 

• Investments – internal returns above the 7 day LIBID rate 

And in addition that the security benchmark for each individual year is: 

 370 days 2 years 3 years 4 years 5 years 

Maximum 0.05% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 

Note: This benchmark is an average risk of default measure, and would not 
constitute an expectation of loss against a particular investment.   

4.6 End of year investment report 

At the end of the financial year, the Council will report on its investment activity as 
part of its Annual Treasury Report.  

5  TREASURY MANAGEMENT PRACTICE (TMP1) – CREDIT AND 
COUNTERPARTY RISK MANAGEMENT 

The CLG issued Investment Guidance in 2010, and this forms the structure of 
the Council’s policy below. These guidelines do not apply to either trust funds 
or pension funds which operate under a different regulatory regime. 

 
The key intention of the Guidance is to maintain the current requirement for 
councils to invest prudently, and that priority is given to security and liquidity 
before yield.  In order to facilitate this objective the guidance requires this Council 
to have regard to the CIPFA publication Treasury Management in the Public 
Services: Code of Practice and Cross-Sectoral Guidance Notes.  This Council 
adopted the Code and will apply its principles to all investment activity.  In 
accordance with the Code, the Section 151 Officer has produced its treasury 
management practices (TMPs).  This part, TMP 1(1), covering investment 
counterparty policy requires approval each year. 

 
5.1 Annual investment strategy  
 

The key requirements of both the Code and the investment guidance are to set an 
annual investment strategy, as part of the annual treasury strategy for the 
following year, covering the identification and approval of the following: 

 

• The strategy guidelines for choosing and placing investments, particularly 
non-specified investments. 

• The principles to be used to determine the maximum periods for which funds 
can be committed. 

• Specified investments that the Council will use.  These are high security (i.e. 
high credit rating, although this is defined by the Council, and no guidelines 
are given), and high liquidity investments in sterling and with a maturity of no 
more than a year. 

• Non-specified investments, clarifying the greater risk implications, identifying 
the general types of investment that may be used and a limit to the overall 
amount of various categories that can be held at any time. 

Page 101



 

 

20

 
The investment policy proposed for the Council is: 

 
Strategy guidelines – The main strategy guidelines are contained in the 
body of the treasury strategy statement. 

 
5.2 Specified investments 

These investments are sterling investments of not more than one-year maturity, or 
those which could be for a longer period but where the Council has the right to be 
repaid within 12 months if it wishes.  These are considered low risk assets where 
the possibility of loss of principal or investment income is small.  These would 
include sterling investments which would not be defined as capital expenditure 
with: 

1. The UK Government (such as the Debt Management Account deposit facility, 
UK treasury bills or a gilt with less than one year to maturity). 

2. Supranational bonds of less than one year’s duration. 
3. Local authorities, parish councils, community councils, companies controlled by 

the Council (either alone or with other Local Authorities). 
4. Pooled investment vehicles (such as money market funds including enhanced 

money market funds) that have been awarded a high credit rating by a credit 
rating agency. For category 4 this covers pooled investment vehicles, such as 
money market funds including enhanced money market funds, rated AAA by 
Standard and Poor’s, Moody’s and/or Fitch rating agencies. 

5. A body that is considered of a high credit quality (such as a bank or building 
society). For category 5 this covers bodies with a minimum short term rating of 
F1 (or the equivalent) and minimum long term rating of A (or the equivalent) as 
rated by Standard and Poor’s, Moody’s and/or Fitch rating agencies.   

6. Any part nationalised UK bank or building society. 
7. Any subsidiary and treasury operations where the parent bank or building 

society has the necessary ratings outlined above. 
8. The Council’s own banker for transactional purposes if the bank falls below the 

above criteria, although in this case balances will be minimised in both 
monetary size and time.  

Within these bodies, and in accordance with the Code, the Council has set 
additional criteria to set the time and amount of monies which will be invested in 
these bodies, as set out in this report.  

5.3 Non-specified investments 

Non-specified investments are any other type of investment (i.e. not defined as 
specified above). The Council may only use non-specified investments with a 
maturity of no more than 370 days and which otherwise meet the criteria for 
specified investments in section 5.2 above. 

 
8.4 The monitoring of investment counterparties  
 

The credit rating of counterparties will be monitored regularly.  The Council 
receives credit rating information (changes, rating watches and rating 
outlooks) from Capita Asset Services as and when ratings change, and 
counterparties are checked promptly. On occasion ratings may be 
downgraded when an investment has already been made.  The criteria used 
are such that a minor downgrading should not affect the full receipt of the 
principal and interest.  Any counterparty failing to meet the criteria will be 

Page 102



 

 

21

removed from the list immediately by the Section 151 Officer, and if required 
new counterparties which meet the criteria will be added to the list. 

 
8.5 Use of external fund managers  

It is the Council’s policy not to use external fund managers for any part of its 
investment portfolio.  

 
6 OPTIONS 
 

That the Governance and Audit Committee: 
 

• Approve this report and recommend that it is approved by full Council. 

• Do not approve this report and do not recommend that it is approved 
by full Council, thereby not complying with the Treasury Management 
Code of Practice. 
 

7  CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1  Financial 
 

The financial implications are highlighted within this report. 
 

7.2  Legal 
 
There are no legal implications arising directly from this report. 
 

7.3  Corporate 
 

Failure to undertake this process will impact on the Council’s compliance with 
the Treasury Management Code of Practice. 
 

7.4  Equity and Equalities 
 

There are no equity or equality issues arising from this report. 
 

8  RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

The Governance and Audit Committee is recommended to approve this 
report, including each of the key elements of this report listed below, and 
recommend them to Council: 
 
•  The Capital Plans, Prudential Indicators and Limits for 2015/16 to 

2017/18, including the Authorised Limit Prudential Indicator. 
•  The Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy. 
•  The Treasury Management Strategy for 2015/16 to 2017/18 and the 

Treasury Indicators. 
•  The Investment Strategy for 2015/16 contained in the Treasury 

Management Strategy, including the detailed criteria. 
 

9  DECISION MAKING PROCESS 
 

Under the Treasury Management Code of Practice it is required that the 
Governance and Audit Committee approves this report before it is sent to 
Council for its approval. 
 

Page 103



 

 

22

Following the Governance and Audit Committee’s approval, this report must 
go to Council as part of the Medium Term Financial Strategy. 

 
10  DISCLAIMER 
 

This report is a technical document focussing on public sector investments and 
borrowings and, as such, readers should not use the information contained within 
the report to inform personal investment or borrowing decisions. Neither Thanet 
District Council nor any of its officers or employees makes any representation or 
warranty, express or implied, as to the accuracy or completeness of the 
information contained herein (such information being subject to change without 
notice) and shall not be in any way responsible or liable for the contents hereof 
and no reliance should be placed on the accuracy, fairness or completeness of 
the information contained in this document. Any opinions, forecasts or estimates 
herein constitute a judgement and there can be no assurance that they will be 
consistent with future results or events.  No person accepts any liability 
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from any use of this document or its 
contents or otherwise in connection therewith. 

 

 
 

Contact 
Officer: 

Paul Cook, Section 151 Officer, extn 7617 

Reporting 
to: 

Madeline Homer, Acting Chief Executive 

 

 
Corporate Consultation Undertaken 

 

Finance N/A 

Legal N/A 

 

 

Page 104



 
 

 
TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT AND ANNUAL 
INVESTMENT STRATEGY – MID YEAR REVIEW REPORT 2014/15 
 
To: Governance & Audit Committee – 10th December 2014 
 
Main Portfolio Area: Finance  
 
By:   Section 151 Officer 
 
Classification: Unrestricted 
 

 
Summary: This report summarises treasury management activity and 

prudential/treasury indicators for the first half of 2014/15. 
 
For Decision 
 

 
1 Background 

1.1 The Council operates a balanced budget, which broadly means cash raised 
during the year will meet its cash expenditure.  Part of the treasury management 
operations ensure this cash flow is adequately planned, with surplus monies 
being invested in low risk counterparties, providing adequate liquidity initially 
before considering optimising investment return. 

 
1.2 The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding of 

the Council’s capital plans.  These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing 
need of the Council, essentially the longer term cash flow planning to ensure the 
Council can meet its capital spending operations.  This management of longer 
term cash may involve arranging long or short term loans, or using longer term 
cash flow surpluses, and on occasion any debt previously drawn may be 
restructured to meet Council risk or cost objectives.  

 
1.3 Accordingly treasury management is defined as: 

 
“The management of the local authority’s investments and cash flows, its banking, 
money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks 
associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance 
consistent with those risks.” 

 

2 Introduction 

2.1  The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Code of 
Practice on Treasury Management (revised 2011) was adopted by this Council on 
24 April 2014. 

 
2.2  The primary requirements of the Code are as follows:  

Agenda Item 11

Page 105



 

 

2 

• Creation and maintenance of a Treasury Management Policy Statement which 
sets out the policies and objectives of the Council’s treasury management 
activities. 

• Creation and maintenance of Treasury Management Practices which set out the 
manner in which the Council will seek to achieve those policies and objectives. 

• Receipt by the full council of an annual Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement (including the Annual Investment Strategy and Minimum Revenue 
Provision Policy) for the year ahead, a Mid-year Review Report and an Annual 
Report (stewardship report) covering activities during the previous year. 

• Delegation by the Council of responsibilities for implementing and monitoring 
treasury management policies and practices and for the execution and 
administration of treasury management decisions. 

• Delegation by the Council of the role of scrutiny of treasury management strategy 
and policies to a specific named body.  For this Council the delegated body is the 
Governance and Audit Committee.  

2.3  This mid-year report has been prepared in compliance with CIPFA’s Code of 
Practice on Treasury Management, and covers the following: 

 

• An economic update for the 2014/15 financial year to 30 September 2014; 

• A review of the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual 
Investment Strategy; 

• The Council’s capital expenditure (prudential indicators); 

• A review of the Council’s investment portfolio for 2014/15; 

• A review of the Council’s borrowing strategy for 2014/15; 

• A review of any debt rescheduling undertaken during 2014/15; 

• A review of compliance with Treasury and Prudential Limits for 2014/15. 

 

2.4 There have not been any key changes to the Treasury and Capital Strategies 
during the first half of 2014/15. On 2 October 2014 Council resolved that (i) 
minimum credit ratings criteria for Viability, Financial Strength and Support no 
longer be included in the Council’s TMSS, and accordingly that there be one 
Medium Quality investment category (with a money limit of £5m), instead of 
two. 

3 Capita’s Economic update (issued by the Council’s treasury advisor, Capita 
on 27 October 2014) 

3.1 Economic performance to date and outlook (issued by Capita on 27 
October 2014) 

3.1.1 UK 

3.1.1.1 After strong UK Gross Domestic Product (GDP) quarterly growth of 0.7%, 0.8% 

and 0.7% in quarters 2, 3 and 4 respectively in 2013, (2013 annual rate 2.7%), 

and 0.7% in Q1, 0.9% in Q2 and a first estimate of 0.7% in Q3 2014 (annual rate 

3.1% in Q3), it appears very likely that strong growth will continue through 2014 

and into 2015 as forward surveys for the services and construction sectors, are 

very encouraging and business investment is also strongly recovering.  The 

manufacturing sector has also been encouraging though the latest figures indicate 

Page 106



 

 

3 

a weakening in the future trend rate of growth.  However, for this recovery to 

become more balanced and sustainable in the longer term, the recovery needs to 

move away from dependence on consumer expenditure and the housing market 

to exporting, and particularly of manufactured goods, both of which need to 

substantially improve on their recent lacklustre performance.  This overall strong 

growth has resulted in unemployment falling much faster through the initial 

threshold of 7%, set by the Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) last August, before 

it said it would consider any increases in Bank Rate.  The MPC has, therefore, 

subsequently broadened its forward guidance by adopting five qualitative 

principles and looking at a much wider range of about eighteen indicators in order 

to form a view on how much slack there is in the economy and how quickly slack 

is being used up. The MPC is particularly concerned that the current squeeze on 

the disposable incomes of consumers should be reversed by wage inflation rising 

back above the level of inflation in order to ensure that the recovery will be 

sustainable.  There also needs to be a major improvement in labour productivity, 

which has languished at dismal levels since 2008, to support increases in pay 

rates.  Most economic forecasters are expecting growth to peak in 2014 and then 

to ease off a little, though still remaining strong, in 2015 and 2016.  

Unemployment is therefore expected to keep on its downward trend and this is 

likely to eventually feed through into a return to significant increases in pay rates 

at some point during the next three years.  However, just how much those future 

increases in pay rates will counteract the depressive effect of increases in Bank 

Rate on consumer confidence, the rate of growth in consumer expenditure and 

the buoyancy of the housing market, are areas that will need to be kept under 

regular review. 

3.1.1.2 Also encouraging has been the sharp fall in inflation (CPI), reaching 1.2% in 

September, the lowest rate since 2009.  Forward indications are that inflation 

is likely to fall further in 2014 to possibly 1%. Overall, markets are expecting 

that the MPC will be cautious in raising Bank Rate as it will want to protect 

heavily indebted consumers from too early an increase in Bank Rate at a time 

when inflationary pressures are also weak.  A first increase in Bank Rate is 

therefore expected in  Q2 2015 and they expect increases after that to be at a 

slow pace to lower levels than prevailed before 2008 as increases in Bank 

Rate will have a much bigger effect on heavily indebted consumers than they 

did before 2008. 

3.1.1.3 The return to strong growth has also helped lower forecasts for the increase 

in Government debt by £73bn over the next five years, as announced in the 

2013 Autumn Statement, and by an additional £24bn, as announced in the 

March 2014 Budget - which also forecast a return to a significant budget 

surplus, (of £5bn), in 2018-19.  However, monthly public sector deficit figures 

have disappointed so far in 2014/15. 

3.1.2     U.S. 

3.1.2.1 In September, the Federal Reserve continued with its monthly $10bn 

reductions in asset purchases, which started in December 2013. Asset 

purchases have now fallen from $85bn to $15bn and are expected to stop 

Page 107



 

 

4 

on 29th October 2014, providing the economic outlook remains strong.  First 

quarter GDP figures for the US were depressed by exceptionally bad winter 

weather, but growth rebounded very strongly in Q2 to 4.6% (annualised). 

3.1.2.2 The The U.S. faces similar debt problems to those of the UK, but thanks to 

reasonable growth, cuts in government expenditure and tax rises, the 

annual government deficit has been halved from its peak without appearing 

to do too much damage to growth, although the weak labour force 

participation rate remains a matter of key concern for the Federal Reserve 

when considering the amount of slack in the economy and monetary policy 

decisions. 

3.1.3     Eurozone 

3.1.3.1 The Eurozone (EZ) is facing an increasing threat from weak or negative 

growth and from deflation.  In September, the inflation rate fell further, to 

reach a low of 0.3%.  However, this is an average for all EZ countries and 

includes some countries with negative rates of inflation.  Accordingly, the 

European Central Bank (ECB) took some rather limited action in June to 

loosen monetary policy in order to promote growth. In September it took 

further action to cut its benchmark rate to only 0.05%, its deposit rate to -

0.2% and to start a programme of purchases of corporate debt.  However, it 

has not embarked yet on full quantitative easing (purchase of sovereign 

debt).  

3.1.3.2 Concern in financial markets for the Eurozone subsided considerably during 

2013.  However, sovereign debt difficulties have not gone away and major 

issues could return in respect of any countries that do not dynamically 

address fundamental issues of low growth, international uncompetitiveness 

and the need for overdue reforms of the economy, (as Ireland has done).  It 

is, therefore, possible over the next few years that levels of government debt 

to GDP ratios could continue to rise for some countries. This could mean 

that sovereign debt concerns have not disappeared but, rather, have only 

been postponed.  

3.1.4     China and Japan 

3.1.4.1 Japan is causing considerable concern as the increase in sales tax in April 

has suppressed consumer expenditure and growth.  In Q2 growth was -

1.8% q/q and -7.1% over the previous year. The Government is hoping that 

this is a temporary blip. 

3.1.4.2 As for China, Government action in 2014 to stimulate the economy 

appeared to be putting the target of 7.5% growth within achievable reach but 

recent data has raised fresh concerns. There are also major concerns as to 

the creditworthiness of much bank lending to corporates and local 

government during the post 2008 credit expansion period and whether the 

bursting of a bubble in housing prices is drawing nearer. 

3.2 Capita’s Interest rate forecasts (issued by Capita on 27 October 2014) 

3.2.1 The Council’s treasury advisor, Capita Asset Services, has provided the following 
forecast: 

 

Page 108



 

 

5 

 
 

 

3.2.2 Capita Asset Services undertook a review of its interest rate forecasts on 24 

October. During September and October, a further rise in geopolitical 

concerns, principally over Ukraine but also over the Middle East, plus fears 

around Ebola and an accumulation of dismal growth news in most of the ten 

largest economies of the world and also on the growing risk of deflation in the 

Eurozone, had sparked a flight from equities into safe havens like gilts and 

depressed PWLB rates.  However, there is much volatility in rates as news 

ebbs and flows in negative or positive ways. This latest forecast includes a 

first increase in Bank Rate in quarter 2 of 2015.  

 
3.2.3 Capita’s PWLB forecasts are based around a balance of risks.  However, there 

are potential upside risks, especially for longer term PWLB rates, as follows: - 

• A further surge in investor confidence that robust world economic growth is 

firmly expected, causing a flow of funds out of bonds and into equities. 

• UK inflation being significantly higher than in the wider EU and US, causing an 

increase in the inflation premium inherent to gilt yields.  

3.2.4 Downside risks currently include:  

• The situation over Ukraine poses a major threat to EZ and world growth if it 

was to deteriorate into economic warfare between the West and Russia where 

Russia resorted to using its control over gas supplies to Europe. 

• Fears generated by the potential impact of Ebola around the world 

• UK strong economic growth is currently mainly dependent on consumer 

spending and the potentially unsustainable boom in the housing market.  The 

boost from these sources is likely to fade after 2014. 

• A weak rebalancing of UK growth to exporting and business investment 

causing a weakening of overall economic growth beyond 2014. 

• Weak growth or recession in the UK’s main trading partner - the EU, inhibiting 

economic recovery in the UK. 

• A return to weak economic growth in the US, UK and China causing major 

disappointment in investor and market expectations. 

Page 109



 

 

6 

• A resurgence of the Eurozone sovereign debt crisis caused by ongoing 

deterioration in government debt to GDP ratios to the point where financial 

markets lose confidence in the financial viability of one or more countries and 

in the ability of the ECB and Eurozone governments to deal with the potential 

size of the crisis. 

• Recapitalisation of European banks requiring more government financial 

support. 

• Lack of support by populaces in Eurozone countries for austerity programmes, 

especially in countries with very high unemployment rates e.g. Greece and 

Spain, which face huge challenges in engineering economic growth to correct 

their budget deficits on a sustainable basis. 

• Italy: the political situation has improved but it remains to be seen whether the 

new government is able to deliver the austerity programme required and a 

programme of overdue reforms.  Italy has the third highest government debt 

mountain in the world. 

• France: after being elected on an anti austerity platform, President Hollande 

has embraced a €50bn programme of public sector cuts over the next three 

years.  However, there could be major obstacles in implementing this 

programme. Major overdue reforms of employment practices and an increase 

in competiveness are also urgently required to lift the economy out of 

stagnation.   

• Monetary policy action failing to stimulate sustainable growth in western 

economies, especially the Eurozone and Japan. 

• Heightened political risks in the Middle East and East Asia could trigger safe 

haven flows back into bonds. 

• There are also increasing concerns at the reluctance of western central banks 

to raise interest rates significantly for some years, plus the huge QE measures 

which remain in place (and may be added to by the ECB in the near future).  

This has created potentially unstable flows of liquidity searching for yield and, 

therefore, heightened the potential for an increase in risks in order to get higher 

returns. This is a return to a similar environment to the one which led to the 

2008 financial crisis.  

4  Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy 
Update 

4.1  The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) and revised TMSS for 
2014/15 were approved by this Council on 6 February 2014 and 2 October 2014 
respectively  

4.2 There are no policy changes to the revised TMSS for 2014/15 other than as 
described in section 2.4; the details in this report update the position in the light of 
the updated economic position and budgetary changes already approved. 

5 The Council’s Capital Position (Prudential Indicators) 

5.1 This part of the report is structured to update: 

• The Council’s capital expenditure plans; 

Page 110



 

 

7 

• How these plans are being financed; 

• The impact of the changes in the capital expenditure plans on the 
prudential indicators and the underlying need to borrow; and 

• Compliance with the limits in place for borrowing activity. 

5.2   Prudential Indicator for Capital Expenditure 

This table shows the revised estimates for capital expenditure and the changes 
since the capital programme was agreed at the Budget.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The revised estimate includes carry-forward from the previous year of £12.137m 
General Fund and £6.861m HRA. £7.200m for the Alongside Quay project has 
also been taken out of the General Fund revised estimate. 

The 2014/15 full year budget under-spend as at 30/09/14 includes £8.084m for 
Dreamland (General Fund) and £8.424m for Empty Property, Intervention and 
New Build programmes (HRA). These amounts are budgeted to be spent by the 
2014/15 year-end. 

5.3 Changes to the Financing of the Capital Programme   

The table below draws together the main strategy elements of the capital 
expenditure plans (above), highlighting the original supported and unsupported 
elements of the capital programme, and the expected financing arrangements of 
this capital expenditure.  The borrowing element of the table increases the 
underlying indebtedness of the Council by way of the Capital Financing 
Requirement (CFR), although this will be reduced in part by revenue charges for 
the repayment of debt (the Minimum Revenue Provision).  This direct borrowing 
need may also be supplemented by maturing debt and other treasury 
requirements. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Capital Expenditure  2014/15 
Original 
Estimate 

£m 

Current 
Position – 
Actual at 
30/09/14 

£m 

2014/15 
Revised 
Estimate 

£m 

General Fund 13.441 2.694 18.416 
HRA 6.505 2.621 14.044 
Total 19.946 5.315 32.460 

Capital Expenditure 2014/15 
Original 
Estimate 

£m 

Current 
Position – 
Actual at 
30/9/14 

£m 

2014/15 
Revised 
Estimate 

£m 

Unsupported 19.946 5.315 32.460 

Total spend 19.946 5.315 32.460 

Financed by:    

Capital receipts 1.908  1.633 

Capital grants 2.393  10.444 

Capital reserves 3.490  10.912 
Revenue 2.655  3.057 

Total financing 10.446  26.046 

Borrowing need 9.500  6.414 

Page 111



 

 

8 

 

The revised estimate includes carry-forward from the previous year of £12.137m 
General Fund and £6.861m HRA. £7.200m for the Alongside Quay project has 
also been taken out of the General Fund revised estimate. 

 

5.4 Changes to the Prudential Indicators for the Capital Financing Requirement, 
External Debt and the Operational Boundary 

The table shows the CFR, which is the underlying external need to incur 
borrowing for a capital purpose.  It also shows the expected debt position over the 
period. This is termed the Operational Boundary. 

Prudential Indicator – Capital Financing Requirement 

We are on target to achieve the forecast Capital Financing Requirement. 

Prudential Indicator – External Debt / the Operational Boundary 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

* On balance sheet PFI schemes and finance leases etc (including the leisure 
centre deferred credit). Excludes the amount owed to KCC for the Westwood 
spine road construction as classified as a current liability. 

5.5 Limits to Borrowing Activity 

The first key control over the treasury activity is a prudential indicator to ensure 
that over the medium term, borrowing will only be for a capital purpose.  Gross 
external borrowing should not, except in the short term, exceed the total of CFR in 
the preceding year plus the estimates of any additional CFR for 2014/15 and next 
two financial years. This allows some flexibility for limited early borrowing for 
future years.  The Council has approved a policy for borrowing in advance of need 
which will be adhered to if this proves prudent.   

 2014/15 
Original 
Estimate 

£m 

Current 
Position – 
Actual at 
30/9/14 

£m 

2014/15 
Revised 
Estimate 

£m 

Prudential Indicator – Capital Financing Requirement 

CFR – non housing 33.256  26.460 

CFR – housing 20.869  20.874 

Total CFR 54.125  47.334 
Net movement in CFR 8.487  5.562 

    

Prudential Indicator – External Debt / the Operational Boundary 

Borrowing 43.000 28.055 43.000 
Other long term liabilities* 11.000 3.730 11.000 
Total debt  54.000 31.785 54.000 

Page 112



 

 

9 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

* 
 

* On balance sheet PFI schemes and finance leases etc (including the leisure 
centre deferred credit). Excludes the amount owed to KCC for the Westwood 
spine road construction as classified as a current liability. 

 

The Chief Executive reports that no difficulties are envisaged for the current or 
future years in complying with this prudential indicator.   

A further prudential indicator controls the overall level of borrowing.  This is the 
Authorised Limit which represents the limit beyond which borrowing is prohibited, 
and needs to be set and revised by Members.  It reflects the level of borrowing 
which, while not desired, could be afforded in the short term, but is not sustainable 
in the longer term.  It is the expected maximum borrowing need with some 
headroom for unexpected movements. This is the statutory limit determined under 
section 3 (1) of the Local Government Act 2003.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
* On balance sheet PFI schemes and finance leases etc (including the leisure 
centre deferred credit). Excludes the amount owed to KCC for the Westwood 
spine road construction as classified as a current liability. 

 

6  Investment Portfolio 2014/15 

6.1  In accordance with the Code, it is the Council’s priority to ensure security of 
capital and liquidity, and to obtain an appropriate level of return which is 
consistent with the Council’s risk appetite.  As set out in Section 3, it is a very 
difficult investment market in terms of earning the level of interest rates commonly 
seen in previous decades as rates are very low and in line with the 0.5% Bank 
Rate.  Indeed, the Funding for Lending scheme has reduced market investment 
rates even further.  The potential for a prolonging of the Eurozone sovereign debt 

 2014/15 
Original 
Estimate 

£m 

Current 
Position – 
Actual at 
30/09/14  

£m 

2014/15 
Revised 
Estimate 

£m 

Gross borrowing 36.900 28.055 30.659 
Plus other long term 

liabilities* 
0.642 3.730 3.560 

Total gross borrowing 37.542 31.785 34.219 

CFR (year end position) 54.125  47.334 

Authorised limit for 
external debt 

2014/15 
Original 
Indicator 

£m 

Current 
Position – 
Actual at 
30/09/14 

£m 

2014/15 
Revised 
Indicator 

£m 

Borrowing 48.000 28.055 48.000 

Other long term 
liabilities* 

14.000 3.730 14.000 

Total 62.000 31.785 62.000 

Page 113



 

 

10

crisis, and its impact on banks, prompts a low risk and short term strategy.  Given 
this risk environment, investment returns are likely to remain low.  

6.2 The Council held £37.243m of investments as at 30 September 2014 (£31.851m 
at 31 March 2014) and the investment portfolio yield for the first six months of the 
year is 0.55% against a benchmark (average 7-day LIBID rate) of 0.35%. The 
constituent investments are: 

 
 

Sector Country Up to 1 year 
£m 

1 year – 
370 days 

£m 

Total £m 

Banks UK 12.692 2.200 14.892 
Banks Sweden 3.940 0.000 3.940 

Money Market Funds UK 18.411 0.000 18.411 
Total  35.043 2.200 37.243 

  
6.3 The Chief Financial Officer confirms that the approved limits within the Annual 

Investment Strategy were not breached during the first six months of 2014/15. 
 
6.4 The Council’s budgeted investment return for 2014/15 is £0.148m, and 

performance for the first half of the financial year is above budget at £0.112m. 
 
6.5 Investment Risk Benchmarking 

Investment risk benchmarks were set in the 2014/15 Treasury Management 
Strategy Statement (TMSS) for security, liquidity and yield. The mid-year position 
against these benchmarks is given below. 

6.5.1 Security 

The Council’s maximum security risk benchmark for the current portfolio, 
when compared to historic default tables, is: 

• 0.05% historic risk of default when compared to the whole portfolio. 

The security benchmark for each individual period is: 

 
 370 days 2 years 3 years 4 years 5 years 

Maximum 0.05% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 

Note: This benchmark is an average risk of default measure, and would not 
constitute an expectation of loss against a particular investment.   

The Chief Executive can report that the investment portfolio was maintained 
within this overall benchmark for the first half of this financial year. 

6.5.2 Liquidity 
 
In respect of this area the Council seeks to maintain: 
 
• Bank overdraft - £0.5m 

• Liquid short term deposits of at least £10m available with a week’s notice. 

Page 114



 

 

11

• Weighted Average Life benchmark is expected to be 0.5 years, with a 
maximum of 1.0 year. 

The Chief Executive can report that liquidity arrangements were adequate for 
the first half of this financial year. 

 This authority does not currently place investments for more than 370 days 
due to the credit, security and counterparty risks of placing such investments.  

 

6.5.3    Yield   
 
Local measures of yield benchmarks are: 
 
• Investments – Internal returns above the 7 day LIBID rate 

The Chief Executive can report that the yield on deposits for the first half of 
the financial year is 0.55% against a benchmark (average 7-day LIBID rate) of 
0.35%. 

6.6 Investment Counterparty criteria 

The current investment counterparty criteria selection approved in the revised 
TMSS is meeting the requirement of the treasury management function.  

7  Borrowing 

7.1 The Council’s capital financing requirement (CFR) original estimate for 2014/15 is 
£54.125m.The CFR denotes the Council’s underlying need to borrow for capital 
purposes.  If the CFR is positive the Council may borrow from the PWLB or the 
market (external borrowing) or from internal balances on a temporary basis 
(internal borrowing).  The balance of external and internal borrowing is generally 
driven by market conditions.  The Council has borrowings of £28.055m (table 5.5) 
and has utilised an estimated £26.070m of cash flow funds in lieu of borrowing.  
This is a prudent and cost effective approach in the current economic climate but 
will require ongoing monitoring in the event that upside risk to gilt yields prevails. 

 
7.2 Due to the overall financial position and the underlying need to borrow for capital 

purposes (the capital financing requirement - CFR), new external borrowing of 
£1.000m was undertaken from the PWLB during the first half of this financial year. 
This loan started on 24 September 2014 and is repayable at maturity on 24 
September 2064. The annual rate of interest is fixed at 3.87%. In addition, new 
external borrowing of £1.800m was undertaken from the PWLB on 23 October 
2014. This loan is repayable by equal instalments of principal over a 21 year term 
and has a fixed annual interest rate of 3.08%.  

 
7.3 As outlined below, the general trend has been a decrease in interest rates during 

the six months across longer dated maturity bands, but a rise in the shorter 
maturities, reflecting in part the expected rise in the Bank rate. 

 
7.4 Further borrowing may be undertaken during this financial year and options will be 

reviewed in due course in line with market conditions. 
 
7.5 The graph and table below show the movement in PWLB certainty rates for the 

first six months of the year to 30 September 2014.     
 
 

Page 115



 

 

12

7.6 PWLB certainty rates, half year ended 30th September 2014 
 
(Please note that the graph below is unable to show separate lines for 25 and 50 
year rates at some points as those rates were almost identical) 
 

 

  1 Year 5 Year 10 Year 25 Year 50 Year 

Low 1.20% 2.48% 3.16% 3.75% 3.73% 

Date 10/04/2014 28/08/2014 28/08/2014 29/08/2014 29/08/2014 

High 1.48% 2.86% 3.66% 4.29% 4.26% 

Date 15/07/2014 04/07/2014 20/06/2014 02/04/2014 01/04/2014 

Average 1.34% 2.65% 3.67% 4.10% 4.17% 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7.7  Debt rescheduling opportunities have been limited in the current economic climate 
and consequent structure of interest rates.  During the first six months of the year, 
no debt rescheduling was undertaken. The Council is currently under-borrowed to 
address investment counterparty risk and the differential between borrowing and 
investment interest rates. This position is carefully monitored. 

0.50%

1.00%

1.50%

2.00%

2.50%

3.00%

3.50%

4.00%

4.50%

25 Year Target 1 Year 5 Year 10 Year 25 Year 50 Year 

Page 116



 

 

13

7.8  The Council’s budgeted debt interest payable for 2014/15 is £1.133m and 
performance for the first half of the financial year is below budget at £0.513m. 

8 Treasury Management Indicators 

8.1 Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream 

This indicator identifies the trend in the cost of capital (borrowing and other long 
term obligation costs net of investment income) against the net revenue stream. 

 
% 2014/15 

Original Indicator 
2014/15 

Revised Indicator 

Non-HRA 8.9% 6.0% 
HRA 6.0% 5.9% 

 

8.2 Upper Limits on Variable Rate Exposure – This identifies a maximum limit 
for variable interest rates based upon the debt position net of investments. 

Upper Limits on Fixed Rate Exposure – Similar to the previous indicator, 
this covers a maximum limit on fixed interest rates.  

Both of these are shown in the below table: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8.3 Maturity Structures of Borrowing 

These gross limits are set to reduce the Council’s exposure to large fixed rate 
sums falling due for refinancing. 

 

 2014/15 
Original 
Indicator 

£m 

Current 
Position – 
Actual at 
30/09/14 

£m 

2014/15 
Revised 
Indicator 

£m 

Upper limits on fixed interest rates 
Debt only 62.000 28.055 62.000 
Investments only 45.000 25.503 45.000 
Upper limits on variable interest rates 
Debt only 62.000 0.000 62.000 
Investments only 45.000 11.740 45.000 

 2014/15 
Original 

Upper Limit 

Current 
Position – 
Actual at 
30/09/14 

2013/14 
Revised 

Upper Limit 

Maturity structure of fixed rate borrowing 
Under 12 months 50% 21% 50% 
1 year to under 2 years 50% 1% 50% 
2 years to under 5 years 50% 8% 50% 
5 years to under 10 years 55% 39% 55% 
10 years to under 20 years 50% 7% 50% 
20 years to under 30 years 50% 14% 50% 
30 years to under 40 years 50% 7% 50% 
40 years to under 50 years 50% 4% 50% 
50 years and above 50% 0% 50% 

Page 117



 

 

14

The current position shows the actual percentage of fixed rate debt the 
authority has within each maturity span. None of the upper limits have been 
breached. 

9 Options 
 
9.1 That Members approve this report and agree the prudential and treasury 

indicators that are shown. 
 
10 Corporate Implications 
 
10.1 Financial and VAT 
 
10.1.1 There are no financial or VAT implications arising directly from this report. 

 
10.2 Legal 
 
10.2.1 This report is required to be brought before the Governance and Audit Committee, 

Cabinet and Council for approval, under the CIPFA Treasury Management Code 
of Practice. 

 
10.3 Corporate 
 
10.3.1 This report evidences that the Council continues to carefully manage the risk 

associated with its treasury management activities. 
 
10.4 Equity and Equalities 
 
10.4.1 There are no equity or equality issues arising from this report. 
 

11 Recommendations 
 
11.1 That the Governance and Audit Committee:  

• Approves this report and agrees the prudential and treasury indicators that are 
shown. 

• Recommends this report to Cabinet. 

 

12 Decision Making Process 
 

12.1 This report is to go to Cabinet and then Council for approval. The Cabinet 
meeting is on 20 January 2015. 

 

13 Disclaimer 

13.1 This report is a technical document focussing on public sector investments and 
borrowings and, as such, readers should not use the information contained within 
the report to inform personal investment or borrowing decisions. Neither Thanet 
District Council nor any of its officers or employees makes any representation or 
warranty, express or implied, as to the accuracy or completeness of the 
information contained herein (such information being subject to change without 
notice) and shall not be in any way responsible or liable for the contents hereof 
and no reliance should be placed on the accuracy, fairness or completeness of 

Page 118



 

 

15

the information contained in this document. Any opinions, forecasts or estimates 
herein constitute a judgement and there can be no assurance that they will be 
consistent with future results or events.  No person accepts any liability 
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from any use of this document or its 
contents or otherwise in connection therewith. 

 
 
Contact Officer: Paul Cook, Section 151 Officer, extn 7617 
Reporting to: Madeline Homer, Acting Chief Executive 
 

 
Corporate Consultation Undertaken 
 

Finance N/A 
Legal N/A 

 

 

 

Page 119



Page 120

This page is intentionally left blank



0 

 

  
 

 

Due Diligence Protocol 
 

Thanet District Council 

Agenda Item 12

Page 121



1 

 

 

1.0 Introduction 

1.1. What is Due Diligence? 
 

1.1.1. Due diligence is firmly established as an element of corporate good governance and 
is an investigation of a business or person prior to signing a contract. 

1.1.2. For the Council this contract can take a variety of forms, examples of these are a 
contract to provide services, an agreement in relation to a grant, a lease agreement 
or a joint venture/development partner agreement. 

1.1.3. Why do it? 

1.1.4. Both the Bribery Act 2010 and Money Laundering Regulations 2007 contain sections 
pertaining to the use of due diligence when establishing relationships with third 
parties. 

1.1.5. In essence due diligence is undertaken to: 

(a) Identify the entity and verify the entity’s identity on the basis of documents, data 
or information obtained from a reliable and independent source;  

(b) Establish the ability of the entity to deliver the contract 

1.1.6. Due diligence is implemented to cut down on unpleasant surprises and reduces the 
chance that business practices of a service provider or grant recipient reflect poorly 
on the Council. 

1.1.7. Due diligence will not provide a yes or no answer as to if the authority should 
use/partner with an entity.  However, performing these types of investigation results 
in informed decision making through the use of enhanced information gathered 
during the process. 

1.1.8. Decision makers can then analyse information and deliberate regarding costs, 
benefits and risks prior to entering into contracts. 

2.0 What are the steps involved? 

2.1. As due diligence is such an important part of the contract process, planning is essential 
as it may take some time to gather the appropriate information, consult experts, analyse 
the information and provide answers to questions. 

2.2. Staff resource should also be considered, for example particular legal advice maybe 
required. 

2.3. STEP 1 – Planning 

2.3.1. The steps of due diligence should be planned so that work can be completed before the 
contract discussions are too far advanced.  For contract partners that present concerns it 
may be useful to consult with legal and finance colleagues to establish the best form of 
due diligence. 

2.3.2. The level of due diligence is likely to vary considerably from contract to contract 
depending upon the risk to the authority of the contract being entered into. 

2.3.3. Therefore planning is a key stage to ensure that all questions are answered and 
concerns alleviated, prior to contract award. 

2.4. STEP 2 – Gather Information 

2.4.1. The first major step is to gather the information required in order to perform due 
diligence. The planning stage should of assisted in assessing the information that is likely 
to be required, but at the very least the information that should be gathered can be split 
into four categories: 

Page 122



2 

 

2.4.2. Basic Information 

•••• Name of organisation and directors/officers 

•••• Registered address 

•••• CVs of principals 

•••• Contact details 

•••• Group Structure (chart) showing how the contracting company fits into the overall 
corporate structure 

•••• Company registration number and date of registration (where appropriate) 

•••• VAT number 

•••• Project outline 

•••• Evidence the proposed project would not represent an excessive increase in the 
overall scale of the organisation’s activities. 

•••• Relevant experience of similar projects 
 

2.4.3. Financial information 

•••• Last 3 years financial accounts 

•••• Auditor contact details 

•••• Financial Plan  

•••• Evidence of funds required to complete the project. 
 

2.4.4. Web searches 

•••• External credit rating 

•••• Credit reference (taken by TDC) 

•••• General search on company performance 

•••• Press/media 
 
2.4.5. Government policy 

•••• Compliance with money laundering regulations 
 

2.5. STEP 3 – Analyse the Information gathered 

2.5.1. Analysis of the information gathered is essential in order make an informed decision 
regarding contract award. 

2.5.2. Key questions that should be considered are: 

2.5.3. Corporate image 

•••• Has there been any negative publicity in the media around the company and how 
has the company dealt with and resolved these issues? 

•••• Are there any pending legal cases against the entity? 

•••• Is the entity only looking for a marketing opportunity by partnering with the 
Council? 

•••• Is the entity looking only for procurement opportunities or money from the 
Council? 

•••• Is the entity willing to engage in a transparent manner, with for example due 
regard to the Freedom Of Information Act? 

•••• Is the entity willing to accept limitations around publicity of its relationship with the 
Council so that the Council is not perceived as endorsing the entity? 

2.5.4. Social Responsibility 

•••• Is the entity involved primarily in activities that the Council do not wish to align 
with, i.e. tobacco, firearms. 

•••• Does the entity openly discriminate against race, sex or religion? 

•••• Are there any concerns with the entity around corporate social responsibility? 

Page 123



3 

 

•••• Is there any history regarding child or forced labour? 

•••• Does the entity endorse standard Health & Safety requirements for workers? 

2.5.5. Environmental Responsibility 

•••• Does the entity assess the environmental impact of the project to be delivered? 

•••• How does the entity monitor and set targets for improved environmental 
performance? 

•••• Are there sufficient contingency plans to deal with emergencies relating to the 
contract? 

2.5.6. Financial Ability 

•••• Does the entity have the resources to fulfil its obligations through the contract? 

•••• Does the entity issue annual accounts? 

•••• Does the entity have a long track record, how many years has it been 
established? 

•••• Does the entity have a stable structure and good governance around financial 
decision making? 

2.5.7. Policy Compatibility 

•••• Does the entity comply with all statutory regulations? 

•••• Is it subject to any investigations by government, i.e. HMRC. 

•••• Would entering into the contract cause the Council any issues with regards to its 
own constitution? 

2.6. STEP 4 – Further Specific and supplementary enquiries 

2.6.1. Further supplementary enquires may be required to answer the concerns or questions 
raised, however the level of these enquiries is likely to be dependent on: 

•••• The scale of the proposed project or contract 

•••• Responses to the initial enquires made 

2.6.2. If the financial commitment is at a low level then enquires made will be restricted.  The 
nature of the project and the level of risk are also considerations. 

2.6.3. The planning stage of the due diligence process will allow you to assess the required 
level of further enquiries. 

2.6.4. It is essential that a specific time limit is set for entities to respond, so that the awarding 
of the contract is not unduly delayed. 

2.7. STEP 5 – Decision making 

2.7.1. Once a comprehensive picture is built up of the entity concerned, an informed decision 
making process can occur using the information obtained. 

2.7.2. An entity that has struggled to provide information or answer some of the key questions 
is likely to be unsuccessful in winning the contract. 

2.7.3. When it comes to decision making, a final decision must be reached in a timely manner 
and in conjunction with advice received from other departments such as legal and 
finance. 

3.0 Conclusion 

3.1. Due diligence assists in the detection and treatment of risk in relation to a contract award. 

3.2. The process can be lengthy, but ultimately leads to the reputational protection of the 
Council and its finances, as well as the protection and reputation of the decision makers. 

 

. 

 

Page 124



 

 

THANET DISTRICT COUNCIL DECLARATION OF INTEREST FORM 
 
Do I have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest and if so what action should I take?  
 
Your Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI) are those interests that are, or should be, listed on 
your Register of Interest Form.  
 
If you are at a meeting and the subject relating to one of your DPIs is to be discussed, in so 
far as you are aware of the DPI, you must declare the existence and explain the nature of the 
DPI during the declarations of interest agenda item, at the commencement of the item under 
discussion, or when the interest has become apparent 
 
Once you have declared that you have a DPI (unless you have been granted a dispensation 
by the Standards Committee or the Monitoring Officer, for which you will have applied to the 
Monitoring Officer prior to the meeting) you must:-  

 
1. Not speak or vote on the matter; 
2. Withdraw from the meeting room during  the consideration of the matter; 
3. Not seek to improperly influence the decision on the matter.  

 
Do I have a significant interest and if so what action should I take? 
 
A significant interest is an interest (other than a DPI or an interest in an Authority Function) 
which: 
1. Affects the financial position of yourself and/or an associated person; or 

Relates to the determination of your application for any approval, consent, licence, 
permission or registration made by, or on your behalf of, you and/or an associated 
person;  

2. And which, in either case, a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts 
would reasonably regard as being so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgment 
of the public interest.     

 
An associated person is defined as: 

• A family member or any other person with whom you have a close association, including 
your spouse, civil partner, or somebody with whom you are living as a husband or wife, 
or as if you are civil partners; or 

• Any person or body who employs or has appointed such persons, any firm in which they 
are a partner, or any company of which they are directors; or 

• Any person or body in whom such persons have a beneficial interest in a class of 
securities exceeding the nominal value of £25,000;  

• Any body of which you are in a position of general control or management and to which 
you are appointed or nominated by the Authority; or 

• any body in respect of which you are in a position of general control or management and 
which: 
- exercises functions of a public nature; or 
- is directed to charitable purposes; or 
- has as its principal purpose or one of its principal purposes the influence of public 

opinion or policy (including any political party or trade union) 
 
An Authority Function is defined as: -  

• Housing - where you are a tenant of the Council provided that those functions do not 
relate particularly to your tenancy or lease; or 

• Any allowance, payment or indemnity given to members of the Council; 

• Any ceremonial honour given to members of the  Council 

• Setting the Council Tax or a precept under the Local Government Finance Act 1992     
 

If you are at a meeting and you think that you have a significant interest then you must 
declare the existence and nature of the significant interest at the commencement of the 

Page 125



 

 

matter, or when the interest has become apparent, or the declarations of interest agenda 
item.  
 
Once you have declared that you have a significant interest (unless you have been granted a 
dispensation by the Standards Committee or the Monitoring Officer, for which you will have 
applied to the Monitoring Officer prior to the meeting) you must:- 
 
1. Not speak or vote (unless the public have speaking rights, or you are present to make 

representations, answer questions or to give evidence relating to the business being 
discussed in which case you can speak only) 

2. Withdraw from the meeting during consideration of the matter or immediately after 
speaking. 

3. Not seek to improperly influence the decision.  

 
Gifts, Benefits and Hospitality 
 
Councillors must declare at meetings any gift, benefit or hospitality with an estimated value (or 
cumulative value if a series of gifts etc.) of £100 or more. You must, at the commencement of 
the meeting or when the interest becomes apparent, disclose the existence and nature of the 
gift, benefit or hospitality, the identity of the donor and how the business under consideration 
relates to that person or body. However you can stay in the meeting unless it constitutes a 
significant interest, in which case it should be declared as outlined above.   
 

What if I am unsure? 
 
If you are in any doubt, Members are strongly advised to seek advice from the Monitoring 
Officer or the Democratic Services and Scrutiny Manager well in advance of the meeting. 

 
DECLARATION OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS, 

SIGNIFICANT INTERESTS AND GIFTS, BENEFITS AND HOSPITALITY 

 
MEETING………………………………………………………………………………………………... 
 
DATE…………………………………………… AGENDA ITEM …………………………………… 
 

DISCRETIONARY PECUNIARY INTEREST    
 

SIGNIFICANT INTEREST      
 

GIFTS, BENEFITS AND HOSPITALITY     
 
THE NATURE OF THE INTEREST, GIFT, BENEFITS OR HOSPITALITY: 
 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
……………………………………………………………………………………………….…………… 
 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 
 
NAME (PRINT): ………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
 
SIGNATURE: …………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
Please detach and hand this form to the Democratic Services Officer when you are asked to 
declare any interests. 
 

Page 126


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	4 Annual Audit Letter
	5 Value Statement
	6 Internal Audit Update Report
	Annex 1 - Quarterly Internal Audit Update Report 10-12-2014

	8 Corporate Risk Register
	Annex 1 - CRR 2014-2015 - Quarter 2 Progress Report

	10 Treasury Management Strategy 2015-2016
	11 To agree the mid-year treasury management report
	12 Due Diligence Protocol
	Declaration of Interests Form

